CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

\$2,100,000

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R

MAXIMUM OFFERING \$2,100,000 MINIMUM OFFERING \$250,000 EIGHTEEN MONTHS: 9.00%

DUE AUGUST 15, 2010

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (the "Trust") is hereby offering \$2,100,000 of Contract Certificates, entitled to interest at the rate of 9.00% per annum (the "Certificates"). Interest on the Certificates is payable in quarterly installments commencing May 15, 2009. See "Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement".

The Certificates will be issued and registered in the names of the purchasing Certificateholders. Interests in the Certificates will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement. See "Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement."

Price of Certificates 100%

See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of certain risks that should be considered by prospective purchasers of the Certificates offered hereby.

THESE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

	Price to the Public	Underwriting Discount	Proceeds to the Trust
	100%	3.5%	96.5%
Minimum Offering	\$250,000	\$8,750	\$241,250
Maximum Offering	\$2,100,000	\$73,500	\$2,026,500

The date of this Memorandum is February 2, 2009

MCGINN, SMITH & CO. INC. Capital Center • 99 Pine Street Albany, New York 12207

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
WHO MAY INVEST	3
SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING	4
RISK FACTORS	6
USE OF PROCEEDS	7
THE TRUST	7
COMPANY INFORMATION	8
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES	13
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	14
THE TRUSTEE	14
COMPENSATION AND FEES	14
SUITABILITY	16
TERMS OF THE OFFERING	17
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	17
INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	18
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS	19
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	19

The Offering of Certificates will terminate on May 27, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. (the "Placement Agent"), upon request from Verifier Capital LLC (the "Company"), will consider an extension of the Offering for four (4) months, terminating on September 27, 2009. All subscriptions will be held in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account") at Mercantile Bank, Boca Raton, Florida (the "Escrow Agent") or such other financial institution as may be selected by the Trust in the event that the Escrow Agent is unable or unwilling to serve. Interest will be earned on funds held in the Escrow Account commencing three (3) days after the funds are deposited until the earlier of the termination of this Offering or the investment of such funds in Certificates. During the period that an investor's funds are held in the Escrow Account, he will not be a Certificateholder of the Trust. An investor's funds will not be held in the Escrow Account more than two (2) months before being invested in the Certificates, with Escrow Agent fees being deducted from escrow interest payable to investors. See "Terms of the Offering".

The Trust will furnish to investors certain reports, financial statements and tax information. See "Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement - Reports".

WHO MAY INVEST

The Certificates will generally be offered only to accredited investors ("Accredited Investors") as that term is defined under Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"). The Placement Agent. may, however, offer and sell Certificates to 35 or fewer non-accredited investors. With certain exceptions (primarily with respect to institutional investors) an Accredited Investor is an individual who (i) has a net worth (along and together with the Investor's spouse) in excess of \$1,000,000 or (ii) has had gross income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the past two years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year. Corporations, partnerships and other entities will be considered Accredited Investors if each of its beneficial owners individually qualify as Accredited Investors, or if such entity has total assets in excess of \$5 million. Prospective investors to be admitted as Accredited Investors will be required to represent that they satisfy the requirements of an Accredited Investor. See "Suitability".

The Certificates offered hereby are suitable only for those investors whose business and investment experience makes them capable of evaluating the merits and risks of their prospective investment in the Certificates, who can afford to bear the economic risk of their investment for an indefinite period of time and have no need for liquidity in this investment. Each investor will be required to represent in the Subscription Agreement that he is acquiring the Certificates for his own account as principal for investment, and not with a view to resale or distribution, and that he is aware that (a) his transfer rights are restricted; and (b) that the Certificates have not been registered under the Act, and therefore cannot be resold unless they are so registered or unless exemption from registration is available with respect to such transaction. (See "Suitability".) Since there can be no assurance that the Contracts will generate sufficient income necessary to pay the Certificates, investment in the Certificates is suited for persons who have substantial income from other sources. See "Risk Factors".

The Trust may require prospective investors to complete a questionnaire relating to the suitability on the investment for them, and may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as it deems appropriate. The Trust and Placement Agent will collectively have the sole discretion regarding sale of the Certificates to any prospective investor. The Trust and Placement Agent reserve the right to reject any subscription for any reason and to allocate to any investor a smaller amount of Certificates, or fractions thereof, than that for which he has subscribed. See "Suitability".

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Memorandum and the exhibits attached to the Memorandum.

The Trust

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (the "Trust") is a common law trust formed under the laws of the State of New York on January 29, 2009. The Trustee of the Trust is McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., a New York corporation (the "Trustee"). The Trustee will have no liability in connection with the Certificates or the affairs of the Trust in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Although Certificateholders will have recourse to all assets of the Trust, which include an assignment of 1,450,000 face value of Guaranteed Payment Units("GPUs") issued by the Company, which when discounted to a present value at the blended interest rates contemplated by this offering, will have a value of \$2,100,000.

The Trust will advance funds to TDM Cable Funding LLC, a New York limited liability company ("TDM"). TDM has purchased \$1,450,000 of face value Guaranteed Payment Units from the Company.

The Company provides capital to security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts at a multiple of recurring monthly revenue ("RMR") and subcontracting back to such dealers service and monitoring obligations in respect of the purchased accounts for a fixed percentage of RMR received from the underlying customers (the "Subcontract Fee"). As of September 30, 2008, the Company owned 8,000 security alarm accounts purchased from independent security alarm dealers, generating total RMR of \$625,000. The average purchase price paid for accounts was twenty-six (26) times RMR and the average Subcontract Fee was 35%.

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 07 in the amount of \$1,982,500 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000 and legal and miscellaneous costs of approximately \$44,000.

The Investment

Certificateholders will be issued a Certificate with a 18 month maturity (August 15, 2010). The rate of interest payable will be 9.00% per annum, payable quarterly.

Certificates may be purchased in denominations of \$5,000 with a minimum purchase of \$10,000.

Risk Factors

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully, among others, the following risk factors:

- No assurance that the Certificates will be paid;
- No market for resale of Certificates;
- Illiquid collateral;
- Potential for Guaranteed Payment Unit defaults;
- Potential conflicts of interest in connection with the acquisition of the assets to be consigned to the Trust;
- · No amortization of principal.

Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement

The Certificates will be issued under a Declaration of Trust by McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Trustee. The Certificates will be available for purchase in denominations of \$5,000.00 with a minimum investment of \$10,000.00. The Certificates will be registered in the name of the individual Certificateholders. See "Description of the Trust Agreement and the Certificates."

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-RFT Document 4-21 Filed 04/20/10 Page 5 of 39

The Certificates will bear interest at a per annum rate of 9.00%. Interest will accrue commencing on the Closing Date for the purchase of such Certificate and will be payable to Certificateholders quarterly on the first day of each quarter commencing May 15, 2009.

Use of Proceeds

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 07 in the amount of \$1,982,500 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000 and legal and miscellaneous costs of approximately \$44,000.

Income Tax Considerations

The Certificates will be treated as indebtedness of the Trust for federal income tax purposes. Each Certificateholder will generally be required to report interest income on a Certificate in accordance with such Certificateholder's method of accounting. Each prospective investor should consult with his or her own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Certificates.

RISK FACTORS

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully all of the information contained in this Memorandum and, in particular, the factors discussed below. The following summary is not intended to state in full or replace portions of this Memorandum that discuss these factors and others in greater depth. Although the risk factors are intended to be presented in order of their materiality to investors, such order may not be indicative of their relative importance to any particular investor.

Limitation of Transfer of Certificates

The Certificates may not be offered for resale to any person without the consent of the Trust. Prior to this offering, there has been no market for the Certificates of the Trust. Each investor will be required to represent that his purchase of the Certificates will be for investment only and not with a view towards the resale or distribution thereof. A Certificateholder will not have any right to sell, transfer, exchange or otherwise dispose of his Certificates, or to cause a security interest to be created therein, unless the Trust has received evidence satisfactory to it that such disposition or creation of a security interest is not in violation of federal or state securities laws. The Certificates have not been registered or qualified under the Act or applicable state securities laws and may not be sold or transferred without such registration or qualification or an exemption thereform.

Potential for Guaranteed Payment Unit Defaults

Default by the Company under the terms of the GPUs would result in an interruption in available cash distributed to Certificateholders and could cause significant loss of principal.

No Monthly Amortization Schedule

There will be no amortization of the principal arising out of the cash flow generated from the GPUs. It is anticipated that each of the maturities will be refinanced at approximately similar interest rates until the Company redeems the GPUs. It is currently contemplated by the Company that such redemption will occur after six years.

No Independent Counsel to Investors

Purchases of the Certificates offered here by will not be afforded the services of independent counsel. Disclosure of material facts and risks has been reviewed by counsel to the underwriter.

Lack of Financial Statements

This Memorandum does not include financial statements for the Trust. The Trust is newly formed.

Conflicts of Interest

The Trust will acquire the GPUs from the Company. The Trustee of the Trust is McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Placement Agent for this offering is McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., the principals of TDM Cable Funding LLC are Timothy McGinn, David Smith, and Matthew Rogers. Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith are principals of

McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. and McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. Mr. Rogers is the Chairman of the Board of the Company and is the beneficial owner of 12.50% of the common units of the Company and is a principal of TDM Cable Funding, LLC. Further, Mr. Rogers is a Senior Managing Director of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. Although there is no specified formula for determining the purchase price paid for the assets of the Trust, and Certificateholders will not have a voice in the amount paid by the Trust, the Trustee will purchase the assets only when TDM represents to the Trustee that the price of such assets will allow the Trust to pay its operating expenses and discharge its obligations with respect to the Certificates.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Certificates offered hereby, after deducting the Underwriting Discount, will be approximately \$2,026,500 (96.5% of gross proceeds) if the Maximum Offering for the Certificates is achieved.

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Certificates offered hereby, after deducting the Underwriting Discount, will be approximately \$241,250 (96.5% of gross proceeds) if the Minimum Offering for the Certificates is achieved.

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 07 in the amount of \$1,982,500 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000 and legal and miscellaneous costs of approximately \$44,000.

Maximum Offering	
Sources	
Maximum Net Proceeds	\$2,026,500
Uses by TDM Verifier Trust 07R	
Legal Fees	30,000
Printing, Marketing, Postage	14,000
Certificate Retirement	1,982,500
Total uses by TDM Verifier Trust 07R	\$2,026,500
Minimum Offering	
Sources	
Minimum Net Proceeds	\$241,250
	•
Uses by TDM Verifier Trust 07R	
Legal Fees	10,000
Printing, Marketing, Postage	3,000
Certificate Retirement	228,250
Total uses by TDM Verifier Trust 07R	\$241,250

THE TRUST

The Trust is a common law trust formed under the laws of the State of New York on January 29, 2009. The principal executive office of the Trust is located at c/o McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., Trustee, Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, and its telephone number is 518-449-5131. McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. is the Trustee of the Trust. The owners of all issued and out-standing common stock of the Trustee are Timothy M. McGinn (30%), David L. Smith (50%), and Thomas E. Livingston (20%). McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. is the Placement Agent for the offering.

Business of the Trust

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire the certificates TDM Verifier Trust 07 in the amount of \$1,982,500 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000 and legal and miscellaneous costs of approximately \$44,000.

BUSINESS OF VERIFIER CAPITAL LLC

The Company provides capital to security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts at an agreed multiple of recurring monthly revenue ("RMR") and subcontracting back to them service and monitoring obligations in respect of the purchased accounts for a fixed percentage of RMR received from the underlying customers (the "Subcontract Fee"). As of September 30, 2008, the Company owned approximately 8,000 security alarm accounts purchased from independent dealers, generating total RMR of \$625,000. The average purchase price paid for accounts in fiscal year 2008 was 26 times RMR and the average Subcontract Fee was 35% of the RMR.

The Company anticipates 2008 revenues of \$12 million and EBITDA of \$2.2 million as compared to 2007 revenues of \$3.7 million and EBITDA of \$960,000.

Trailing three months (August, September, October) actual EBITDA was \$787,000 which annualizes to a \$3.1 million run-rate EBITDA.

The Company has significantly improved its liquidity and capital position over the last 6 months. The Company replaced a \$10 million line of credit priced at 9% with a \$29 million line currently priced at 5.64%. The Company currently has \$17 million available under the facility.

The Company has closed and integrated four acquisitions during the course of 2008, increasing RMR from \$369,000 to \$625,000.

As of November 2008, the Company has seen no adverse effect on either attrition rates or cash collections as a result of the global credit crisis.

The Company believes it is well positioned to continue its growth given:

- 1. Substantial undrawn credit facility;
- 2. Estimated 2009 free cash flow in excess of \$1 million;
- Investment in business and accounting systems which will increase the scalability of the operating platform and:
- 4. A favorable effect on acquisition pricing resulting in high incremental rates of returns as a result of worldwide macroeconomic conditions.

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company

The Company provides capital to security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts at an agreed multiple of recurring monthly revenue ("RMR") and subcontracting back to them service and monitoring obligations in respect of the purchased accounts for a fixed percentage of RMR received from the underlying customers(the "Subcontract Fee"). As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 8,000 security alarm accounts purchased from eight independent dealers and two wholly-owned dealers, generating total RMR of \$625,000 up from \$372,500 on December 31, 2007. The average purchase price paid for accounts in fiscal year 2007 was 26 times RMR and the average Subcontract Fee was 35% of the RMR. This implies a payback period of 40 months before attrition or account cancellation and overhead expense, on assets with useful lives in excess of ten years.

To date, the Company has primarily financed franchisees of Sonitrol Corporation ("Sonitrol"), which manufactures and distributes a proprietary range of security alarms that use a proprietary audio intrusion technology, instead of passive infra-red detectors and contact switches, as the primary means of detecting an intrusion. Following detection, a communications session is opened between the control panel at the subscriber's premises and an operator at the central monitoring station ("CMS") during which the operator listens into the system and determines the appropriate response. The CMS operator's ability to use additional information from the system, after the initial activation, is called "verification" by the alarm industry, from which the Company has derived its company name. Verified systems were developed in order to improve police response to alarm systems, which suffers as confidence in alarms is undermined by repeated false alarms. When an operator using a verified system determines that there is an intrusion in progress, whether through use of audio or video inputs, the probability of the police making an arrest

at the site increases exponentially. This increase significantly reduces response time, thereby delivering subscribers with an enhanced level of protection. Sonitrol is the North American market leader in verified systems and claims 157,000 apprehensions from its systems since the business was founded in 1963. In addition to its product development, manufacturing and franchising operations, Sonitrol is a significant operator of alarm systems across the United States with approximately \$5 million of RMR and was ranked number 9 in the 2007 Security Distribution & Marketing 100.² As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 4,100 security alarm accounts purchased from five Sonitrol dealers, generating total RMR of \$379,000.

The enhanced features provided by verified systems means that they cost significantly more than conventional systems both to install and to monitor. The average monthly charge for monitoring a conventional security alarm in the United States is approximately \$30 and the average for a Sonitrol system is approximately \$90, with similar premiums being charged at the installation stage.³ As a result, Sonitrol systems are almost exclusively sold to non-residential customers with a demonstrated need for intruder protection, who make significant cash investments in their installation. These factors mean that the attrition rate on Sonitrol systems is consistently lower than that for conventional systems. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company's gross attrition rate was 10.3%, as compared with market leader ADT North America's 11.3% in its commercial business for the trailing twelve months ended June 30, 2007.⁴ The Company's gross attrition in the ten months ending October 31, 2008 was 7.8% and its net attrition rate for that period was 4.2%, the difference resulting from price increases.

The Company was established as Verifier Inc. in 1995 by two former owners of Sonitrol. Verifier Inc. was acquired by Verifier Capital, LLC on March 7, 2006 for an enterprise value of \$7.7 million before transaction expenses, equivalent to 31.4 times the RMR of \$244,277. Since the acquisition, the Company has recruited additional management, maintained excellent relations with the five dealers acquired, purchased accounts from three additional dealers, expanded its customer base to two new asset classes, grown RMR at an annualized rate of 56.8% to \$553,000, opened an office in London, England, raised \$9.3 million by way of sale of additional Common Units and Guaranteed Payment Units, completed the reorganization of the various operating entities under a new holding company, Verifier Capital Holdings, LLC, and has completed a senior debt refinancing with First Capital and Full Circle for an aggregate facility of \$29 million, of which \$12.0 million was drawn as of October 31, 2008.

The Company's Market Opportunity

The commercial security alarm monitoring industry in North America is worth approximately \$11 billion per annum, and has enjoyed a compound annual growth rate of approximately 4% over the last five years. Total industry commercial RMR is estimated at over \$300 million. The market is highly fragmented with only three participants with commercial revenues in excess of \$100 million per annum and over 10,000 participants. The Company has decided to focus its activities on alarm accounts which can reasonably be expected to have lower than average attrition rates and on smaller dealers who have difficulties efficiently accessing the capital markets as a result of their size. The Sonitrol network has approximately \$13 million of RMR, of which the franchisor-owned operations accounts for \$5.2 million, leaving \$7.8 million with its franchisees. The Company expects to significantly increase its market share of the franchisee RMR from its current 5% both by increasing its share of RMR with its existing dealers, supporting them in their organic and acquisition growth initiatives and by adding new dealers through various programs including retirement and generational transfers.

The Company is cautious about extending its offering to conventional alarm dealers owing to increased competition in that market which adversely affects purchase multiples and the likely adverse effect such growth would have on its attrition rates. The Company has identified a subset of conventional US alarm dealers who mirror the operating performance histories of our Sonitrol dealers of comparable size. The Company is investigating several of these dealers and expects to develop a comparable financing solution in 2008 that suits their growing need for unique growth financing, and exit strategies to monetize the equity in their business.

¹ www.sonitrol.com / About Sonitrol/History

² Security Distributing and Marketing annual industry review and rankings, www.sdmmag.com

³ Management research

⁴ Net attrition rate is defined as (Lost RMR minus holdback RMR minus price increases) divided by average RMR in period.

⁵ Management research

⁶ Security Distributing and Marketing annual industry review and rankings, www.sdmmag.com

In 2006 and 2007, the Company investigated a number of alternate market niches into which the Company could aggressively expand its operations and concluded that entering the market in the United Kingdom satisfied its investment criteria for a number of reasons. The UK alarm market at \$2 billion is approximately 20% of the size of the US market in line with both population and GDP, and is by far the most developed market for security alarms in Europe. In the commercial sector, the insurance industry plays a critical role in mandating the purchase of high quality monitored alarm systems by the insured. This is a significant contributory factor to attrition rates in the UK, commercial market being more in line with Sonitrol at 8-9% than with the US average of 12%. However, unlike the US market, the banking sector in the UK has not developed security alarm industry expertise, which means that alarm companies are unable to release capital in their RMR for growth or other purposes, presenting us with an attractive pricing environment. Lastly, the Company's management and major shareholder's background with Automated Security Holdings PLC, which before its purchase by ADT in 1996 was the largest security alarm company in the UK, gives management confidence that the Company has sufficient local industry knowledge and contacts to successfully enter this market. In February, 2007, the Company opened an office and hired a Managing Director for its UK operations. After pursuing several potential deals throughout the year, the Company closed its first transaction in the UK in December, 2007, followed by a second acquisition in February, 2008 and a third in July, 2008. As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 4,000 security alarm accounts from its three wholly-owned subsidiaries, generating total RMR of \$191,273. Because the Company owns the sales and installation functions in these three subsidiaries, RMR is growing on a net basis in each of the subsidiaries as RMR from new installations exceeds lost RMR through cancellations.

In March, 2007, the Company expanded its US RMR channel beyond Sonitrol into video monitoring, via the acquisition of an affiliate, Hidden Eyes, LLC, doing business as Envera Systems ("Envera"). Institutional industry analysts estimate the US video surveillance market, which includes monitoring services and surveillance equipment sales and installation, at approximately \$3 billion, growing 15% annually. Although video surveillance is one of the fastest growing segments of the electronic security market, the primary focus has been on hardware sales and installation. The Company estimates that in the US, only Sonitrol and Westec Interactive have grown a significant base of video monitoring RMR, and have the highly trained staff in their monitoring centers capable of properly servicing video surveillance accounts. Envera has developed a complete video monitoring system that includes industry leading hardware coupled with proprietary monitoring software, with subscriber accounts monitored out of a brand new, state-of-the-art facility in Sarasota, Florida. As several of Envera's original clients are now entering their fifth year of continued service, the Company has confidence that this RMR channel will exhibit Sonitrol-like attrition rates while growing at a much faster rate than the traditional US and UK commercial alarm markets. To insure this growth benefits the Company, Envera is contractually obligated to sell the Company at least 50% of all its new RMR contracts generated over the next ten years at favorable pricing. Since the new monitoring facility was opened in late summer 2007, Envera has contracted with new clients for a total of approximately \$60,000 of RMR. As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned video monitoring accounts purchased from Envera, generating total RMR of \$41,000, while Envera has retained approximately \$15,000 of RMR on its own books, with the remainder in backlog for commissioning in Q4-08 and Q1-09.

The Company's Strategy

The Company believes that its 13 year operating history gives it unique insights into the critical success factors involved in stripping out the financial from the operating component of a security alarm monitoring contract. Its management has experience in the security alarm industry with many different business models, market segments and geographies. The Company intends to leverage this combined experience to grow its current asset base and seek out other asset classes with similar financial characteristics to generate value for its Common Unit holders, including management. With this end in mind, the Company is pursuing the following business strategies:

• Grow Market Share within the Sonitrol Franchise Network. The Company is using its good relationships with its current dealers, together with its industry knowledge, to develop discussions with other Sonitrol franchisees about how the Company can play a role in addressing their capital requirements. The Company is currently in discussions with one franchisee that has over \$100,000 of RMR, and is looking to retire and transfer the business to his children who are actively involved in the business. The retirement and generational transfer exit strategy is increasingly becoming a critical business issue for the aging owners of many of the franchises that were started in the 1970's and 1980's. The Company's business model is the ideal solution, as evidenced by our recent retirement-motivated transaction closed in March, 2008 for approximately \$100,000 in RMR.

⁷ Management research

- Expand into New Geographic Markets. The Company has demonstrated that the UK market represents a compelling opportunity to replicate its business model targeted at a larger addressable market, with significantly less competition. To date, The Company has completed transactions with three UK alarm dealers, and is pursuing several other prospects.
- Expand into New Product Markets. The Company is continually evaluating expansion opportunities into other asset classes that share financial characteristics with our Sonitrol, Envera, and UK contract pools. As the Company gains additional experience with conventional commercial alarm monitoring through one of its Sonitrol dealers, the Company has further confidence to enter the broader US conventional alarm market. As with the Sonitrol franchisees, the aging owners of the 20 and 30 year-old commercial security firms will find that the Company's custom financing structure achieves many of their conflicting goals of liquidating equity for retirement while still retaining control of the Company within the family or a closely-held group.
- Improve Back Office Efficiencies. Key to the Company's business plan is its ability to benefit from operating leverage as the Company grows its assets faster than its expenses, thereby generating more income attributable to its Common Unit holders. The Company is currently investing in <u>automated</u> new accounting systems and plans to invest in a new security business system with a total capital investment of approximately \$150,000. These capital projects are designed to improve efficiencies and thereby leverage the Company's existing overhead over more RMR.

The Company's Investors

The Company's largest Common Unit holder is Thomas Buffett, who owns 520,000 of the Company's Common Units. Mr. Buffett was one of the founders of Verifier Inc. and was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Automated Security Holdings PLC ("ASH") between 1976 and 1995. ASH purchased Sonitrol Corporation in 1992 and operated the business until Sonitrol was in turn purchased by Tyco International/ADT in 1996.

Several other key investors that have relevant experience and insight to contribute to the Board include: Irving Gutin, Verifier Director, former VP of Mergers and Acquisitions at Tyco International, 1979-2002; Michael Robinson, Verifier Director, former Treasurer of Tyco International, 1998-2003; Mike Hawker, over 25 years experience in the UK alarm industry and former Chairman of ASH; Dennis Stern, former General Counsel of Honeywell Security Monitoring ("HSM") and SecurityLink (purchased by ADT in 2001), 1999-2001; Daniel Holtz, Verifier Director, Managing Member of Walden Capital, a Miami-based investment firm.

As of October 31, 2008 the Company's directors and executive officers own 1,594,166 Common Units out of a total of 3,821,167 (41.7%), and the remaining 2,227,001 are owned by 19 private investors.

Company Information

The Company was formed in November, 2005 as Verifier, LLC, a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of Florida, acquired Verifier Inc. in March, 2006 and changed its name to Verifier Capital LLC in December, 2006. In April, 2008, the Company undertook a reorganization of its legal entities extracting the UK subsidiary, Verifier Capital Limited, and placing it alongside Verifier Capital LLC under a single parent, Verifier Capital Holdings, LLC. This new legal structure accommodates current and future senior lenders who preferred to have the US and UK based assets in two separate legal entities, and to facilitate additional equity raises into a holding company which has single ownership over the varied and growing operating entities under its control. This reorganization was completed in July, 2008.

RISK FACTORS

The Company made a loss before taxes in the year ended December 31, 2007. The Company has incurred losses since its acquisition of Verifier, Inc. in March 2006. This is a result of an increase in its interest expense associated with financing its purchase of the shares of Verifier, Inc., and the funding of the overhead expenses for the UK office in its first 11 months of operations prior to acquiring any RMR. These adverse movements have been mitigated by a sustained increase in revenues and gross profits in the US business resulting from accelerated purchases of RMR from existing and new dealers during the year. The Company anticipated incurring a net loss in fiscal year 2008 after accounting for one-time costs relating to its senior debt refinancing and the termination of its

former CFO. Since August, 2008 the Company has generated pre-tax income and anticipates growth in profitability in fiscal 2009.

Attrition rates may increase in the future. The purchase price for an acquired alarm account and the service fee the Company pays to its dealers are fixed by contract with those dealers. The only variable, therefore, that has a significant impact on an account's rate of return is the length of time the contract remains with us, the inverse of our attrition rate. While the Company has a 13 year track record of attrition rates of less than ten percent per annum, at which rate the Company believes it can generate attractive rates of return, there is no guarantee that attrition rates will remain at or around these levels. Were the Company's attrition rates to double in the future, the Company would be in breach of its covenants with its senior lender and would generate rates of return significantly below the Company's weighted average cost of capital.

The Company relies on its dealers to service and monitor its security alarm accounts. The Company subcontracts back to its dealers the service and monitoring obligations related to the security alarm accounts the Company owns for a fixed percentage of the RMR received by it. Performance of these obligations requires the service provider to be a franchisee in good standing with Sonitrol and ownership, or access to, specialized monitoring equipment provided by Sonitrol. The Company does not own the assets necessary to perform these service and monitoring obligations. While the Company has had a dealer default on its service agreement, the Company has not experienced a material breach thereof, and has not been required to source an alternate service provider in its 13 year history. The Company has contingency plans in place and has investigated the pricing and switching costs involved with moving its contracts to an alternate service provider. If the Company's existing contingency plan was not able to be implemented effectively, a secondary service provider would likely demand a higher service fee, reducing the Company's gross margins, and the transition of the alarm accounts to a secondary service provider would likely cause an upward spike in attrition.

The Company has only six employees, four of whom have uniquely relevant experience. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Controller have unique experience across the domestic and global security industry from their employment at the world market leader, ADT. The Company's UK Managing Director has over 15 years experience in the UK security industry and has long-standing relationships with many of our potential prospects in the UK. While the Company believes it maintains adequate key man insurance to protect it against their death or disability, its loss of their services for any reason would have an adverse effect on its business, as it would be difficult for us to find replacements of equal quality and experience.

The Company has a floating rate senior secured facility. The current \$25 million senior secured revolving credit facility is priced off one month LIBOR plus a margin of between 350 and 500bps. The Company does not believe it is economically prudent for it to hedge this exposure at this time and has not done so.

The Company has exposure to hurricanes in Florida and Alabama. Approximately 52% of the Company's US RMR is located in Florida and Mobile, AL. While the Company did not suffer any adverse attrition experience as a result of the hurricanes in 2004 and 2005, the Company is aware of other security alarm dealers who suffered material attrition in the New Orleans area arising out of Hurricane Katrina. The Company has explored using insurance to mitigate this risk, but has yet to receive an economically viable insurance proposal and therefore has no hedging against this exposure.

The Company has entered the United Kingdom market without a UK pound denominated debt facility. Prior to 2007, the Company had only done business in the United States with franchisees of Sonitrol. In order to accelerate the growth of its business, the Company has established operations in the United Kingdom, where the Company has purchased 4,000 conventional security alarm accounts, as of October 31, 2008. While the Company has a \$4 million line of credit for use in UK working capital and RMR acquisitions, the Company does not yet have an appropriately sized UK pound denominated debt facility. While the Company does not forecast repatriating cash from the UK operations to service the US debt facility in 2008, any significant repatriation would subject it to foreign currency fluctuation risk, which the Company has decided not to hedge at this time.

Risks Related to this Offering

There is no existing market for the Company's Guaranteed Payment Units or the Certificates. You may not be able to resell them. Currently there is no public market for the Company's GPUs or the Certificates. The Company cannot predict the extent to which investor or acquirer interest in them will lead to the development of a trading market or sale transaction or otherwise provide liquidity to you. The offering price has been determined by

discounting the anticipated cash flow from the GPUs at a discount rate equivalent to the rate ascribed to the Certificates as offered hereby.

DESCRIPTION OF TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES

On January 29, 2009 David L. Smith, as President of McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., (the "Trustee") executed the Declaration of Trust ("Declaration") of TDM Verifier Trust 07R ("Trust"), declaring that McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings was the Trustee of the Trust, establishing the Trust for the benefit of Certificateholders, and defining its purpose.

The Trust is intended to be a common law trust under the laws of the State of New York, with its principal office at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, which is the office of the Placement Agent. The initial capital of the Trust was established at \$100.00, and the purpose of the Trust is to lend the net proceeds of this offering to TDM Cable Funding LLC. The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 07 in the amount of \$1,982,500 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000 and legal and miscellaneous costs of approximately \$44,000. Under the Declaration, the Trustee acquires virtually complete discretion in the operation of the Trust, so long as that discretion is exercised within the purpose of the Trust. The Declaration limits the liability of the Trustee in two ways. The Trustee will not be liable in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Trustee will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the corpus of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to indemnification from the funds of the Trust (except in the case of willful misconduct or gross negligence) and to reimbursement for the reasonable and necessary fees and expenses incurred in the administration of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to indemnification and reimbursement from the corpus of the Trust before payments are made to Certificateholders.

The Declaration specifically provides that the Certificateholders shall not have any legal or equitable title to the Trust Estate, that no Certificateholder shall have a voice in the management or control of the property or affairs of the Trust, that the Trustee has no authority to require additional capital contributions from any Certificateholder, and that the Trustee is precluded from taking any action to make Certificateholders liable for the debts or obligations of the Trust.

Certificates

The Certificates will be issued under the Declaration, a copy of which is included as an exhibit to this Memorandum. The rights of the Certificateholders and the obligations of the Trustee as they relate to the Certificates will be governed by the Declaration. Reference should be made to the Declaration for its complete terms. The statements contained in this Memorandum concerning the Declaration are merely a summary thereof, do not purport to be complete, and do not modify or amend the Declaration.

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Memorandum, Certificates in the maximum amount of \$2,100,000 will be offered by the Trust. The Certificates will bear interest on the outstanding principal at a per annum rate of 9.00% with an 18 month maturity. Interest on the Certificates will be paid in quarterly installments on the first day of each quarter commencing May 15, 2009.

The Certificates will be issued and registered in the name of the purchasing Certificateholder(s). Interest on the Certificates will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Trustee.

Prepayments

The Certificates are not subject to a mandatory prepayment or redemption provision.

Registration

Each Certificate will be registered in the name of the purchaser thereof.

Limited Transferability of the Certificates

The Certificates are not freely transferable, and there is no secondary market for the Certificates and none is expected to develop. The Certificates should not be treated by Certificateholders as securities.

The Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. They may not be offered for resale in the absence of an opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Trust, that registration is not required.

Reports

Not later than January 31 of each year, the Trust will furnish to the Certificateholders statements of interest income on IRS Form 1099-INT and such tax information as shall be necessary in the preparation of such person's Federal income tax return.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Timothy M. McGinn, David L. Smith, and Thomas E. Livingston collectively own 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. and McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. is acting as the Placement Agent for this Offering and will receive an Underwriting Discount equal to three and one-half percent (3.5%) of the gross proceeds of this Offering. The Underwriting Discount was not negotiated at arms length.

Additionally, Mathew Rogers is the Chairman of the Board of the Company, owns 12.5% of the common units of the Company and is a Senior Managing Director of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc.

McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. may experience a conflict of interest in performing its obligation to exercise due diligence with respect to the statements made in this Memorandum and, therefore, its due diligence review cannot be considered independent. A qualified independent underwriter has not been retained by the Trust in connection with this offering. However, McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. believes that such due diligence has, in fact, been exercised.

There has been no independent counsel retained to represent the interests of the Certificateholders.

THE TRUSTEE

The names and positions of the directors and executive officers of the Trustee are as follows:

Name Timothy M. McGinn David L. Smith Position

Chairman of the Board and Director

President and Director

Thomas E. Livingston

Treasurer

The officers and directors of the Trustee will devote such time and effort to the business of the Trust as they may deem necessary and will actively be engaged in other business ventures.

The principal business occupations of the officers and directors during the past five (5) years are as follows:

Timothy M. McGinn, age 60, is the Chairman of the Board and Secretary of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. He has served as Chairman of the Board since the inception of this firm in 1980. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. McGinn served as Chairman of the Board and CEO of Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. a NASDAQ listed public company. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was with Paine, Webber, Jackson & Curtis. He has served on a number of corporate and charitable boards of directors and holds a bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Rochester Institute of Technology.

David L. Smith, age 63, is the President of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and a member of the Board of Directors. He has served in this capacity since 1980. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was with Paine Webber, Jackson & Curtis. Mr. Smith has served on a number of charitable and corporate boards of directors and holds a bachelor's degree from Hamilton College.

Thomas E. Livingston, age 50, is Sr. Vice President of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and a member of its Board of Directors. Mr. Livingston has been employed by McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. since 1986. Prior to joining McGinn, Smith he was affiliated with Prudential Bache Securities.

COMPENSATION AND FEES

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-RFT Document 4-21 Filed 04/20/10 Page 15 of 39

The Trustee of the Trust will serve without fee but will be reimbursed for expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with the Trust by TDM Cable Funding LLC.

SUITABILITY

Certificates will be sold only to investors who make a minimum purchase of \$10,000.00.

As described elsewhere in this Memorandum, the Certificates will generally be sold only to Accredited Investors as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; provided, however, that at the discretion of the Placement Agent and the Company, Certificates may be sold to up to 35 non-accredited investors. Included in the definition of "Accredited Investor", as defined in Rule 501, are the following:

- (a) any natural person whose individual net worth (including personal residences, furnishings and automobiles), or joint net worth with that person's spouse, at the time of purchase exceeds \$1,000,000;
- (b) any natural person who had an individual income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and who reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year; and
- (c) any entity in which all of the equity owners are Accredited Investors or which has total assets in excess of \$5,000,000.

Each investor accepted as an Accredited Investor will be required to represent that he satisfies the requirements of an Accredited Investor under Rule 501.

Among other things, each investor will be required to acknowledge and represent in the Subscription Agreement that: (i) he is purchasing the Certificates for his own account for investment and not with a view to the sale or distribution thereof; (ii) he is aware that the Certificates have not been registered for sale under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended, and that he will not transfer his Certificates in the absence of an opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Trust that the Certificates have been registered or that registration is not required under the Securities Act of 1933, as then in effect, and under applicable state securities laws, if any; (iii) he understands that this investment involves a high degree of risk; (iv) he has adequate means of providing for his current needs and foreseeable personal contingencies, has no need for liquidity in this investment; (v) all books, records and documents pertaining to this investment have been made available to him; and (vi) his overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to his net worth and his purchase of Certificates will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.

The Placement Agent and the Trust reserve the right to reject any subscription in its entirety for any reason or to allocate to any investor Certificates in an aggregate principal amount less than that for which he has subscribed. In the event a subscription is rejected, the investor's subscription check for his Certificates (or the amount thereof) will be returned, and in the event of a partial rejection, a pro rata amount of his subscription check for his Certificates will be refunded.

Prospective investors may be required to complete an Investor Representation Letter relating to the suitability of the investment for them, and the Trust may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as the Trust deems appropriate.

Any prospective investor will be afforded the opportunity to obtain from the Trust prior to the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein any additional information he may request necessary to verify the accuracy of the contents of this Memorandum and which the Trust possesses or can acquire without unreasonable effort or expense and to confer with, ask questions of, and receive answers from the Trust or persons authorized to act on its behalf, concerning the terms and conditions of the transaction, this memorandum and any additional information which has been requested and supplied to a prospective investor or his purchaser representative.

The purchase of Certificates may be suitable for individuals seeking an investment intended to provide income. An investment in Certificates may also be appropriate for corporations and trusts seeking investments which are structured to provide income. Nevertheless, this investment involves a number of significant risks, including no assurance that the Certificates will be paid and illiquidity. See "Risk Factors." Accordingly, the suitability of a

purchase of Certificates for any particular investor will depend upon, among other things, such investor's investment objectives and such investor's ability and willingness to accept the risks of an investment in the Certificates.

The Placement Agent Agreement between the Trust and the Placement Agent requires the Placement Agent to make diligent inquiries as required by law of all prospective purchasers in order to ascertain whether a purchase of Certificates is suitable for such person and to transmit promptly to the Trust all fully completed Subscription Agreements. By tendering payment for a Certificate and by acceptance of the confirmation of purchase, an investor represents that he or it satisfies any applicable suitability standards. See "Plan of Distribution."

TERMS OF THE OFFERING

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Memorandum, Certificates in the maximum amount of \$2,100,000 (the "Maximum Offering") and the minimum amount of \$250,000 (the "Minimum Offering") will be offered by the Trust.

The Certificates will be offered through McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Placement Agent, on a best efforts basis over a period of two months. The Placement Agent is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

All funds received by the Placement Agent from subscriptions for the Certificates will be placed in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account") maintained at Mercantile Bank, (the "Escrow Agent"). During the period that an investor's funds are held in the Escrow Account he will not be considered a Certificateholder.

With respect to the Certificates, no funding from the Escrow Account will occur until the Minimum Offering is subscribed for. If subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are not received within two months from the date of this Memorandum, subscriptions received with respect to the Certificates will be promptly returned in full to the investor by the Escrow Agent.

How to Subscribe.

The Certificates will be available for purchase in the minimum denomination of \$10,000.00 and increments of \$5,000.00. An investor who meets the qualifications set forth under "Who May Invest" and "Suitability" may subscribe for Certificates by completing, signing and delivering to the Placement Agent an executed copy of the Subscription Agreement contained in this Memorandum. All subscriptions must be accompanied by a check in the amount of the Certificate(s) purchased payable to "Mercantile Bank, Escrow Agent for TDM Verifier Trust 07R". Upon execution of a Subscription Agreement, the investor agrees to all of the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement. Subscriptions are, however, subject to acceptance by the Trust.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Trust is offering a maximum of \$2,100,000 of Certificates, and a minimum of \$250,000. The minimum investment by an investor is \$10,000.00 with increments of \$5,000.00. The Offering of Certificates will terminate on May 27, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. The Placement Agent, upon request from the Company, will consider an extension of the Offering for four (4) months, terminating on September 27, 2009 No Certificates will be sold unless subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are received and accepted within four (4) months of the date of this Memorandum. Subscriptions are subject to acceptance by the Trust. See "Suitability"; "Who May Invest".

During the course of the Offering, the subscription payments will be promptly forwarded by the Placement Agent to the Escrow Agent for deposit in the Escrow Account. For a description of the distribution of funds from the Escrow Account, see "Terms of the Offering".

The Certificates will be offered on a "best efforts" basis by the Placement Agent.

DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE

Reference is hereby made to the Declaration of Trust dated January 29, 2009 a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". Other than potential liability under the Act, neither the Trustee, nor any shareholder, manager, officer, employee, affiliate or agent of the Trustee may be held to any liability in connection with the Offering or the Certificates, or in connection with the affairs of the Trust, in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Trustee will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the corpus of the Trust.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion summarizes certain material anticipated federal income tax consequences relevant to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Certificates, but does not purport to address all potential consequences. The summary is for general information only and does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to particular investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or holders who receive special treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), such as insurance companies, financial institutions, and broker-dealers. In addition, this discussion does not describe any tax consequences arising out of foreign, state or local jurisdictions.

The discussion is based upon current provisions of the Code, applicable regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial authority and administrative rulings and practice. All of the foregoing is subject to change which may be retroactive and could affect the continuing validity of this discussion. There can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") will not take a contrary view, and no ruling from the IRS has been or will be sought.

The Trust has not obtained an independent tax opinion with regard to this Offering. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal, foreign, state, local and other tax consequences of purchasing, holding and disposing of the Certificates.

Interest Income to Certificateholders

It is anticipated that the Certificates will be issued at par value and, therefore, no original issue discount will arise with respect to the Certificates. Accordingly, a Certificateholder will be required to report interest on a Certificate as income for federal income tax purposes in accordance with such holder's method of accounting.

Gain or Loss on Disposition of Certificates

In general, the holder of a Certificate will recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, redemption or other disposition of a Certificate equal to the difference between the amount realized (except to the extent attributable to the payment of accrued interest) and the adjusted basis in his Certificate. Any gain or loss recognized will generally be a Trust gain or loss if the Certificate is held as a Trust asset and will be long-term gain or loss if the Certificate is held for more than one year.

Information Reporting

The Trust will report interest income to Certificateholders on IRS Form 1099-INT and as otherwise consistent with such treatment.

Backup Withholding

A Certificateholder may be subject to "backup withholding" at the rate of 31% (see IRC§3406(a)) with respect to interest paid on, or the proceeds of a sale, exchange or redemption of, such Certificates, unless such holder (i) is a corporation or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates this fact, or (ii) provides a taxpayer identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding, and otherwise complies with applicable exemption from backup withholding rules. Any amount withheld under these rules will be creditable against the Certificate-holder's federal tax liability.

THE FOREGOING DISCUSSION OF CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES IS FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND IS NOT TAX ADVICE. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER OWN TAX ADVISER WITH RESPECT TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE ACQUISITION, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF THE CERTIFICATES.

- TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS

The discussion in this Memorandum of each Exhibit set forth below is qualified in its entirety by reference to such Exhibit.

Exhibit "A" Declaration of Trust
Exhibit "B" Subscription Agreement
Exhibit "C" Investor Representation Letter

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information is available upon request to the Trust. Only additional information provided by the Trust may be relied upon. Prospective investors may request such information from the Placement Agent, McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., Fifth Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Ехнівіт "А"

DECLARATION OF TRUST

DECLARATION OF TRUST OF TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R

This Trust Agreement made as of the 29th of January, 2009, by and between McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., a New York corporation with an address at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street - 5th Floor, Albany, New York 12207 ("Trustee"), and those persons who acquire an interest herein by the execution and performance of a subscription agreement ("Subscription Agreement") attached as Exhibit B to the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated as of February 2, 2009 ("Confidential Memorandum").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Trustee desires to create a trust (the "Trust") for the purpose of enabling and authorizing a loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding, LLC.

WHEREAS, the Trustee is willing to accept the duties and obligations imposed hereby on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Trustee does hereby declare, that the Trustee will hold said property which it may acquire as such Trustee, together with the proceeds thereof in trust, to manage and dispose of the same for the benefit of the Certificateholders hereunder in the manner and subject to the stipulations herein contained.

ARTICLE I NAME

This Trust shall be designated and known as the "TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R", not incorporated, and under that name shall, so far as practicable, conduct all activities and execute all instruments in writing in the performance of the Trust.

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

The following words, terms and phrases used herein shall be given the meaning stated below in this Article, unless such meaning would be clearly in conflict with the purposes and spirit of this instrument.

"Certificateholder" shall mean the holder for the time being, according to the books of the Trustee, of the Certificates as evidenced by this Declaration and the Certificates issued by the Trustee.

"Permitted Investments" means a promissory note (the "Note") evidencing a loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding LLC. In addition, to the extent not employed for the loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding, LLC, temporary investments may be made in (1) certificates of deposit, in (2) short term AAA rated debt obligations regularly traded on a recognized exchange in the United States, or in (3) obligations issued by the United States Treasury or other obligations backed by the "full face and credit" of the United States.

"Share" shall mean a share in the beneficial interest of the property, assets, trust fund and corpus of the Trust.

"Transaction Documents" shall mean this Declaration of Trust and the Guaranteed Payment Units from Verifier Capital LLC (the "Company").

"Trust", "Trust Estate", and "Capital" shall mean the trust fund hereunder, consisting of the corpus of the estate; that is, all property, real, personal and mixed of every kind and description howsoever acquired and wherever situated, held under this Declaration of Trust by the Trustee.

"Trustee" shall mean the trustee herein named, and those who are or may be trustees.

ARTICLE III OFFICE OF THE TRUST

The principal office of this Trust shall be located at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, until changed by the Trustee. The principal office may be changed and branch offices established,

maintained, changed and discontinued at such times and places as the Trustee in its discretion may determine, with notice to the Certificateholders.

ARTICLE IV CAPITAL OF THE TRUST

The initial Capital of this Trust shall be One Hundred Dollars (\$100), paid to the Trustee concurrently with execution and delivery hereof. The Capital of the Trust or any part thereof, shall be held for the use and benefit of the Trust at such places and upon such terms as the Trustee may fix. The Trustee may not require any Certificateholder to make any contribution, in addition to the initial contribution made by such Certificateholder, to increase the Capital of the Trust. The Trustee shall receive such contributions to the Capital of the Trust as may be made by Certificateholders from time to time and apply the same for the purpose stated by Article V of this Trust Agreement.

ARTICLE V PURPOSE OF THE TRUST

The purpose of the Trust is to lend the proceeds derived from subscriptions from the Certificateholders to TDM Cable Funding, LLC for the purpose of retiring \$1,982,500 of Certificates related to the TDM Verifier Trust 07 which will mature on February 15, 2009 and to pay miscellaneous expenses aggregating approximately \$117,000.

- (1) The Trustee shall, as far as convenient and practicable, take and hold the title, both legal and equitable, to all property, however acquired under the terms hereof, in the name of the Trust. All conveyances of every kind and description, at any time made to or in the name of the Trustee of the Trust shall be held to vest the title to property so conveyed in the Trustee as such under this instrument, the title "TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R" being merely intended as a convenient designation of the Trustee hereunder.
- (2) The Trustee shall administer and dispose of all properties for the benefit of Certificateholders hereunder, as represented by their Certificates.
- (3) The Trustee shall manage, control and dispose of all the Trust Estate and its business affairs, of every kind and character within the authority granted hereunder.
- (4) The Trustee shall, in such capacity, exclusively and absolutely, have full, absolute and plenary rights, authority to pledge, exchange, mortgage and convey or otherwise dispose of property of every kind, character and description, real, personal and mixed, that may be part of the Trust Estate.
- (5) The Trustee shall have, in furtherance of the purposes of the Trust, the absolute right, power and authority to institute, maintain and defend actions, suits and proceedings in any court of law or equity either in the name of said Trust or in its name as Trustee thereof; to sell, transfer, assign and convey the whole or any part of the Trust Estate, invest and reinvest the proceeds thereof at any time in Permitted Investments provided that the Trustee shall have no obligation to invest such proceeds and shall not be accountable for any losses howsoever incurred; to collect any money, and pledge the assets of the Trust as security therefor; to execute and deliver in the manner herein provided all deeds, leases, mortgages, powers of attorney and other instruments in writing which the Trustee may deem necessary and proper in the exercise of the powers conferred hereunder; and to perform or withhold any act or thing of any kind or character, which in the Trustee's judgment may be necessary, proper or expedient, in carrying into effect the purposes of this Trust or any purposes specified in this Declaration of Trust, or in any amendments hereto, duly made and adopted.

ARTICLE VI LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE AND CERTIFICATEHOLDERS

Neither the Trustee, nor any of its officers or servants shall have any right, power or authority, under any circumstances, or in any event to act as the agent of the Certificateholders or to bind them personally or to impose any liability or obligation upon them in any way whatsoever with respect to this Trust Estate or otherwise. All

persons contracting with the Trustee or its officers, agents or employees shall look only to the Trust Fund for the payment of any damage, claim, judgment or decree, or of any money that may become due or payable in any way to them whether founded upon contract or tort, and neither the Trustee nor the Certificateholders, present or future, nor any of them shall as such be personally liable therefor or on any agreement or contract made by the Trustee, or by any officers, agents or employees of the Trustee, its officers or agents, or employees in connection with the Trust Estate. No amendment shall ever be made to this Declaration of Trust, increasing or enlarging the liability of either the Trustee or the Certificateholders as herein stipulated.

ARTICLE VII LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE, INDEMNIFICATION

The Trustee shall not be liable hereunder in any event or under any circumstances, for the acts or omissions of any other Trustee or of any officer, agent or employee, or any other person whatsoever, whether employed by such Trustee or not, or for any act or thing whatsoever, other than such Trustee's own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trustee in its individual capacity and as Trustee shall be indemnified by, and receive reimbursement from the Trust Estate against and from any and all liability, claim, damage or loss, suit, action, tax (including interest and penal ties), fine, penalty, cost and expense (including but not limited to legal fees and disbursements) of whatsoever kind and nature which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted at any time against the Trustee (in its individual or trust capacity) in any way relating to or arising out of the administration of the Trust Estate, or arising from any act or omission hereunder or under the Transaction Documents, except such as may arise from such Trustee's own willful misconduct or gross negligence. In addition, the Trustee shall be entitled to indemnification from the Trust Estate for any liability, obligation, loss, damage, penalty, tax, claim, action, suit, cost, expense or disbursement indemnified against pursuant to this Article VII and to secure the same the Trustee shall have a lien on the Trust Estate prior to the interest of the Certificateholders or any other person. Trustee shall file all tax returns and other governmental reports required to be filed by the Trustee in connection with the transaction contemplated hereby. Without limiting the foregoing, the Trustee shall under no circumstances be required to take any action or omit to take any action in the administration of the Trust Estate or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder unless the Trustee determines in its absolute discretion that indemnification in respect of such action or omission is available to it to its reasonable satisfaction, provided that the Trustee shall not be required to take or omit any action if the Trustee shall have been advised by its counsel that taking or omitting such action is contrary to the terms of any other agreement or instrument referred to herein or is otherwise contrary to law. The indemnities contained in this Article VII shall survive the termination of this Trust Agreement.

The Trustee shall not be entitled to receive compensation for its services from the Trust Estate. The Trustee shall not have any duty or obligation to manage, control, use, sell, dispose or otherwise deal with the Trust Estate or to otherwise refrain from taking any such action under or in connection with this Trust Agreement or the other agreements or instruments referred to herein except as expressly provided by the terms of this Trust Agreement, and no implied duties shall be read into this Trust Agreement against the Trustee. The Trustee shall not be answerable or accountable under any circumstances except for its own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trustee shall no duty to see to the payment or discharge of any tax, assessment or other governmental charge or any lien or encumbrance of any kind owing with respect to, or assessed or levied against, any part of the Trust Estate.

The Trustee shall at all times be entitled to request and receive instructions from the Certificateholders prior to being required to take or omit to take any action hereunder, provided that except as therein specified no further instruction is required for taking of the actions provided by the second sentence of Article V hereof.

THE TRUSTEE MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE VALUE, CONDITIONS, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR USE, VALIDITY, ENFORCEABILITY OF OR TITLE TO ANY PROPERTY AT ANY TIME CONSTITUTING PART OF THE TRUST ESTATE, and makes no representation or warranty as to the validity, legality or enforceability of this Trust Agreement or any agreement or instrument referred to herein, except that the Trustee hereby represents and warrants that this Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by one of its officers, who is duly authorized to execute and deliver such document on its behalf.

The Trustee shall not incur any liability to anyone in acting upon any signature, instrument, notice, resolution, request, consent, telegram, order, certificate, report, opinion, bond, or other document or paper believed

by it to be genuine and believed by it to be signed or sent by the proper party or parties. As to any fact or matter, the manner of ascertainment of which is not specifically described herein, the Trustee may for all purposes rely on a certificate signed by an officer of any Certificateholder as to such fact or matter, and such certificate shall constitute full protection to the Trustee for any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in reliance thereon. In the performance of its duties hereunder, the Trustee may act directly or through its agents or attorneys and may, at the expense of the Trust Estate, consult with counsel, accountants and other skilled persons to be selected and employed by it, and the Trustee shall not be liable for anything done, suffered or omitted by it in accordance with the advice or opinion of any such counsel, accountants or other skilled persons.

The Trustee or successor trustee may resign at any time without cause by giving at least 10 days' prior written notice to the Certificateholders, such resignation to be effective on the date specified in such notice. In such event, the Certificateholders shall appoint such new Trustee. If a successor trustee shall not have been appointed prior to the effective date of such resignation, the Trustee may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor trustee until such time, if any, as a successor trustee shall have been appointed. Any successor trustee shall execute and deliver to the predecessor trustee an instrument accepting such appointment and thereupon the predecessor trustee shall be released from its obligations hereunder and the successor trustee shall be vested with all rights, powers, duties and obligations of the Trustee hereunder, and the predecessor trustee shall transfer, deliver, and pay over, at the expense of the Trust Estate, any monies or other property then held by such predecessor trustee upon the Trust herein expressed.

All monies received hereunder by the Trustee shall constitute trust funds for the purpose of which they were paid or are held, but need not be segregated in any manner from any other monies and may be deposited and paid by the Trustee under such conditions as may be prescribed or permitted by law for trust funds.

ARTICLE VIII CERTIFICATEHOLDERS, LACK OF CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

No Certificateholder shall have any title, legal or equitable, to the Trust Estate, real or personal, held from time to time by the Trustee, or to any part thereof, or any right or voice in the management or control of the property or affairs of the Trust, each Certificateholder's interest being only such as is defined in this Declaration of Trust. No Certificateholder shall have the right to call for or demand or secure any partition or accounting during the continuance of this Trust. Its interest in this Trust shall be personal property, carrying only the right to payments pursuant to the Certificate. The Trust shall not be dissolved, nor affected by the death, insolvency or incapacity of the Certificateholder or one or more of the Trustees, nor shall such death, insolvency or incapacity entitle the legal representatives or heirs or assigns, voluntary holder, receiver or trustee to any accounting or to any action at law or in equity or otherwise, against the Certificateholders or Trustee, or against the Trust Estate, or any part thereof, but such legal representative, heir, assign, receiver, or trustee shall succeed to the rights of the deceased, insolvent, bankrupt or incapacitated Certificateholder, subject to this Declaration of Trust and any amendments hereto, and shall succeed to nothing more.

ARTICLE IX NO PARTNERSHIP

It is expressly declared that a trust, and not a partnership, is created and established by this instrument. Neither the Trustee nor any Certificateholder shall ever be deemed in any way whatsoever to be liable or responsible hereunder as partners or otherwise.

ARTICLE X CERTIFICATEHOLDERS; NO PERSONAL LIABILITY

No assessment or other personal liability or obligation shall, under any circumstances or in any event, be made or imposed upon the Certificateholders.

ARTICLE XI REFERENCE TO INSTRUMENT

The Trustee shall, as far as practicable, make reference to the Declaration in every written contract or undertaking that shall be entered into in the name of the Trustee or on behalf of, or relating to the business, affairs or property of this Trust.

ARTICLE XII RELATIONSHIP WITH THIRD PARTIES; NO INQUIRY

In no event and under no circumstances shall any one dealing with the Trustee be obligated either at law or in equity to see to the application of any funds or properties passing into the hands of the Trustee, there being no intention that purchasers of Trust property, or any other parties dealing with the Trustee, shall see that the purchase money is applied to the purposes of the Trust.

ARTICLE XIII INTEREST AND EARNINGS

The Capital of the Trust and the earnings and interest thereon shall be apportioned and distributed to the Certificateholders in accordance with this Declaration and the Certificates issued by the Trustee.

ARTICLE XIV AGREEMENT OF CERTIFICATEHOLDERS

The Certificateholders shall be held to have assented to this Declaration of Trust, and to all acts performed by Trustee within the authority granted by this Declaration.

ARTICLE XV TERM AND TERMINATION

Unless earlier terminated, as hereinafter provided, this Trust shall continue until the earlier of either (i) ten years from the date first hereinabove mentioned or (ii) the date when the Trust shall have distributed all of its Capital. The Trustee may otherwise terminate this Trust only with the unanimous written consent of the Certificateholders, provided, however, that any termination of the Trust shall not impair or have any effect whatever upon the contracts, obligations, and liabilities of said Trust Estate existing or outstanding at the time of such termination. At the expiration or upon the termination of the Trust, the Trustee shall proceed to wind up its affairs, liquidate its assets and distribute the same to the Certificateholders, without recourse or warranty of any kind, and for these purposes the then Trustee shall continue act until such duties have been fully performed. Upon completion of such duties, the Trustee shall be deemed discharged in full.

2009.	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have	hereunto set their hands and seals as of the 29 th day of January
		MCGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP., not in its individual capacity, except as specified herein, but solely as Trustee under this Declaration of Trust dated as of January 29, 2009.
		By: Timothy M. McGinn
	E OF NEW YORK) COUNTY BANY) SS.:	
persona to be th same in	ally appeared David L. Smith, personally know is individual whose name is subscribed to the	ne, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, wn to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the e on the instrument, the individuals, or the person upon behalf int.
		Notary Public
	•	

Ехнівіт "В"

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

THE CERTIFICATES WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS AGREEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. THEY MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR RESALE IN THE ABSENCE OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, SATISFACTORY TO THE TRUST, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED. IN ADDITION, THIS AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES CONTAIN SUBSTANTIAL RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY.

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R

(a New York Trust)

TO: TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (the "Trust"):

- 1. <u>Subscriptions</u>. I hereby subscribe for and agree to purchase the dollar amount of the Trust's Certificates (the "Certificates") as is set forth opposite my name acknowledging the minimum purchase to be Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000) and increments of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000).
- 2. <u>Payment</u>. I hereby agree to pay the Trust the purchase price for the Certificates by delivery herewith of a check in the face amount of the Certificates subscribed for payable to the order of "MERCANTILE BANK-Escrow Agent for TDM Verifier Trust 07R".
- 3. Restriction on Transfer of the Certificates. I understand that any resale or transfer of the Certificates by me is subject to substantial restriction, in that:
 - (i) The Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or applicable state securities laws. The Certificates cannot be sold or transferred by subscribers in the absence of an opinion of counsel that registration is not necessary. The Trust is not required to register the Certificates or to make any exemption from registration available.
 - (ii) My right to sell or transfer any of the Certificates will be restricted as follows: (1) restrictions against sale or transfer in violation of applicable securities law; (2) the requirement that I furnish an opinion of counsel that any proposed sale or transfer by me will not violate such laws; (3) the Trust must consent to the transfer of my Certificates; and (4) other restrictions and requirements, including such restrictions on transfer arising under state securities laws.
 - (iii) There will be no public market for the Certificates, and I may not be able to sell my Certificates. Accordingly, I must bear the economic risk of my investment for an indefinite period of time.
- 4. <u>Investment Representation</u>. I represent and warrant that I am acquiring my Certificates for my own account and not on behalf of other persons, and that I am acquiring my Certificates for investment purposes only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof; I understand that the Certificates will be offered and sold in a manner which would qualify the transaction for an exemption as a private placement under Rule 506 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Certificates may not be transferred or assigned except as provided herein.
- 5. <u>Subscription Irrevocable by Certificateholder</u>. This Subscription Agreement is not, and shall not be, revocable by me, except as provided by applicable state securities law requirements, and I intend to be legally bound by this Subscription Agreement.
- 6. <u>Subscription Subject to Acceptance or Rejection by the Trust</u>. The Trust, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to accept or reject this subscription at any time on or before the Closing.

- 7. Offering of Certificates Subject to Withdrawal. If the Trust does not receive subscriptions for Certificates in the minimum amount of \$250,000.00 before the Termination Date, as such date may be extended, the Offering of Certificates will be withdrawn and I understand that all my subscription documents and payments will be returned to me, with interest, less the cost of escrow, and without further obligation of the Trust.
- 8. Additional Representations and Warranties. I represent and warrant that:
 - (a) (i) I have received and have carefully read and understood the Private Placement Memorandum dated February 2, 2009 (the "Memorandum") given to me by the Trust in connection with the offering of Certificates.
 - (ii) I have been furnished with all additional documents and information which I have requested.
 - (iii) I have had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Trust concerning the Trust and the offering of Certificates and to obtain any additional information necessary to verify the accuracy of the information furnished.
 - (iv) I have relied only on the foregoing information and documents in determining to make this subscription, and the decision to acquire Certificates of the Trust has been made based upon my own evaluation of the merits and risks of the Trust.
 - (v) I will not offer to sell, or resell, the Certificates except in accordance with Section 3(ii) hereof.
 - (vi) I will require any purchaser to provide the Trust with his address.

- (b) I recognize that investment in the Certificates involves substantial risk factors, including those set forth under "Risks" in the Memorandum.
- (c) I have adequate means of providing for my current needs and possible personal contingencies, and I have no need for liquidity in my investment in the Certificates.
- (d) My overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to my net worth and my purchase of Certificates will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.
- 9. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. If I breach any agreement, representation or warranty I have made in this Subscription Agreement or any other document I have executed in connection with this offering, I agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Trust, the Trustee, or any officer or director of the Trustee and any person controlling either or any of them against any claims, actions, liability, loss, damage or expense (including attorney's fees and other costs of investigation and litigating claims) caused, directly or indirectly, by my breach.

10. <u>Subscriber Information</u> . This	Subscription and my Cer	tificates shall be recorded on	the Trust's books.
In Witness Whereof, I have execu	ted this Subscription Agre	ement this day of	
Print Name:	exact name in which title	is to be held	-
Printed Name	Tax ID #	Printed Name	Tax ID#
Signature: X	. ·	Signature X	
Address:			
		Amount Purchased: \$	

ACCEPTED BY TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R this	of 20
	McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. Trustee
	By:
	David L. Smith, Principal or Timothy M. McGinn, Principal

Ехнівіт "С"

INVESTOR REPRESENTATION LETTER

CONFIDENTIAL

PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE FOR INDIVIDUALS

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (A New York Trust)

The offering is being made pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"). One of the requirements of the Regulation is that the persons involved in the offering and sale of the securities must have reasonable grounds to believe either:

- (i) that the Offeree has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment; or
- (ii) the undersigned is acquiring the Certificates for investment purposes only and not with a view towards resale.

The undersigned is aware that this offering will involve Certificates for which no resale market exists, thereby requiring this investment to be maintained for the stated term of each Certificate.

Your answers will, at all times, be kept strictly confidential; however, each party who signs the questionnaire hereby agrees that the Trust may present this questionnaire to such parties as may seem appropriate in order to insure that the offer and sale of the Certificates to you will not result in violation of any exemption from registration under the Act which may be relied upon by the Trust in connection with the sale of the Certificates.

Please complete this questionnaire as thoroughly as possible and sign, date and return one (1) copy to the Trust c/o McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Please print or type:			
Name:			
Home Address:			
Date of Birth:			
Social Security No.:			
Occupation:			
Business Address:			
Business Telephone:			
Home Telephone:			
Communications should by	oe sent to:		
Home Address	or	Rusiness Address	

1.	What is your approximate net wor	h?
	950.00	0 0100 000
		0 - \$100,000 00 - \$250,000
	\$250.0	00 - \$230,000 00 - \$500,000
		00 - \$1,000,000
		r than \$1,000,000
	Greate	Tildii #1,000,000
2.	Did your individual income excee your spouse exceed \$300,000.00 in	d \$200,000.00 in 2007 and 2008, or did your joint income with a each of those years?
	Yes	No
3.	If the answer to #2 above is "yes",	do you expect to reach the same income level in 2009?
	Yes	No
4.	What was your approximate gross	income for calendar year 2008?
	\$25,00	0 - \$100,000
	\$100,0	00 - \$200,000
	\$200,0	00 - \$300,000
	\$300,0 Greate	00 - \$500,000 - than \$500,000
	Greate	r man \$300,000
5.	What will your approximate gross	income be for calendar year 2009?
	\$25.00	0 - \$100,000
		00 - \$200,000
		00 - \$300,000
	\$300,0	00 - \$500,000
	Greate	r than \$500,000
To th I agr	he best of my information and belief, the ree to notify the Trust promptly of any of	e above information is accurate and complete in all respects. changes which occur prior to sale of the Certificates.
Purc	haser	Date:
		•
Nam	ne (printed)	
Sign	ature	

CONFIDENTIAL

PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE FOR CORPORATIONS AND PARTNERSHIPS

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (A New York Trust)

The offering is being made pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"). One of the requirements of the Regulation is that the persons involved in the offering and sale of the securities must have reasonable grounds to believe either:

- (i) that the Offeree has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment; or
- (ii) that the Offeree and its Offeree Representative(s), together, have such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, that they are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment and that the Offeree is able to bear the economic risk of the invest.

The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assist TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (the "Trust") in complying with the above requirement.

Please contact McGinn, Smith & Co, Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207 (518-449-5131) if you have any questions in answering this questionnaire.

If the answer to any questions "None" or "Not Applicable", please so state.

Your answers will, at all times, be kept strictly confidential; however, each party who signs the Questionnaire hereby agrees that the Trust may present this Questionnaire to such parties as may seem appropriate in order to insure that the offer and sale of the Certificates to you will not result in violation of any exemption from registration under the Act which may be relied upon by the Trust in connection with the sale of the Certificates.

Please complete this Questionnaire as thoroughly as possible and sign, date and return one (1) copy to the Trust c/o McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Please print or type:

	Name of Organization:
	Business Address:
	Business Telephone:
	Federal ID Number:
1.	Was the organization formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Trust's Certificates?
	Yes No
2.	Does the organization possess total assets in excess of \$5,000,000?
	Yes No
3.	Does each equity owner of the organization:
	A. Have a net worth, exclusive of home, furnishings, and automobiles, of at least \$1,000,000?
	Yes No

		n excess of \$200,000 in 2007 and 2008, or joint income with f \$300,000 in each of those years, and have a reasonable come level in 2009?
	Yes	No
4. transfer	rable.	proposed to be offered will not be readily marketable or
	Yes	No
5. need fo	The organization can afford the corr liquidity in this investment.	emplete loss of its investments in the Certificates and has no
	Yes	No
6. placem	Stated below are the organization' nents during the past five years:	s previous investments in similar securities and other private
matters	ser of Certificates, I must have suf to be capable of evaluating the meri	anization satisfies certain criteria, in order to qualify as a ficient knowledge and experience in financial and business ts and risks of an investment in the Trust or I must engage an or for the purpose of this particular transaction.
I hereb	y represent, by initialing on the Repre	sentation A or Representation B line below, that:
A.	I have such knowledge and experevaluating the merits and risks of a Representative.	ience in financial and business matters that I am capable of n investment in the Certificates and will not require a Purchase
	•	Representation A.
B.	I have relied upon the advice of the and risks of an investment in the Ce	
		Representation B
Name		Name
Relatio	onship	Relationship
respect Certific	s. I agree to notify the Trust prom	belief, the above information is accurate and complete in all ptly of any changes which occur prior to sale of the Trust's
Purcha	ser:	Date:
Print N	Name of Organization	·
By:		

PURCHASER REPRESENTATIVE QUESTIONNAIRE

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R

The information contained herein is being furnished to TDM VERIFIER TRUST 07R (the "Trust") in order to facilitate a determination as to whether the undersigned may act as a Purchaser Representative, as such term is used in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"), in connection with the proposed offer and sale by the Trust of its Contract Certificates (hereinafter referred to as the "Certificates"). The answers below are correct, and the Trustee is entitled to rely on them in making the foregoing determination.

REPRESENTATIONS

I represent, warrant and covenant to you that:

- (a) the information contained herein is complete and accurate and may be relied upon by you in determining whether I may act as a Purchaser Representative pursuant to Regulation D in connection with offers and sales of the Certificates;
- (b) I will notify you immediately of any material change in any of such information occurring within ninety (90) days of the close of sale of the Certificates to the Purchaser;
- (c) (i) I have been designated, or will be designated, pursuant to the Purchaser Questionnaire of each Purchaser, as the Purchaser Representative or such Purchaser, in connection with evaluating the merits and risks of his prospective investment in the Certificates;
- (ii) I have disclosed or will disclose, to each Purchaser, in writing, prior to the designation referred to above, any material relationship between me or my affiliates and the Trust, which now exists or is mutually understood to be contemplated, or which has existed at any time during the previous two (2) years, and any compensation received as a result of such relationship, including any compensation received in connection the offering of Certificates herein; and
- (iii) I will deliver to each of you a counterpart of the disclosure statement referred to in (ii) above, and such other documents or information as each of you may request relating to the performance by me of my duties as a Purchaser Representative.

(Attach additional sheets if required)

Name:		
Age:		
Social Security No).:	
Names of offerees	I am representing:	
		
Empl. Iden. No.:_	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Position:		
Nature of Duties:		

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-RFT Document 4-21 Filed 04/20/10 Page 37 of 39

Business telephone num	ber: (·)	<u> </u>
Prior occupations or pos	itions during the past five years:	
,		

description of the types	of investments, the dollar amounts ave in financial, business and tax ories	involved, and the number of
General Investments (sp	ecify)	
Private Placements (spec	cify)	
Other Investments (spec	ify)	
	es or registrations (including bar adr s, broker-dealer or investments advi	
Registration	Year Received	Is License or Registration Still Effective?
My educational backgro	und, including degrees obtained and	date of attendance:
	of my affiliates now have or have have filiates, are not affiliates or the	
contemplated in the futu	re, except as follows:	

	connection with this transaction) are as follows	
	Neither I nor any of my affiliates own benefici	
		acement Memorandum dated February 2, 2009 Offeree.
	Other comments or disclosures:	
	Po	archaser Representative Signature
	T	ype Purchaser Representative Name
	Fi	rm Name
	St	reet Address
	C	ity and State
	<u>(</u> Te) elephone
	Acknowledgemen	t of Investor(s)
ese ⁄e	owledge receipt of the foregoing disclosures this ents my acknowledgment in writing to the Trust stated person serve as my Purchaser Representates.	that I have read the foregoing and desire that
	In	vestor's Signature
	. In	vestor's Signature
	 In	vestor's Signature

\$2,100,000 MAXIMUM \$250,000 MINIMUM

TDM Verifier Trust 07R

CONTRACT CERTIFICATES
EIGHTEEN MONTHS—9.00%

PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

DUE AUGUST 15, 2010

McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. Albany, New York

February 2, 2009

No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Memorandum and if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities to which it relates. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy such securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. Neither the delivery of this Memorandum nor any sale hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Trust since the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to its date. However, in the event of any material change, this Memorandum will be amended, supplemented or updated accordingly.

Table of Contents:

	<u>Page</u>
Who May Invest	3
Summary of the Offering	4
Risk Factors	5
Use of Proceeds	6
The Trust	6
Company Information	7
Description of Trust Agreement and	
the Certificates	12
Conflicts of Interest	13
The Trustee	13
Compensation and Fees	13
Suitability	14
Terms of the Offering	15
Plan of Distribution	15
Income Tax Considerations	16
Table of Contents of Exhibits	17
Additional Information	17

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

\$2,005,000

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R

MAXIMUM OFFERING \$2,005,000 MINIMUM OFFERING \$250,000 EIGHTEEN MONTHS: 9.00%

DUE DECEMBER 31, 2010

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (the "Trust") is hereby offering \$2,005,000 of Contract Certificates, entitled to interest at the rate of 9.00% per annum (the "Certificates"). Interest on the Certificates is payable in quarterly installments commencing October 1, 2009. See "Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement".

The Certificates will be issued and registered in the names of the purchasing Certificateholders. Interests in the Certificates will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement. See "Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement."

Price of Certificates 100%

See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of certain risks that should be considered by prospective purchasers of the Certificates offered hereby.

THESE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

	Price to the Public	Underwriting Discount	Proceeds to the Trust
	100%	3.5%	96.5%
Minimum Offering	\$250,000	\$8,750	\$241,250
Maximum Offering	\$2,005,000	\$70,175	\$1,934,825

The date of this Memorandum is July 6, 2009

MCGINN, SMITH & CO. INC. Capital Center • 99 Pine Street Albany, New York 12207

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>PAGE</u>
WHO MAY INVEST	3
SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING	
RISK FACTORS	5
USE OF PROCEEDS	6
THE TRUST	6
COMPANY INFORMATION	
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES	12
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	13
THE TRUSTEE	
COMPENSATION AND FEES	14
SUITABILITY	14
TERMS OF THE OFFERING	
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	
INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	16
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS	17
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	17

The Offering of Certificates will terminate on September 30, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. (the "Placement Agent"), upon request from Verifier Capital LLC (the "Company"), will consider an extension of the Offering for three (3) months, terminating on December 31, 2009. All subscriptions will be held in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account") at Mercantile Bank, Boca Raton, Florida (the "Escrow Agent") or such other financial institution as may be selected by the Trust in the event that the Escrow Agent is unable or unwilling to serve. Interest will be earned on funds held in the Escrow Account commencing three (3) days after the funds are deposited until the earlier of the termination of this Offering or the investment of such funds in Certificates. During the period that an investor's funds are held in the Escrow Account, he will not be a Certificateholder of the Trust. An investor's funds will not be held in the Escrow Account more than two (2) months before being invested in the Certificates, with Escrow Agent fees being deducted from escrow interest payable to investors. See "Terms of the Offering".

The Trust will furnish to investors certain reports, financial statements and tax information. See "Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement - Reports".

WHO MAY INVEST

The Certificates will generally be offered only to accredited investors ("Accredited Investors") as that term is defined under Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"). The Placement Agent. may, however, offer and sell Certificates to 35 or fewer non-accredited investors. With certain exceptions (primarily with respect to institutional investors) an Accredited Investor is an individual who (i) has a net worth (along and together with the Investor's spouse) in excess of \$1,000,000 or (ii) has had gross income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the past two years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year. Corporations, partnerships and other entities will be considered Accredited Investors if each of its beneficial owners individually qualify as Accredited Investors, or if such entity has total assets in excess of \$5 million. Prospective investors to be admitted as Accredited Investors will be required to represent that they satisfy the requirements of an Accredited Investor. See "Suitability".

The Certificates offered hereby are suitable only for those investors whose business and investment experience makes them capable of evaluating the merits and risks of their prospective investment in the Certificates, who can afford to bear the economic risk of their investment for an indefinite period of time and have no need for liquidity in this investment. Each investor will be required to represent in the Subscription Agreement that he is acquiring the Certificates for his own account as principal for investment, and not with a view to resale or distribution, and that he is aware that (a) his transfer rights are restricted; and (b) that the Certificates have not been registered under the Act, and therefore cannot be resold unless they are so registered or unless exemption from registration is available with respect to such transaction. (See "Suitability".) Since there can be no assurance that the Contracts will generate sufficient income necessary to pay the Certificates, investment in the Certificates is suited for persons who have substantial income from other sources. See "Risk Factors".

The Trust may require prospective investors to complete a questionnaire relating to the suitability on the investment for them, and may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as it deems appropriate. The Trust and Placement Agent will collectively have the sole discretion regarding sale of the Certificates to any prospective investor. The Trust and Placement Agent reserve the right to reject any subscription for any reason and to allocate to any investor a smaller amount of Certificates, or fractions thereof, than that for which he has subscribed. See "Suitability".

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Memorandum and the exhibits attached to the Memorandum.

The Trust

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (the "Trust") is a common law trust formed under the laws of the State of New York on June 30, 2009. The Trustee of the Trust is McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., a New York corporation (the "Trustee"). The Trustee will have no liability in connection with the Certificates or the affairs of the Trust in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Although Certificateholders will have recourse to all assets of the Trust, which include an assignment of 1,385,000 face value of Guaranteed Payment Units("GPUs") issued by the Company, which when discounted to a present value at the blended interest rates contemplated by this offering, will have a value of \$2,005,000.

The Trust will advance funds to TDM Cable Funding LLC, a New York limited liability company ("TDM"). TDM has purchased \$1,385,000 of face value Guaranteed Payment Units from the Company.

The Company provides capital to security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts at a multiple of recurring monthly revenue ("RMR") and subcontracting back to such dealers service and monitoring obligations in respect of the purchased accounts for a fixed percentage of RMR received from the underlying customers (the "Subcontract Fee"). As of December 31, 2008, the Company owned 8,000 security alarm accounts purchased from independent security alarm dealers, generating total RMR of \$625,000. The average purchase price paid for accounts was twenty-six (26) times RMR and the average Subcontract Fee was 35%.

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 08 in the amount of \$1,935,900 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000.

The Investment

Certificateholders will be issued a Certificate with a 18 month maturity (December 31, 2010). The rate of interest payable will be 9.00% per annum, payable quarterly.

Certificates may be purchased in denominations of \$5,000 with a minimum purchase of \$10,000.

Risk Factors

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully, among others, the following risk factors:

- No assurance that the Certificates will be paid;
- No market for resale of Certificates;
- Illiquid collateral;
- · Potential for Guaranteed Payment Unit defaults;
- Potential conflicts of interest in connection with the acquisition of the assets to be consigned to the Trust;
- No amortization of principal.

Description of the Certificates and the Trust Agreement

The Certificates will be issued under a Declaration of Trust by McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Trustee. The Certificates will be available for purchase in denominations of \$5,000.00 with a minimum investment of \$10,000.00. The Certificates will be registered in the name of the individual Certificateholders. See "Description of the Trust Agreement and the Certificates."

The Certificates will bear interest at a per annum rate of 9.00%. Interest will accrue commencing on the Closing Date for the purchase of such Certificate and will be payable to Certificateholders quarterly on the first day of each quarter commencing October 1, 2009.

Use of Proceeds

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 08 in the amount of \$1,935,000 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000.

Income Tax Considerations

The Certificates will be treated as indebtedness of the Trust for federal income tax purposes. Each Certificateholder will generally be required to report interest income on a Certificate in accordance with such Certificateholder's method of accounting. Each prospective investor should consult with his or her own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Certificates.

RISK FACTORS

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully all of the information contained in this Memorandum and, in particular, the factors discussed below. The following summary is not intended to state in full or replace portions of this Memorandum that discuss these factors and others in greater depth. Although the risk factors are intended to be presented in order of their materiality to investors, such order may not be indicative of their relative importance to any particular investor.

Limitation of Transfer of Certificates

The Certificates may not be offered for resale to any person without the consent of the Trust. Prior to this offering, there has been no market for the Certificates of the Trust. Each investor will be required to represent that his purchase of the Certificates will be for investment only and not with a view towards the resale or distribution thereof. A Certificateholder will not have any right to sell, transfer, exchange or otherwise dispose of his Certificates, or to cause a security interest to be created therein, unless the Trust has received evidence satisfactory to it that such disposition or creation of a security interest is not in violation of federal or state securities laws. The Certificates have not been registered or qualified under the Act or applicable state securities laws and may not be sold or transferred without such registration or qualification or an exemption therefrom.

Potential for Guaranteed Payment Unit Defaults

Default by the Company under the terms of the GPUs would result in an interruption in available cash distributed to Certificateholders and could cause significant loss of principal.

No Monthly Amortization Schedule

There will be no amortization of the principal arising out of the cash flow generated from the GPUs. It is anticipated that each of the maturities will be refinanced at approximately similar interest rates until the Company redeems the GPUs. It is currently contemplated by the Company that such redemption will occur after six years.

No Independent Counsel to Investors

Purchases of the Certificates offered here by will not be afforded the services of independent counsel. Disclosure of material facts and risks has been reviewed by counsel to the underwriter.

Lack of Financial Statements

This Memorandum does not include financial statements for the Trust. The Trust is newly formed.

Conflicts of Interest

The Trust will acquire the GPUs from the Company. The Trustee of the Trust is McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Placement Agent for this offering is McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., the principals of TDM Cable Funding LLC are Timothy McGinn, David Smith, and Matthew Rogers. Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith are principals of McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. and McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. Mr. Rogers is the Chairman of the Board of

the Company and is the beneficial owner of 12.50% of the common units of the Company and is a principal of TDM Cable Funding, LLC. Further, Mr. Rogers is a Senior Managing Director of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. Although there is no specified formula for determining the purchase price paid for the assets of the Trust, and Certificateholders will not have a voice in the amount paid by the Trust, the Trustee will purchase the assets only when TDM represents to the Trustee that the price of such assets will allow the Trust to pay its operating expenses and discharge its obligations with respect to the Certificates.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Certificates offered hereby, after deducting the Underwriting Discount, will be approximately \$1,935,000 (96.5% of gross proceeds) if the Maximum Offering for the Certificates is achieved.

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Certificates offered hereby, after deducting the Underwriting Discount, will be approximately \$241,250 (96.5% of gross proceeds) if the Minimum Offering for the Certificates is achieved.

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 08 in the amount of \$1,935,000 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000.

Maximum Offering	
Sources	
Maximum Net Proceeds	\$1,934,825
Trustee Contributions.	175
Total Sources	\$1,935,000
Uses by TDM Verifier Trust 08R	
Certificate Retirement	1,935,000
Total uses by TDM Verifier Trust 08R	\$1,935,000
Minimum Offering	
Sources	•
Minimum Net Proceeds	\$241,250
Uses by TDM Verifier Trust 08R	
Certificate Retirement	241,250
Total uses by TDM Verifier Trust 08R	\$241.250

THE TRUST

The Trust is a common law trust formed under the laws of the State of New York on June 30, 2009. The principal executive office of the Trust is located at c/o McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., Trustee, Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, and its telephone number is 518-449-5131. McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. is the Trustee of the Trust. The owners of all issued and out-standing common stock of the Trustee are Timothy M. McGinn (30%), David L. Smith (50%), and Thomas E. Livingston (20%). McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. is the Placement Agent for the offering.

Business of the Trust

The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire the certificates TDM Verifier Trust 08 in the amount of \$1,935,000 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000.

BUSINESS OF VERIFIER CAPITAL LLC

The Company provides capital to security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts at an agreed multiple of recurring monthly revenue ("RMR") and subcontracting back to them service and monitoring obligations in respect of the purchased accounts for a fixed percentage of RMR received from the underlying customers (the "Subcontract Fee"). As of December 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 8,000 security alarm accounts purchased from independent dealers, generating total RMR of \$625,000. The average purchase price paid for accounts in fiscal year 2008 was 26 times RMR and the average Subcontract Fee was 35% of the RMR.

The Company anticipates 2009 revenues of \$11 million and EBITDA of \$3.0 million as compared to 2007 revenues of \$11 million and EBITDA of \$2.2 million.

Trailing three months (March, April, May) actual EBITDA was \$706,000 which annualizes to a \$3.1 million runrate EBITDA.

The Company has significantly improved its liquidity and capital position over the last 12 months. The Company replaced a \$10 million line of credit priced at 9% with a \$29 million line currently priced at 5.64%. The Company currently has \$16 million available under the facility.

The Company has closed and integrated four acquisitions during the course of 2008, increasing RMR from \$369,000 to \$625,000.

As of November 2008, the Company has seen no adverse effect on either attrition rates or cash collections as a result of the global credit crisis.

The Company believes it is well positioned to continue its growth given:

- 1. Substantial undrawn credit facility;
- 2. Estimated 2009 free cash flow in excess of \$1 million;
- 3. Investment in business and accounting systems which will increase the scalability of the operating platform and;
- 4. A favorable effect on acquisition pricing resulting in high incremental rates of returns as a result of worldwide macroeconomic conditions.

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company

The Company provides capital to security alarm dealers by purchasing some or all of their security alarm monitoring accounts at an agreed multiple of recurring monthly revenue ("RMR") and subcontracting back to them service and monitoring obligations in respect of the purchased accounts for a fixed percentage of RMR received from the underlying customers(the "Subcontract Fee") . As of December 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 8,000 security alarm accounts purchased from eight independent dealers and two wholly-owned dealers, generating total RMR of \$625,000 up from \$372,500 on December 31, 2007. The average purchase price paid for accounts in fiscal year 2007 was 26 times RMR and the average Subcontract Fee was 35% of the RMR. This implies a payback period of 40 months before attrition or account cancellation and overhead expense, on assets with useful lives in excess of ten years.

To date, the Company has primarily financed franchisees of Sonitrol Corporation ("Sonitrol"), which manufactures and distributes a proprietary range of security alarms that use a proprietary audio intrusion technology, instead of passive infra-red detectors and contact switches, as the primary means of detecting an intrusion. Following detection, a communications session is opened between the control panel at the subscriber's premises and an operator at the central monitoring station ("CMS") during which the operator listens into the system and determines the appropriate response. The CMS operator's ability to use additional information from the system, after the initial activation, is called "verification" by the alarm industry, from which the Company has derived its company name. Verified systems were developed in order to improve police response to alarm systems, which suffers as confidence in alarms is undermined by repeated false alarms. When an operator using a verified system determines that there is an intrusion in progress, whether through use of audio or video inputs, the probability of the police making an arrest

at the site increases exponentially. This increase significantly reduces response time, thereby delivering subscribers with an enhanced level of protection. Sonitrol is the North American market leader in verified systems and claims 157,000 apprehensions¹ from its systems since the business was founded in 1963. In addition to its product development, manufacturing and franchising operations, Sonitrol is a significant operator of alarm systems across the United States with approximately \$5 million of RMR and was ranked number 9 in the 2007 Security Distribution & Marketing 100.² As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 4,100 security alarm accounts purchased from five Sonitrol dealers, generating total RMR of \$379,000.

The enhanced features provided by verified systems means that they cost significantly more than conventional systems both to install and to monitor. The average monthly charge for monitoring a conventional security alarm in the United States is approximately \$30 and the average for a Sonitrol system is approximately \$90, with similar premiums being charged at the installation stage.³ As a result, Sonitrol systems are almost exclusively sold to non-residential customers with a demonstrated need for intruder protection, who make significant cash investments in their installation. These factors mean that the attrition rate on Sonitrol systems is consistently lower than that for conventional systems. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company's gross attrition rate was 10.3%, as compared with market leader ADT North America's 11.3% in its commercial business for the trailing twelve months ended June 30, 2007.⁴ The Company's gross attrition in the ten months ending October 31, 2008 was 7.8% and its net attrition rate for that period was 4.2%, the difference resulting from price increases.

The Company was established as Verifier Inc. in 1995 by two former owners of Sonitrol. Verifier Inc. was acquired by Verifier Capital, LLC on March 7, 2006 for an enterprise value of \$7.7 million before transaction expenses, equivalent to 31.4 times the RMR of \$244,277. Since the acquisition, the Company has recruited additional management, maintained excellent relations with the five dealers acquired, purchased accounts from three additional dealers, expanded its customer base to two new asset classes, grown RMR at an annualized rate of 56.8% to \$553,000, opened an office in London, England, raised \$9.3 million by way of sale of additional Common Units and Guaranteed Payment Units, completed the reorganization of the various operating entities under a new holding company, Verifier Capital Holdings, LLC, and has completed a senior debt refinancing with First Capital and Full Circle for an aggregate facility of \$29 million, of which \$12.0 million was drawn as of October 31, 2008.

The Company's Market Opportunity

The commercial security alarm monitoring industry in North America is worth approximately \$11 billion per annum, and has enjoyed a compound annual growth rate of approximately 4% over the last five years. Total industry commercial RMR is estimated at over \$300 million. The market is highly fragmented with only three participants with commercial revenues in excess of \$100 million per annum and over 10,000 participants. The Company has decided to focus its activities on alarm accounts which can reasonably be expected to have lower than average attrition rates and on smaller dealers who have difficulties efficiently accessing the capital markets as a result of their size. The Sonitrol network has approximately \$13 million of RMR, of which the franchisor-owned operations accounts for \$5.2 million, leaving \$7.8 million with its franchisees. The Company expects to significantly increase its market share of the franchisee RMR from its current 5% both by increasing its share of RMR with its existing dealers, supporting them in their organic and acquisition growth initiatives and by adding new dealers through various programs including retirement and generational transfers.

The Company is cautious about extending its offering to conventional alarm dealers owing to increased competition in that market which adversely affects purchase multiples and the likely adverse effect such growth would have on its attrition rates. The Company has identified a subset of conventional US alarm dealers who mirror the operating performance histories of our Sonitrol dealers of comparable size. The Company is investigating several of these dealers and expects to develop a comparable financing solution in 2008 that suits their growing need for unique growth financing, and exit strategies to monetize the equity in their business.

¹ www.sonitrol.com / About Sonitrol/History

² Security Distributing and Marketing annual industry review and rankings, www.sdmmag.com

³ Management research

⁴ Net attrition rate is defined as (Lost RMR minus holdback RMR minus price increases) divided by average RMR in period.

⁵ Management research

⁶ Security Distributing and Marketing annual industry review and rankings, www.sdmmag.com

In 2006 and 2007, the Company investigated a number of alternate market niches into which the Company could aggressively expand its operations and concluded that entering the market in the United Kingdom satisfied its investment criteria for a number of reasons. The UK alarm market at \$2 billion is approximately 20% of the size of the US market in line with both population and GDP, and is by far the most developed market for security alarms in Europe. In the commercial sector, the insurance industry plays a critical role in mandating the purchase of high quality monitored alarm systems by the insured. This is a significant contributory factor to attrition rates in the UK, commercial market being more in line with Sonitrol at 8-9% than with the US average of 12%. However, unlike the US market, the banking sector in the UK has not developed security alarm industry expertise, which means that alarm companies are unable to release capital in their RMR for growth or other purposes, presenting us with an attractive pricing environment. Lastly, the Company's management and major shareholder's background with Automated Security Holdings PLC, which before its purchase by ADT in 1996 was the largest security alarm company in the UK, gives management confidence that the Company has sufficient local industry knowledge and contacts to successfully enter this market. In February, 2007, the Company opened an office and hired a Managing Director for its UK operations. After pursuing several potential deals throughout the year, the Company closed its first transaction in the UK in December, 2007, followed by a second acquisition in February, 2008 and a third in July, 2008. As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned approximately 4,000 security alarm accounts from its three wholly-owned subsidiaries, generating total RMR of \$191,273. Because the Company owns the sales and installation functions in these three subsidiaries, RMR is growing on a net basis in each of the subsidiaries as RMR from new installations exceeds lost RMR through cancellations.

In March, 2007, the Company expanded its US RMR channel beyond Sonitrol into video monitoring, via the acquisition of an affiliate, Hidden Eyes, LLC, doing business as Envera Systems ("Envera"). Institutional industry analysts estimate the US video surveillance market, which includes monitoring services and surveillance equipment sales and installation, at approximately \$3 billion, growing 15% annually. Although video surveillance is one of the fastest growing segments of the electronic security market, the primary focus has been on hardware sales and installation. The Company estimates that in the US, only Sonitrol and Wester Interactive have grown a significant base of video monitoring RMR, and have the highly trained staff in their monitoring centers capable of properly servicing video surveillance accounts. Envera has developed a complete video monitoring system that includes industry leading hardware coupled with proprietary monitoring software, with subscriber accounts monitored out of a brand new, state-of-the-art facility in Sarasota, Florida. As several of Envera's original clients are now entering their fifth year of continued service, the Company has confidence that this RMR channel will exhibit Sonitrol-like attrition rates while growing at a much faster rate than the traditional US and UK commercial alarm markets. To insure this growth benefits the Company, Envera is contractually obligated to sell the Company at least 50% of all its new RMR contracts generated over the next ten years at favorable pricing. Since the new monitoring facility was opened in late summer 2007, Envera has contracted with new clients for a total of approximately \$60,000 of RMR. As of October 31, 2008, the Company owned video monitoring accounts purchased from Envera, generating total RMR of \$41,000, while Envera has retained approximately \$15,000 of RMR on its own books, with the remainder in backlog for commissioning in Q4-08 and Q1-09.

The Company's Strategy

The Company believes that its 13 year operating history gives it unique insights into the critical success factors involved in stripping out the financial from the operating component of a security alarm monitoring contract. Its management has experience in the security alarm industry with many different business models, market segments and geographies. The Company intends to leverage this combined experience to grow its current asset base and seek out other asset classes with similar financial characteristics to generate value for its Common Unit holders, including management. With this end in mind, the Company is pursuing the following business strategies:

• Grow Market Share within the Sonitrol Franchise Network. The Company is using its good relationships with its current dealers, together with its industry knowledge, to develop discussions with other Sonitrol franchisees about how the Company can play a role in addressing their capital requirements. The Company is currently in discussions with one franchisee that has over \$100,000 of RMR, and is looking to retire and transfer the business to his children who are actively involved in the business. The retirement and generational transfer exit strategy is increasingly becoming a critical business issue for the aging owners of many of the franchises that were started in the 1970's and 1980's. The Company's business model is the ideal solution, as evidenced by our recent retirement-motivated transaction closed in March, 2008 for approximately \$100,000 in RMR.

⁷ Management research

- Expand into New Geographic Markets. The Company has demonstrated that the UK market represents a compelling opportunity to replicate its business model targeted at a larger addressable market, with significantly less competition. To date, The Company has completed transactions with three UK alarm dealers, and is pursuing several other prospects.
- Expand into New Product Markets. The Company is continually evaluating expansion opportunities into other asset classes that share financial characteristics with our Sonitrol, Envera, and UK contract pools. As the Company gains additional experience with conventional commercial alarm monitoring through one of its Sonitrol dealers, the Company has further confidence to enter the broader US conventional alarm market. As with the Sonitrol franchisees, the aging owners of the 20 and 30 year-old commercial security firms will find that the Company's custom financing structure achieves many of their conflicting goals of liquidating equity for retirement while still retaining control of the Company within the family or a closely-held group.
- Improve Back Office Efficiencies. Key to the Company's business plan is its ability to benefit from operating leverage as the Company grows its assets faster than its expenses, thereby generating more income attributable to its Common Unit holders. The Company is currently investing in <u>automated</u> new accounting systems and plans to invest in a new security business system with a total capital investment of approximately \$150,000. These capital projects are designed to improve efficiencies and thereby leverage the Company's existing overhead over more RMR.

The Company's Investors

The Company's largest Common Unit holder is Thomas Buffett, who owns 520,000 of the Company's Common Units. Mr. Buffett was one of the founders of Verifier Inc. and was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Automated Security Holdings PLC ("ASH") between 1976 and 1995. ASH purchased Sonitrol Corporation in 1992 and operated the business until Sonitrol was in turn purchased by Tyco International/ADT in 1996.

Several other key investors that have relevant experience and insight to contribute to the Board include: Irving Gutin, Verifier Director, former VP of Mergers and Acquisitions at Tyco International, 1979-2002; Michael Robinson, Verifier Director, former Treasurer of Tyco International, 1998-2003; Mike Hawker, over 25 years experience in the UK alarm industry and former Chairman of ASH; Dennis Stern, former General Counsel of Honeywell Security Monitoring ("HSM") and SecurityLink (purchased by ADT in 2001), 1999-2001; Daniel Holtz, Verifier Director, Managing Member of Walden Capital, a Miami-based investment firm.

As of October 31, 2008 the Company's directors and executive officers own 1,594,166 Common Units out of a total of 3,821,167 (41.7%), and the remaining 2,227,001 are owned by 19 private investors.

Company Information

The Company was formed in November, 2005 as Verifier, LLC, a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of Florida, acquired Verifier Inc. in March, 2006 and changed its name to Verifier Capital LLC in December, 2006. In April, 2008, the Company undertook a reorganization of its legal entities extracting the UK subsidiary, Verifier Capital Limited, and placing it alongside Verifier Capital LLC under a single parent, Verifier Capital Holdings, LLC. This new legal structure accommodates current and future senior lenders who preferred to have the US and UK based assets in two separate legal entities, and to facilitate additional equity raises into a holding company which has single ownership over the varied and growing operating entities under its control. This reorganization was completed in July, 2008.

RISK FACTORS

The Company made a loss before taxes in the year ended December 31, 2007. The Company has incurred losses since its acquisition of Verifier, Inc. in March 2006. This is a result of an increase in its interest expense associated with financing its purchase of the shares of Verifier, Inc., and the funding of the overhead expenses for the UK office in its first 11 months of operations prior to acquiring any RMR. These adverse movements have been mitigated by a sustained increase in revenues and gross profits in the US business resulting from accelerated purchases of RMR from existing and new dealers during the year. The Company anticipated incurring a net loss in fiscal year 2008 after accounting for one-time costs relating to its senior debt refinancing and the termination of its

10

former CFO. Since August, 2008 the Company has generated pre-tax income and anticipates growth in profitability in fiscal 2009.

Attrition rates may increase in the future. The purchase price for an acquired alarm account and the service fee the Company pays to its dealers are fixed by contract with those dealers. The only variable, therefore, that has a significant impact on an account's rate of return is the length of time the contract remains with us, the inverse of our attrition rate. While the Company has a 13 year track record of attrition rates of less than ten percent per annum, at which rate the Company believes it can generate attractive rates of return, there is no guarantee that attrition rates will remain at or around these levels. Were the Company's attrition rates to double in the future, the Company would be in breach of its covenants with its senior lender and would generate rates of return significantly below the Company's weighted average cost of capital.

The Company relies on its dealers to service and monitor its security alarm accounts. The Company subcontracts back to its dealers the service and monitoring obligations related to the security alarm accounts the Company owns for a fixed percentage of the RMR received by it. Performance of these obligations requires the service provider to be a franchisee in good standing with Sonitrol and ownership, or access to, specialized monitoring equipment provided by Sonitrol. The Company does not own the assets necessary to perform these service and monitoring obligations. While the Company has had a dealer default on its service agreement, the Company has not experienced a material breach thereof, and has not been required to source an alternate service provider in its 13 year history. The Company has contingency plans in place and has investigated the pricing and switching costs involved with moving its contracts to an alternate service provider. If the Company's existing contingency plan was not able to be implemented effectively, a secondary service provider would likely demand a higher service fee, reducing the Company's gross margins, and the transition of the alarm accounts to a secondary service provider would likely cause an upward spike in attrition.

The Company has only six employees, four of whom have uniquely relevant experience. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Controller have unique experience across the domestic and global security industry from their employment at the world market leader, ADT. The Company's UK Managing Director has over 15 years experience in the UK security industry and has long-standing relationships with many of our potential prospects in the UK. While the Company believes it maintains adequate key man insurance to protect it against their death or disability, its loss of their services for any reason would have an adverse effect on its business, as it would be difficult for us to find replacements of equal quality and experience.

The Company has a floating rate senior secured facility. The current \$25 million senior secured revolving credit facility is priced off one month LIBOR plus a margin of between 350 and 500bps. The Company does not believe it is economically prudent for it to hedge this exposure at this time and has not done so.

The Company has exposure to hurricanes in Florida and Alabama. Approximately 52% of the Company's US RMR is located in Florida and Mobile, AL. While the Company did not suffer any adverse attrition experience as a result of the hurricanes in 2004 and 2005, the Company is aware of other security alarm dealers who suffered material attrition in the New Orleans area arising out of Hurricane Katrina. The Company has explored using insurance to mitigate this risk, but has yet to receive an economically viable insurance proposal and therefore has no hedging against this exposure.

The Company has entered the United Kingdom market without a UK pound denominated debt facility. Prior to 2007, the Company had only done business in the United States with franchisees of Sonitrol. In order to accelerate the growth of its business, the Company has established operations in the United Kingdom, where the Company has purchased 4,000 conventional security alarm accounts, as of October 31, 2008. While the Company has a \$4 million line of credit for use in UK working capital and RMR acquisitions, the Company does not yet have an appropriately sized UK pound denominated debt facility. While the Company does not forecast repatriating cash from the UK operations to service the US debt facility in 2008, any significant repatriation would subject it to foreign currency fluctuation risk, which the Company has decided not to hedge at this time.

Risks Related to this Offering

There is no existing market for the Company's Guaranteed Payment Units or the Certificates. You may not be able to resell them. Currently there is no public market for the Company's GPUs or the Certificates. The Company cannot predict the extent to which investor or acquirer interest in them will lead to the development of a trading market or sale transaction or otherwise provide liquidity to you. The offering price has been determined by

discounting the anticipated cash flow from the GPUs at a discount rate equivalent to the rate ascribed to the Certificates as offered hereby.

DESCRIPTION OF TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES

On June 30, 2009 David L. Smith, as President of McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., (the "Trustee") executed the Declaration of Trust ("Declaration") of TDM Verifier Trust 08R ("Trust"), declaring that McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings was the Trustee of the Trust, establishing the Trust for the benefit of Certificateholders, and defining its purpose.

The Trust is intended to be a common law trust under the laws of the State of New York, with its principal office at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, which is the office of the Placement Agent. The initial capital of the Trust was established at \$175.00, and the purpose of the Trust is to lend the net proceeds of this offering to TDM Cable Funding LLC. The Trust will employ the gross proceeds of this offering to retire certificates issued by TDM Verifier Trust 08 in the amount of \$1,935,000 together with underwriting expenses of approximately \$70,000. Under the Declaration, the Trustee acquires virtually complete discretion in the operation of the Trust, so long as that discretion is exercised within the purpose of the Trust. The Declaration limits the liability of the Trustee in two ways. The Trustee will not be liable in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Trustee will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the corpus of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to indemnification from the funds of the Trust (except in the case of willful misconduct or gross negligence) and to reimbursement for the reasonable and necessary fees and expenses incurred in the administration of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to indemnification and reimbursement from the corpus of the Trust before payments are made to Certificateholders.

The Declaration specifically provides that the Certificateholders shall not have any legal or equitable title to the Trust Estate, that no Certificateholder shall have a voice in the management or control of the property or affairs of the Trust, that the Trustee has no authority to require additional capital contributions from any Certificateholder, and that the Trustee is precluded from taking any action to make Certificateholders liable for the debts or obligations of the Trust.

Certificates

The Certificates will be issued under the Declaration, a copy of which is included as an exhibit to this Memorandum. The rights of the Certificateholders and the obligations of the Trustee as they relate to the Certificates will be governed by the Declaration. Reference should be made to the Declaration for its complete terms. The statements contained in this Memorandum concerning the Declaration are merely a summary thereof, do not purport to be complete, and do not modify or amend the Declaration.

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Memorandum, Certificates in the maximum amount of \$2,005,000 will be offered by the Trust. The Certificates will bear interest on the outstanding principal at a per annum rate of 9.00% with an 18 month maturity. Interest on the Certificates will be paid in quarterly installments on the first day of each quarter commencing October 1, 2009.

The Certificates will be issued and registered in the name of the purchasing Certificateholder(s). Interest on the Certificates will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Trustee.

Prepayments

The Certificates are not subject to a mandatory prepayment or redemption provision.

Registration

Each Certificate will be registered in the name of the purchaser thereof.

Limited Transferability of the Certificates

The Certificates are not freely transferable, and there is no secondary market for the Certificates and none is expected to develop. The Certificates should not be treated by Certificateholders as securities.

The Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. They may not be offered for resale in the absence of an opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Trust, that registration is not required.

Reports

Not later than January 31 of each year, the Trust will furnish to the Certificateholders statements of interest income on IRS Form 1099-INT and such tax information as shall be necessary in the preparation of such person's Federal income tax return.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Timothy M. McGinn, David L. Smith, and Thomas E. Livingston collectively own 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. and McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. is acting as the Placement Agent for this Offering and will receive an Underwriting Discount equal to three and one-half percent (3.5%) of the gross proceeds of this Offering. The Underwriting Discount was not negotiated at arms length.

Additionally, Mathew Rogers is the Chairman of the Board of the Company, owns 12.5% of the common units of the Company and is a Senior Managing Director of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc.

McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. may experience a conflict of interest in performing its obligation to exercise due diligence with respect to the statements made in this Memorandum and, therefore, its due diligence review cannot be considered independent. A qualified independent underwriter has not been retained by the Trust in connection with this offering. However, McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. believes that such due diligence has, in fact, been exercised.

There has been no independent counsel retained to represent the interests of the Certificateholders.

THE TRUSTEE

The names and positions of the directors and executive officers of the Trustee are as follows:

Name Position

Timothy M. McGinn Chairman of the Board and Director

David L. Smith President and Director

Thomas E. Livingston Treasurer

The officers and directors of the Trustee will devote such time and effort to the business of the Trust as they may deem necessary and will actively be engaged in other business ventures.

The principal business occupations of the officers and directors during the past five (5) years are as follows:

Timothy M. McGinn, age 60, is the Chairman of the Board and Secretary of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. He has served as Chairman of the Board since the inception of this firm in 1980. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. McGinn served as Chairman of the Board and CEO of Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. a NASDAQ listed public company. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was with Paine, Webber, Jackson & Curtis. He has served on a number of corporate and charitable boards of directors and holds a bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Rochester Institute of Technology.

David L. Smith, age 64, is the President of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and a member of the Board of Directors. He has served in this capacity since 1980. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was with Paine Webber, Jackson & Curtis. Mr. Smith has served on a number of charitable and corporate boards of directors and holds a bachelor's degree from Hamilton College.

Thomas E. Livingston, age 51, is Sr. Vice President of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and a member of its Board of Directors. Mr. Livingston has been employed by McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. since 1986. Prior to joining McGinn, Smith he was affiliated with Prudential Bache Securities.

COMPENSATION AND FEES

The Trustee of the Trust will serve without fee but will be reimbursed for expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with the Trust by TDM Cable Funding LLC.

SUITABILITY

Certificates will be sold only to investors who make a minimum purchase of \$10,000.00.

As described elsewhere in this Memorandum, the Certificates will generally be sold only to Accredited Investors as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; provided, however, that at the discretion of the Placement Agent and the Company, Certificates may be sold to up to 35 non-accredited investors. Included in the definition of "Accredited Investor", as defined in Rule 501, are the following:

- (a) any natural person whose individual net worth (including personal residences, furnishings and automobiles), or joint net worth with that person's spouse, at the time of purchase exceeds \$1,000,000;
- (b) any natural person who had an individual income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and who reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year; and
- (c) any entity in which all of the equity owners are Accredited Investors or which has total assets in excess of \$5,000,000.

Each investor accepted as an Accredited Investor will be required to represent that he satisfies the requirements of an Accredited Investor under Rule 501.

Among other things, each investor will be required to acknowledge and represent in the Subscription Agreement that: (i) he is purchasing the Certificates for his own account for investment and not with a view to the sale or distribution thereof; (ii) he is aware that the Certificates have not been registered for sale under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended, and that he will not transfer his Certificates in the absence of an opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Trust that the Certificates have been registered or that registration is not required under the Securities Act of 1933, as then in effect, and under applicable state securities laws, if any; (iii) he understands that this investment involves a high degree of risk; (iv) he has adequate means of providing for his current needs and foreseeable personal contingencies, has no need for liquidity in this investment; (v) all books, records and documents pertaining to this investment have been made available to him; and (vi) his overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to his net worth and his purchase of Certificates will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.

The Placement Agent and the Trust reserve the right to reject any subscription in its entirety for any reason or to allocate to any investor Certificates in an aggregate principal amount less than that for which he has subscribed. In the event a subscription is rejected, the investor's subscription check for his Certificates (or the amount thereof) will be returned, and in the event of a partial rejection, a pro rata amount of his subscription check for his Certificates will be refunded.

Prospective investors may be required to complete an Investor Representation Letter relating to the suitability of the investment for them, and the Trust may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as the Trust deems appropriate.

Any prospective investor will be afforded the opportunity to obtain from the Trust prior to the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein any additional information he may request necessary to verify the accuracy of the contents of this Memorandum and which the Trust possesses or can acquire without unreasonable effort or expense and to confer with, ask questions of, and receive answers from the Trust or persons authorized to act on its behalf, concerning the terms and conditions of the transaction, this memorandum and any additional information which has been requested and supplied to a prospective investor or his purchaser representative.

The purchase of Certificates may be suitable for individuals seeking an investment intended to provide income. An investment in Certificates may also be appropriate for corporations and trusts seeking investments which are structured to provide income. Nevertheless, this investment involves a number of significant risks, including no assurance that the Certificates will be paid and illiquidity. See "Risk Factors." Accordingly, the suitability of a purchase of Certificates for any particular investor will depend upon, among other things, such investor's investment objectives and such investor's ability and willingness to accept the risks of an investment in the Certificates.

The Placement Agent Agreement between the Trust and the Placement Agent requires the Placement Agent to make diligent inquiries as required by law of all prospective purchasers in order to ascertain whether a purchase of Certificates is suitable for such person and to transmit promptly to the Trust all fully completed Subscription Agreements. By tendering payment for a Certificate and by acceptance of the confirmation of purchase, an investor represents that he or it satisfies any applicable suitability standards. See "Plan of Distribution."

TERMS OF THE OFFERING

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Memorandum, Certificates in the maximum amount of \$2,005,000 (the "Maximum Offering") and the minimum amount of \$250,000 (the "Minimum Offering") will be offered by the Trust.

The Certificates will be offered through McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Placement Agent, on a best efforts basis over a period of two months. The Placement Agent is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

All funds received by the Placement Agent from subscriptions for the Certificates will be placed in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account") maintained at Mercantile Bank, (the "Escrow Agent"). During the period that an investor's funds are held in the Escrow Account he will not be considered a Certificateholder.

With respect to the Certificates, no funding from the Escrow Account will occur until the Minimum Offering is subscribed for. If subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are not received within two months from the date of this Memorandum, subscriptions received with respect to the Certificates will be promptly returned in full to the investor by the Escrow Agent.

How to Subscribe.

The Certificates will be available for purchase in the minimum denomination of \$10,000.00 and increments of \$5,000.00. An investor who meets the qualifications set forth under "Who May Invest" and "Suitability" may subscribe for Certificates by completing, signing and delivering to the Placement Agent an executed copy of the Subscription Agreement contained in this Memorandum. All subscriptions must be accompanied by a check in the amount of the Certificate(s) purchased payable to "Mercantile Bank, Escrow Agent for TDM Verifier Trust 07R". Upon execution of a Subscription Agreement, the investor agrees to all of the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement. Subscriptions are, however, subject to acceptance by the Trust.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Trust is offering a maximum of \$2,005,000 of Certificates, and a minimum of \$250,000. The minimum investment by an investor is \$10,000.00 with increments of \$5,000.00. The Offering of Certificates will terminate on September 30, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. The Placement Agent, upon request from the Company, will consider an extension of the Offering for three (3) months, terminating on December 31, 2009. No Certificates will be sold unless subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are received and accepted within four (4) months of the date of this Memorandum. Subscriptions are subject to acceptance by the Trust. See "Suitability"; "Who May Invest".

During the course of the Offering, the subscription payments will be promptly forwarded by the Placement Agent to the Escrow Agent for deposit in the Escrow Account. For a description of the distribution of funds from the Escrow Account, see "Terms of the Offering".

The Certificates will be offered on a "best efforts" basis by the Placement Agent.

DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE

Reference is hereby made to the Declaration of Trust dated June 30, 2009 a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". Other than potential liability under the Act, neither the Trustee, nor any shareholder, manager, officer, employee, affiliate or agent of the Trustee may be held to any liability in connection with the Offering or the Certificates, or in connection with the affairs of the Trust, in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Trustee will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the corpus of the Trust.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion summarizes certain material anticipated federal income tax consequences relevant to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Certificates, but does not purport to address all potential consequences. The summary is for general information only and does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to particular investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or holders who receive special treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), such as insurance companies, financial institutions, and broker-dealers. In addition, this discussion does not describe any tax consequences arising out of foreign, state or local jurisdictions.

The discussion is based upon current provisions of the Code, applicable regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial authority and administrative rulings and practice. All of the foregoing is subject to change which may be retroactive and could affect the continuing validity of this discussion. There can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") will not take a contrary view, and no ruling from the IRS has been or will be sought.

The Trust has not obtained an independent tax opinion with regard to this Offering. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal, foreign, state, local and other tax consequences of purchasing, holding and disposing of the Certificates.

Interest Income to Certificateholders

It is anticipated that the Certificates will be issued at par value and, therefore, no original issue discount will arise with respect to the Certificates. Accordingly, a Certificateholder will be required to report interest on a Certificate as income for federal income tax purposes in accordance with such holder's method of accounting.

Gain or Loss on Disposition of Certificates

In general, the holder of a Certificate will recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, redemption or other disposition of a Certificate equal to the difference between the amount realized (except to the extent attributable to the payment of accrued interest) and the adjusted basis in his Certificate. Any gain or loss recognized will generally be a Trust gain or loss if the Certificate is held as a Trust asset and will be long-term gain or loss if the Certificate is held for more than one year.

Information Reporting

The Trust will report interest income to Certificateholders on IRS Form 1099-INT and as otherwise consistent with such treatment.

Backup Withholding

A Certificateholder may be subject to "backup withholding" at the rate of 31% (see IRC§3406(a)) with respect to interest paid on, or the proceeds of a sale, exchange or redemption of, such Certificates, unless such holder (i) is a corporation or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates this fact, or (ii) provides a taxpayer identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding, and otherwise complies with applicable exemption from backup withholding rules. Any amount withheld under these rules will be creditable against the Certificate-holder's federal tax liability.

THE FOREGOING DISCUSSION OF CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES IS FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND IS NOT TAX ADVICE. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER OWN TAX ADVISER WITH RESPECT TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE ACQUISITION, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF THE CERTIFICATES.

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS

The discussion in this Memorandum of each Exhibit set forth below is qualified in its entirety by reference to such Exhibit.

Exhibit "A" Declaration of Trust
Exhibit "B" Subscription Agreement
Exhibit "C" Investor Representation Letter

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information is available upon request to the Trust. Only additional information provided by the Trust may be relied upon. Prospective investors may request such information from the Placement Agent, McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., Fifth Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

EXHIBIT "A"

DECLARATION OF TRUST

DECLARATION OF TRUST OF TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R

This Trust Agreement made as of the 30th of June, 2009, by and between McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., a New York corporation with an address at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street - 5th Floor, Albany, New York 12207 ("Trustee"), and those persons who acquire an interest herein by the execution and performance of a subscription agreement ("Subscription Agreement") attached as Exhibit B to the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated as of July 1, 2009 ("Confidential Memorandum").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Trustee desires to create a trust (the "Trust") for the purpose of enabling and authorizing a loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding, LLC.

WHEREAS, the Trustee is willing to accept the duties and obligations imposed hereby on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Trustee does hereby declare, that the Trustee will hold said property which it may acquire as such Trustee, together with the proceeds thereof in trust, to manage and dispose of the same for the benefit of the Certificateholders hereunder in the manner and subject to the stipulations herein contained.

ARTICLE I NAME

This Trust shall be designated and known as the "TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R", not incorporated, and under that name shall, so far as practicable, conduct all activities and execute all instruments in writing in the performance of the Trust.

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

The following words, terms and phrases used herein shall be given the meaning stated below in this Article, unless such meaning would be clearly in conflict with the purposes and spirit of this instrument.

"Certificateholder" shall mean the holder for the time being, according to the books of the Trustee, of the Certificates as evidenced by this Declaration and the Certificates issued by the Trustee.

"Permitted Investments" means a promissory note (the "Note") evidencing a loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding LLC. In addition, to the extent not employed for the loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding, LLC, temporary investments may be made in (1) certificates of deposit, in (2) short term AAA rated debt obligations regularly traded on a recognized exchange in the United States, or in (3) obligations issued by the United States Treasury or other obligations backed by the "full face and credit" of the United States.

"Share" shall mean a share in the beneficial interest of the property, assets, trust fund and corpus of the Trust.

"Transaction Documents" shall mean this Declaration of Trust and the Guaranteed Payment Units from Verifier Capital LLC (the "Company").

"Trust", "Trust Estate", and "Capital" shall mean the trust fund hereunder, consisting of the corpus of the estate; that is, all property, real, personal and mixed of every kind and description howsoever acquired and wherever situated, held under this Declaration of Trust by the Trustee.

"Trustee" shall mean the trustee herein named, and those who are or may be trustees.

ARTICLE III OFFICE OF THE TRUST

The principal office of this Trust shall be located at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, until changed by the Trustee. The principal office may be changed and branch offices established,

maintained, changed and discontinued at such times and places as the Trustee in its discretion may determine, with notice to the Certificateholders.

ARTICLE IV CAPITAL OF THE TRUST

The initial Capital of this Trust shall be One Hundred Seventy Five Dollars (\$175), paid to the Trustee concurrently with execution and delivery hereof. The Capital of the Trust or any part thereof, shall be held for the use and benefit of the Trust at such places and upon such terms as the Trustee may fix. The Trustee may not require any Certificateholder to make any contribution, in addition to the initial contribution made by such Certificateholder, to increase the Capital of the Trust. The Trustee shall receive such contributions to the Capital of the Trust as may be made by Certificateholders from time to time and apply the same for the purpose stated by Article V of this Trust Agreement.

ARTICLE V PURPOSE OF THE TRUST

The purpose of the Trust is to lend the proceeds derived from subscriptions from the Certificateholders to TDM Cable Funding, LLC for the purpose of retiring \$1,935,000 of Certificates related to the TDM Verifier Trust 08 which will mature on June 30, 2009 and to pay miscellaneous expenses aggregating approximately \$70,000.

- (1) The Trustee shall, as far as convenient and practicable, take and hold the title, both legal and equitable, to all property, however acquired under the terms hereof, in the name of the Trust. All conveyances of every kind and description, at any time made to or in the name of the Trustee of the Trust shall be held to vest the title to property so conveyed in the Trustee as such under this instrument, the title "TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R" being merely intended as a convenient designation of the Trustee hereunder.
- (2) The Trustee shall administer and dispose of all properties for the benefit of Certificateholders hereunder, as represented by their Certificates.
- (3) The Trustee shall manage, control and dispose of all the Trust Estate and its business affairs, of every kind and character within the authority granted hereunder.
- (4) The Trustee shall, in such capacity, exclusively and absolutely, have full, absolute and plenary rights, authority to pledge, exchange, mortgage and convey or otherwise dispose of property of every kind, character and description, real, personal and mixed, that may be part of the Trust Estate.
- (5) The Trustee shall have, in furtherance of the purposes of the Trust, the absolute right, power and authority to institute, maintain and defend actions, suits and proceedings in any court of law or equity either in the name of said Trust or in its name as Trustee thereof; to sell, transfer, assign and convey the whole or any part of the Trust Estate, invest and reinvest the proceeds thereof at any time in Permitted Investments provided that the Trustee shall have no obligation to invest such proceeds and shall not be accountable for any losses howsoever incurred; to collect any money, and pledge the assets of the Trust as security therefor; to execute and deliver in the manner herein provided all deeds, leases, mortgages, powers of attorney and other instruments in writing which the Trustee may deem necessary and proper in the exercise of the powers conferred hereunder; and to perform or withhold any act or thing of any kind or character, which in the Trustee's judgment may be necessary, proper or expedient, in carrying into effect the purposes of this Trust or any purposes specified in this Declaration of Trust, or in any amendments hereto, duly made and adopted.

ARTICLE VI LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE AND CERTIFICATEHOLDERS

Neither the Trustee, nor any of its officers or servants shall have any right, power or authority, under any circumstances, or in any event to act as the agent of the Certificateholders or to bind them personally or to impose any liability or obligation upon them in any way whatsoever with respect to this Trust Estate or otherwise. All persons contracting with the Trustee or its officers, agents or employees shall look only to the Trust Fund for the

2

payment of any damage, claim, judgment or decree, or of any money that may become due or payable in any way to them whether founded upon contract or tort, and neither the Trustee nor the Certificateholders, present or future, nor any of them shall as such be personally liable therefor or on any agreement or contract made by the Trustee, or by any officers, agents or employees of the Trustee, its officers or agents, or employees in connection with the Trust Estate. No amendment shall ever be made to this Declaration of Trust, increasing or enlarging the liability of either the Trustee or the Certificateholders as herein stipulated.

ARTICLE VII LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE; INDEMNIFICATION

The Trustee shall not be liable hereunder in any event or under any circumstances, for the acts or omissions of any other Trustee or of any officer, agent or employee, or any other person whatsoever, whether employed by such Trustee or not, or for any act or thing whatsoever, other than such Trustee's own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trustee in its individual capacity and as Trustee shall be indemnified by, and receive reimbursement from the Trust Estate against and from any and all liability, claim, damage or loss, suit, action, tax (including interest and penal ties), fine, penalty, cost and expense (including but not limited to legal fees and disbursements) of whatsoever kind and nature which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted at any time against the Trustee (in its individual or trust capacity) in any way relating to or arising out of the administration of the Trust Estate, or arising from any act or omission hereunder or under the Transaction Documents, except such as may arise from such Trustee's own willful misconduct or gross negligence. In addition, the Trustee shall be entitled to indemnification from the Trust Estate for any liability, obligation, loss, damage, penalty, tax, claim, action, suit, cost, expense or disbursement indemnified against pursuant to this Article VII and to secure the same the Trustee shall have a lien on the Trust Estate prior to the interest of the Certificateholders or any other person. Trustee shall file all tax returns and other governmental reports required to be filed by the Trustee in connection with the transaction contemplated hereby. Without limiting the foregoing, the Trustee shall under no circumstances be required to take any action or omit to take any action in the administration of the Trust Estate or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder unless the Trustee determines in its absolute discretion that indemnification in respect of such action or omission is available to it to its reasonable satisfaction, provided that the Trustee shall not be required to take or omit any action if the Trustee shall have been advised by its counsel that taking or omitting such action is contrary to the terms of any other agreement or instrument referred to herein or is otherwise contrary to law. The indemnities contained in this Article VII shall survive the termination of this Trust Agreement.

The Trustee shall not be entitled to receive compensation for its services from the Trust Estate. The Trustee shall not have any duty or obligation to manage, control, use, sell, dispose or otherwise deal with the Trust Estate or to otherwise refrain from taking any such action under or in connection with this Trust Agreement or the other agreements or instruments referred to herein except as expressly provided by the terms of this Trust Agreement, and no implied duties shall be read into this Trust Agreement against the Trustee. The Trustee shall not be answerable or accountable under any circumstances except for its own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trustee shall no duty to see to the payment or discharge of any tax, assessment or other governmental charge or any lien or encumbrance of any kind owing with respect to, or assessed or levied against, any part of the Trust Estate.

The Trustee shall at all times be entitled to request and receive instructions from the Certificateholders prior to being required to take or omit to take any action hereunder, provided that except as therein specified no further instruction is required for taking of the actions provided by the second sentence of Article V hereof.

THE TRUSTEE MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE VALUE, CONDITIONS, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR USE, VALIDITY, ENFORCEABILITY OF OR TITLE TO ANY PROPERTY AT ANY TIME CONSTITUTING PART OF THE TRUST ESTATE, and makes no representation or warranty as to the validity, legality or enforceability of this Trust Agreement or any agreement or instrument referred to herein, except that the Trustee hereby represents and warrants that this Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by one of its officers, who is duly authorized to execute and deliver such document on its behalf.

The Trustee shall not incur any liability to anyone in acting upon any signature, instrument, notice, resolution, request, consent, telegram, order, certificate, report, opinion, bond, or other document or paper believed by it to be genuine and believed by it to be signed or sent by the proper party or parties. As to any fact or matter, the

manner of ascertainment of which is not specifically described herein, the Trustee may for all purposes rely on a certificate signed by an officer of any Certificateholder as to such fact or matter, and such certificate shall constitute full protection to the Trustee for any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in reliance thereon. In the performance of its duties hereunder, the Trustee may act directly or through its agents or attorneys and may, at the expense of the Trust Estate, consult with counsel, accountants and other skilled persons to be selected and employed by it, and the Trustee shall not be liable for anything done, suffered or omitted by it in accordance with the advice or opinion of any such counsel, accountants or other skilled persons.

The Trustee or successor trustee may resign at any time without cause by giving at least 10 days' prior written notice to the Certificateholders, such resignation to be effective on the date specified in such notice. In such event, the Certificateholders shall appoint such new Trustee. If a successor trustee shall not have been appointed prior to the effective date of such resignation, the Trustee may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor trustee until such time, if any, as a successor trustee shall have been appointed. Any successor trustee shall execute and deliver to the predecessor trustee an instrument accepting such appointment and thereupon the predecessor trustee shall be released from its obligations hereunder and the successor trustee shall be vested with all rights, powers, duties and obligations of the Trustee hereunder, and the predecessor trustee shall transfer, deliver, and pay over, at the expense of the Trust Estate, any monies or other property then held by such predecessor trustee upon the Trust herein expressed.

All monies received hereunder by the Trustee shall constitute trust funds for the purpose of which they were paid or are held, but need not be segregated in any manner from any other monies and may be deposited and paid by the Trustee under such conditions as may be prescribed or permitted by law for trust funds.

ARTICLE VIII CERTIFICATEHOLDERS, LACK OF CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

No Certificateholder shall have any title, legal or equitable, to the Trust Estate, real or personal, held from time to time by the Trustee, or to any part thereof, or any right or voice in the management or control of the property or affairs of the Trust, each Certificateholder's interest being only such as is defined in this Declaration of Trust. No Certificateholder shall have the right to call for or demand or secure any partition or accounting during the continuance of this Trust. Its interest in this Trust shall be personal property, carrying only the right to payments pursuant to the Certificate. The Trust shall not be dissolved, nor affected by the death, insolvency or incapacity of the Certificateholder or one or more of the Trustees, nor shall such death, insolvency or incapacity entitle the legal representatives or heirs or assigns, voluntary holder, receiver or trustee to any accounting or to any action at law or in equity or otherwise, against the Certificateholders or Trustee, or against the Trust Estate, or any part thereof, but such legal representative, heir, assign, receiver, or trustee shall succeed to the rights of the deceased, insolvent, bankrupt or incapacitated Certificateholder, subject to this Declaration of Trust and any amendments hereto, and shall succeed to nothing more.

ARTICLE IX NO PARTNERSHIP

It is expressly declared that a trust, and not a partnership, is created and established by this instrument. Neither the Trustee nor any Certificateholder shall ever be deemed in any way whatsoever to be liable or responsible hereunder as partners or otherwise.

ARTICLE X CERTIFICATEHOLDERS: NO PERSONAL LIABILITY

No assessment or other personal liability or obligation shall, under any circumstances or in any event, be made or imposed upon the Certificateholders.

ARTICLE XI REFERENCE TO INSTRUMENT

The Trustee shall, as far as practicable, make reference to the Declaration in every written contract or undertaking that shall be entered into in the name of the Trustee or on behalf of, or relating to the business, affairs or property of this Trust.

ARTICLE XII RELATIONSHIP WITH THIRD PARTIES; NO INQUIRY

In no event and under no circumstances shall any one dealing with the Trustee be obligated either at law or in equity to see to the application of any funds or properties passing into the hands of the Trustee, there being no intention that purchasers of Trust property, or any other parties dealing with the Trustee, shall see that the purchase money is applied to the purposes of the Trust.

ARTICLE XIII INTEREST AND EARNINGS

The Capital of the Trust and the earnings and interest thereon shall be apportioned and distributed to the Certificateholders in accordance with this Declaration and the Certificates issued by the Trustee.

ARTICLE XIV AGREEMENT OF CERTIFICATEHOLDERS

The Certificateholders shall be held to have assented to this Declaration of Trust, and to all acts performed by Trustee within the authority granted by this Declaration.

ARTICLE XV TERM AND TERMINATION

Unless earlier terminated, as hereinafter provided, this Trust shall continue until the earlier of either (i) ten years from the date first hereinabove mentioned or (ii) the date when the Trust shall have distributed all of its Capital. The Trustee may otherwise terminate this Trust only with the unanimous written consent of the Certificateholders, provided, however, that any termination of the Trust shall not impair or have any effect whatever upon the contracts, obligations, and liabilities of said Trust Estate existing or outstanding at the time of such termination. At the expiration or upon the termination of the Trust, the Trustee shall proceed to wind up its affairs, liquidate its assets and distribute the same to the Certificateholders, without recourse or warranty of any kind, and for these purposes the then Trustee shall continue act until such duties have been fully performed. Upon completion of such duties, the Trustee shall be deemed discharged in full.

2009.	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals as of the 30 th day of June
	MCGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP., not in its individual capacity, except as specified herein, but solely as Trustee under this Declaration of Trust dated as of June 30, 2009.
	By: David L. Smith
	OF NEW YORK) COUNTY BANY) SS.:
persona to be the same in	day of June in the year 2009 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, lly appeared David L. Smith, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the her/his capacity, and that by her/his signature on the instrument, the individuals, or the person upon behalf her individual acted, executed the instrument.
	Notary Public

Ехнівіт "В"

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

THE CERTIFICATES WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS AGREEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. THEY MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR RESALE IN THE ABSENCE OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, SATISFACTORY TO THE TRUST, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED. IN ADDITION, THIS AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES CONTAIN SUBSTANTIAL RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY.

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R

(a New York Trust)

TO: TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (the "Trust"):

- 1. <u>Subscriptions</u>. I hereby subscribe for and agree to purchase the dollar amount of the Trust's Certificates (the "Certificates") as is set forth opposite my name acknowledging the minimum purchase to be Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000) and increments of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000).
- 2. <u>Payment</u>. I hereby agree to pay the Trust the purchase price for the Certificates by delivery herewith of a check in the face amount of the Certificates subscribed for payable to the order of "MERCANTILE BANK-Escrow Agent for TDM Verifier Trust 08R".
- 3. <u>Restriction on Transfer of the Certificates</u>. I understand that any resale or transfer of the Certificates by me is subject to substantial restriction, in that:
 - (i) The Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or applicable state securities laws. The Certificates cannot be sold or transferred by subscribers in the absence of an opinion of counsel that registration is not necessary. The Trust is not required to register the Certificates or to make any exemption from registration available.
 - (ii) My right to sell or transfer any of the Certificates will be restricted as follows: (1) restrictions against sale or transfer in violation of applicable securities law; (2) the requirement that I furnish an opinion of counsel that any proposed sale or transfer by me will not violate such laws; (3) the Trust must consent to the transfer of my Certificates; and (4) other restrictions and requirements, including such restrictions on transfer arising under state securities laws.
 - (iii) There will be no public market for the Certificates, and I may not be able to sell my Certificates. Accordingly, I must bear the economic risk of my investment for an indefinite period of time.
- 4. <u>Investment Representation</u>. I represent and warrant that I am acquiring my Certificates for my own account and not on behalf of other persons, and that I am acquiring my Certificates for investment purposes only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof; I understand that the Certificates will be offered and sold in a manner which would qualify the transaction for an exemption as a private placement under Rule 506 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Certificates may not be transferred or assigned except as provided herein.
- 5. <u>Subscription Irrevocable by Certificateholder</u>. This Subscription Agreement is not, and shall not be, revocable by me, except as provided by applicable state securities law requirements, and I intend to be legally bound by this Subscription Agreement.
- 6. <u>Subscription Subject to Acceptance or Rejection by the Trust</u>. The Trust, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to accept or reject this subscription at any time on or before the Closing.

- 7. Offering of Certificates Subject to Withdrawal. If the Trust does not receive subscriptions for Certificates in the minimum amount of \$250,000.00 before the Termination Date, as such date may be extended, the Offering of Certificates will be withdrawn and I understand that all my subscription documents and payments will be returned to me, with interest, less the cost of escrow, and without further obligation of the Trust.
- 8. Additional Representations and Warranties. I represent and warrant that:
 - (a) (i) I have received and have carefully read and understood the Private Placement Memorandum dated July 1, 2009 (the "Memorandum") given to me by the Trust in connection with the offering of Certificates.
 - (ii) I have been furnished with all additional documents and information which I have requested.
 - (iii) I have had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Trust concerning the Trust and the offering of Certificates and to obtain any additional information necessary to verify the accuracy of the information furnished.
 - (iv) I have relied only on the foregoing information and documents in determining to make this subscription, and the decision to acquire Certificates of the Trust has been made based upon my own evaluation of the merits and risks of the Trust.
 - (v) I will not offer to sell, or resell, the Certificates except in accordance with Section 3(ii) hereof.
 - (vi) I will require any purchaser to provide the Trust with his address.
 - (b) I recognize that investment in the Certificates involves substantial risk factors, including those set forth under "Risks" in the Memorandum.
 - (c) I have adequate means of providing for my current needs and possible personal contingencies, and I have no need for liquidity in my investment in the Certificates.
 - (d) My overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to my net worth and my purchase of Certificates will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.
- 9. <u>Indemnification and Hold Harmless</u>. If I breach any agreement, representation or warranty I have made in this Subscription Agreement or any other document I have executed in connection with this offering, I agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Trust, the Trustee, or any officer or director of the Trustee and any person controlling either or any of them against any claims, actions, liability, loss, damage or expense (including attorney's fees and other costs of investigation and litigating claims) caused, directly or indirectly, by my breach.

WITNESS WHEREOF, I have execute	ed this Subscription Agree	ement this day or	
Print	exact name in which title	is to be held	•
Printed Name	Tax ID#	Printed Name	Tax ID#
nature: X		Signature X	
dress:		•	
		Amount Purchased: \$ 9.00%	

ACCEPTED BY TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R this	of, 20
	McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. Trustee
	By: David L. Smith, Principal or Timothy M. McGinn, Principal

Ехнівіт "С"

INVESTOR REPRESENTATION LETTER

CONFIDENTIAL

PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE FOR INDIVIDUALS

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (A New York Trust)

The offering is being made pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"). One of the requirements of the Regulation is that the persons involved in the offering and sale of the securities must have reasonable grounds to believe either:

- (i) that the Offeree has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment; or
- (ii) the undersigned is acquiring the Certificates for investment purposes only and not with a view towards resale.

The undersigned is aware that this offering will involve Certificates for which no resale market exists, thereby requiring this investment to be maintained for the stated term of each Certificate.

Your answers will, at all times, be kept strictly confidential; however, each party who signs the questionnaire hereby agrees that the Trust may present this questionnaire to such parties as may seem appropriate in order to insure that the offer and sale of the Certificates to you will not result in violation of any exemption from registration under the Act which may be relied upon by the Trust in connection with the sale of the Certificates.

Please complete this questionnaire as thoroughly as possible and sign, date and return one (1) copy to the Trust c/o McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Please print or type:			
Name:			
Home Address:			
Date of Birth:			
Social Security No.:			
Occupation:			
Business Address:			
Business Telephone:			
Home Telephone:			
Communications should be so	ent to:		
Home Address	Or.	Pusiness Address	

1.	What is your approximate net worth	?	
	\$50,000	- \$100,000	
		- \$100,000 0 - \$250,000	
		0 - \$500,000	
		0 - \$1,000,000	
		than \$1,000,000	
		mun #1,000,000	
2.	Did your individual income exceed your spouse exceed \$300,000.00 in	\$200,000.00 in 2007 and 2008, or did your joint ineeach of those years?	come with
	Yes	No	
3.	If the answer to #2 above is "yes", d	o you expect to reach the same income level in 2009	?
	Yes	No	
4.	What was your approximate gross in	ncome for calendar year 2008?	
	\$25,000	- \$100,000	
	\$100,000	0 - \$200,000	
	\$200,000	0 - \$300,000	
	\$300,000	0 - \$500,000	
	Greater t	inan \$500,000	
5.	What will your approximate gross in	ncome be for calendar year 2009?	
	\$25,000	- \$100,000	
		0 - \$200,000	
		0 - \$300,000	
		0 - \$500,000	
	Greater t	than \$500,000	
To th I agr	he best of my information and belief, the ree to notify the Trust promptly of any ch	above information is accurate and complete in all reanges which occur prior to sale of the Certificates.	spects.
Purc	chaser	Date:	
Nam	ne (printed)		
		•	
Sign	ature		

CONFIDENTIAL

PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE FOR CORPORATIONS AND PARTNERSHIPS

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (A New York Trust)

The offering is being made pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"). One of the requirements of the Regulation is that the persons involved in the offering and sale of the securities must have reasonable grounds to believe either:

- (i) that the Offeree has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment; or
- (ii) that the Offeree and its Offeree Representative(s), together, have such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, that they are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment and that the Offeree is able to bear the economic risk of the invest.

The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assist TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (the "Trust") in complying with the above requirement.

Please contact McGinn, Smith & Co, Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207 (518-449-5131) if you have any questions in answering this questionnaire.

If the answer to any questions "None" or "Not Applicable", please so state.

Your answers will, at all times, be kept strictly confidential; however, each party who signs the Questionnaire hereby agrees that the Trust may present this Questionnaire to such parties as may seem appropriate in order to insure that the offer and sale of the Certificates to you will not result in violation of any exemption from registration under the Act which may be relied upon by the Trust in connection with the sale of the Certificates.

Please complete this Questionnaire as thoroughly as possible and sign, date and return one (1) copy to the Trust c/o McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Please print or type:

	Name of Organization:
	Business Address:
	Business Telephone:
	Federal ID Number:
1.	Was the organization formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Trust's Certificates?
	Yes No
2.	Does the organization possess total assets in excess of \$5,000,000?
	Yes No
3.	Does each equity owner of the organization:
	A. Have a net worth, exclusive of home, furnishings, and automobiles, of at least \$1,000,000?
	Yes No

B. Had an individual net income in excess of \$200,000 in 2007 and 2008, or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years, and have a reasonable

	expectation of re	aching the same i	income level in 2009?
		Yes	No
4. transfe		at the Certificate	es proposed to be offered will not be readily marketable or
transic	idore.	Yes	No
5. need fo	The organization or liquidity in this i		complete loss of its investments in the Certificates and has no
		Yes	No
6. placem	Stated below are nents during the pas		n's previous investments in similar securities and other private
matters	ser of Certificates to be capable of	s, I must have so evaluating the me	rganization satisfies certain criteria, in order to qualify as a ufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business erits and risks of an investment in the Trust or I must engage an isor for the purpose of this particular transaction.
I hereb	y represent, by init	tialing on the Rep	resentation A or Representation B line below, that:
A.	I have such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that I am capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Certificates and will not require a Purchase Representative.		
	•		Representation A
B.	I have relied upon the advice of the following Purchaser Representative(s) in evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Certificates:		
		•	Representation B.
Name			Name
Relatio	onship		Relationship
respect Certific	ts. I agree to not		nd belief, the above information is accurate and complete in all mptly of any changes which occur prior to sale of the Trust's
Purchaser:			Date:
Print 1	Name of Organizat	ion	
Ву:			_
Title: _			

PURCHASER REPRESENTATIVE QUESTIONNAIRE

TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R

The information contained herein is being furnished to TDM VERIFIER TRUST 08R (the "Trust") in order to facilitate a determination as to whether the undersigned may act as a Purchaser Representative, as such term is used in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"), in connection with the proposed offer and sale by the Trust of its Contract Certificates (hereinafter referred to as the "Certificates"). The answers below are correct, and the Trustee is entitled to rely on them in making the foregoing determination.

REPRESENTATIONS

I represent, warrant and covenant to you that:

- (a) the information contained herein is complete and accurate and may be relied upon by you in determining whether I may act as a Purchaser Representative pursuant to Regulation D in connection with offers and sales of the Certificates:
- (b) I will notify you immediately of any material change in any of such information occurring within ninety (90) days of the close of sale of the Certificates to the Purchaser;
- (c) (i) I have been designated, or will be designated, pursuant to the Purchaser Questionnaire of each Purchaser, as the Purchaser Representative or such Purchaser, in connection with evaluating the merits and risks of his prospective investment in the Certificates;
- (ii) I have disclosed or will disclose, to each Purchaser, in writing, prior to the designation referred to above, any material relationship between me or my affiliates and the Trust, which now exists or is mutually understood to be contemplated, or which has existed at any time during the previous two (2) years, and any compensation received as a result of such relationship, including any compensation received in connection the offering of Certificates herein; and
- (iii) I will deliver to each of you a counterpart of the disclosure statement referred to in (ii) above, and such other documents or information as each of you may request relating to the performance by me of my duties as a Purchaser Representative.

(Attach additional sheets if required)

Name:	
Age:	
Social Security No.:	
Names of offerees I am representing:	
·	
	<u> </u>
Firm name:	
Empl. Iden. No.:	
Position:	

Business telephone num	ber: ()	_
Prior occupations or pos	sitions during the past five years:	
description of the types	xperience in advising clients with of investments, the dollar amounts is ave in financial, business and tax ories.	nvolved, and the number of
General Investments (sp	• ,	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Private Placements (spe	cify)	
Other Investments (spec	•	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
The Professional license estate brokerage license follows:	es or registrations (including bar adres, broker-dealer or investments advi	nissions, accounting certifications registrations) held by n
		Is License or
Registration	Year Received	Registration Still Effective?
My educational backgro	ound, including degrees obtained and	date of attendance:
Trust or any of its a	of my affiliates now have or have ha ffiliates, are not affiliates or the are, except as follows:	nd any material relationship Trust, and no such relation
contemplated in the futu	ire, except as remems.	

	(b) The amounts of compensation received or to be received as a result of the m relationship(s) described in Item 8(a)(including any compensation received or to be recei connection with this transaction) are as follows:
9.	Neither I nor any of my affiliates own beneficially any interest in the Trust except as follows
9.	
10.	I have received and read the Trust's Private Placement Memorandum dated February 2, 200 Exhibits thereto and have reviewed it with the Offeree.
11.	Other comments or disclosures:
	·
	Durchager Penrocentative Signature
	Purchaser Representative Signature
	Type Purchaser Representative Name
	Firm Name
	Street Address
	City and State
	<u>()</u> Telephone
	Acknowledgement of Investor(s)
repres above	nowledge receipt of the foregoing disclosures this day of, 200, are sents my acknowledgment in writing to the Trust that I have read the foregoing and desire the stated person serve as my Purchaser Representative with respect to the offering of the ficates.
	Investor's Signature
	Investor's Signature
	Investor's Signature

\$2,005,000 MAXIMUM \$250,000 MINIMUM

TDM Verifier Trust 08R

CONTRACT CERTIFICATES
EIGHTEEN MONTHS—9.00%

PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

DUE DECEMBER 31, 2010

McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. Albany, New York

July 6, 2009

No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Memorandum and if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities to which it relates. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy such securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. Neither the delivery of this Memorandum nor any sale hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Trust since the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to its date. However, in the event of any material change, this Memorandum will be amended, supplemented or updated accordingly.

Table of Contents:

	<u>Page</u>
Who May Invest	3
Summary of the Offering	4
Risk Factors	5
Use of Proceeds	6
The Trust	6
Company Information	7
Description of Trust Agreement and	
the Certificates	12
Conflicts of Interest	13
The Trustee	13
Compensation and Fees	13
Suitability	14
Terms of the Offering	15
Plan of Distribution	15
Income Tax Considerations	16
Table of Contents of Exhibits	17
Additional Information	17

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

\$3,000,000

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09

MAXIMUM OFFERING \$3,000,000 CONTRACT CERTIFICATES MINIMUM OFFERING \$250,000 CONTRACT CERTIFICATES 10.50%

MINIMUM INVESTMENT \$25,000 DUE NOVEMBER 1, 2014

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (the "Trust") is hereby offering \$3,000,000 of Contract Certificates, entitled to interest at the rate of 10.50% per annum (the "Certificates"). Interest and Principal on the Certificates is payable in monthly installments commencing October 1, 2009. See "Description of Trust Agreement and the Certificates".

The Certificates will be issued and registered in the names of the purchasing Certificateholders. Interests in the Certificates will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement. See "Description of Trust Agreement and the Certificates".

Price of Certificates 100%

See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of certain risks that should be considered by prospective purchasers of the Certificates offered hereby.

THESE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

	Price to the Public	Selling Commission and Expenses ¹	Proceeds to the Trust
Minimum Offering	100% \$250,000	8.0% \$20,000	92% \$230,000
Maximum Offering	\$3,000,000	\$240,000	\$2,760,000

The date of this Memorandum is July 27, 2009

MCGINN, SMITH & CO. INC. Capital Center • 99 Pine Street Albany, New York 12207

The Certificates will be offered and sold to investors on a "best efforts" basis by broker-dealers ("Selling Group Members", collectively the "Selling Group") who are members of FINRA. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc ("McGinn, Smith") will act as Managing Broker-Dealer and will receive selling commissions ("Selling Commissions") equal to 5.5% of the purchase of the Certificates sold by Selling Group Members ("Total Sales"), which it will reallow to the Selling Group Members. McGinn, Smith will also receive a nonaccountable marketing allowance equal to 1.50% of the Total Sales which it may reallow in whole or in part to the Selling Group Members. McGinn, Smith will also receive a wholesale fee equal to 1.00% of Total Sales, some or all of which will be reallowed to wholesalers. The aggregate amount of commission, allowances, expenses, and placement fees paid by the Trust ("Selling Commissions and Expenses") will not exceed 8.00% of Total Sales.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
WHO MAY INVEST	3
SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING	4
EQUITY PARTICIPATION	5
RISK FACTORS	6
USE OF PROCEEDS	7
THE TRUST	
DESCRIPTION OF TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES	8
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	10
THE TRUSTEE	
COMPENSATION AND FEES	
SUITABILITY	
TERMS OF THE OFFERING	12
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	13
INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS	14
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	

The Offering of Certificates will terminate on October 31, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. (the "Placement Agent"), upon request from the Trust, will consider an extension of the Offering for four (4) months, terminating on February 28, 2010. All subscriptions will be held in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account") at Mercantile Bank, Boca Raton, Florida (the "Escrow Agent") or such other financial institution as may be selected by the Trust in the event that the Escrow Agent is unable or unwilling to serve. Interest will be earned on funds held in the Escrow Account commencing three (3) days after the funds are deposited until the earlier of the termination of this Offering or the investment of such funds in Certificates. During the period that an investor's funds are held in the Escrow Account, he will not be a Certificateholder of the Trust. An investor's funds will not be held in the Escrow Account more than three (3) months before being invested in the Certificates, with Escrow Agent fees being deducted from escrow interest payable to investors. See "Terms of the Offering".

The Trust will furnish to investors certain reports, financial statements and tax information. See "Description of Trust Agreement and the Certificates-Reports".

WHO MAY INVEST

The Certificates will generally be offered only to accredited investors ("Accredited Investors") as that term is defined under Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"). The Placement Agent may, however, offer and sell Certificates to 35 or fewer non-accredited investors. With certain exceptions (primarily with respect to institutional investors) an Accredited Investor is an individual who (i) has a net worth (along and together with the Investor's spouse) in excess of \$1,000,000 or (ii) has had gross income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the past two years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year. Corporations, partnerships and other entities will be considered Accredited Investors if each of its beneficial owners individually qualify as Accredited Investors, or if such entity has total assets in excess of \$5 million. Prospective investors to be admitted as Accredited Investors will be required to represent that they satisfy the requirements of an Accredited Investor. See "Suitability".

The Certificates offered hereby are suitable only for those investors whose business and investment experience makes them capable of evaluating the merits and risks of their prospective investment in the Certificates, who can afford to bear the economic risk of their investment for an indefinite period of time and have no need for liquidity in this investment. Each investor will be required to represent in the Subscription Agreement that he is acquiring the Certificates for his own account as principal for investment, and not with a view to resale or distribution, and that he is aware that (a) his transfer rights are restricted; and (b) that the Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and therefore, cannot be resold unless they are so registered or unless exemption from registration is available with respect to such transaction. (See "Suitability".) Since there can be no assurance that the Contracts (as hereinafter defined) will generate sufficient income necessary to pay the Certificates, investment in the Certificates is suited for persons who have substantial income from other sources. See "Risk Factors".

The Trust may require prospective investors to complete a questionnaire relating to the suitability of the investment for them, and may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as it deems appropriate. The Trust and Placement Agent will collectively have the sole discretion regarding sale of the Certificates to any prospective investor. The Trust and Placement Agent reserve the right to reject any subscription for any reason and to allocate to any investor a smaller amount of Certificates, or fractions thereof, than that for which he has subscribed. See "Suitability".

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Memorandum and the exhibits attached to the Memorandum.

The Trust

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (the "Trust") is a common law trust formed under the laws of the State of New York on July 10, 2009. The Trustee of the Trust is McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., a New York corporation (the "Trustee"). The Trustee of the Trust will have no liability in connection with the Certificates or the affairs of the Trust in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Certificateholders will have recourse to all assets of the Trust, which will include a security interest in all assets purchased by TDMM Cable Funding LLC, a New York limited liability company ("TDMM") with the proceeds of a loan made to it by the Trust (the "Collateral"). The specific assets to be purchased by TDMM are all operating assets and customer contracts (the "Contracts") owned by Benchmark LLC ("Benchmark").

The Trust will make a loan to TDMM. TDMM will purchase the operating assets of Benchmark as well as the Contracts for a total consideration of approximately \$1,950,000 and will expend approximately \$600,000 in related acquisition costs utilizing the loan from the Trust.

The following table (the "Table") enumerates the Contracts to be purchased from Benchmark.

BENCHMARK

		DLINCIIIIIIII		
Property	Location	Contract End Date	# Units	Current Revenue
Harborside	Slidell, LA	September 2019	168	\$ 134,532
Marcus Pointe	Pensacola, FL	July, 2014	248	106,488
Legacy Towers	Gulfport, MS	November, 1014	244	221,592
Legacy Oaks	Mobile, AL	March, 2016	138	151,380
Grande View	Biloxi, MS	November, 2012	240	156,804
Stone Gate	Birmingham, AL	November, 2016	260	289,464
Holiday Isle	New Orleans, LA	February, 2017	160	71,700
Huntington	Dauphin Is., LA	December, 2016	144	75,840

Total annual revenues for the properties listed above are \$1,207,800. The average remaining period for the Contracts listed above is 76 months.

Each of the properties listed above is a multi-unit apartment building or apartment complex. The services contract specifies that tenants must use the services provided by Benchmark for Cable TV and Internet connections.

Additionally, three properties not listed in the Table have entered into contracts with Benchmark which will contribute approximately \$450,000 of annual revenue. It is anticipated that this incremental revenue stream will come online in the third quarter of 2010. The following table identifies the additional properties.

Property	Location	Contract End Date	# Units	icipated eturn
Meadowrun Apartments	Pensacola, FL	September, 2019	200	\$ 165,000
Pass Pointe	Biloxi, MS	October, 2019	176	140,000
Beaux Terre	Alexandra, LA	January, 2016	168	145,000

TDMM will enter into an agreement with Community Services LLC of Miami, Florida to provide all technical, programming acquisition, billing, and collection functions for the 8 properties being served and for the three additional properties referenced above. Further, Community Services LLC will use its best efforts to renew customer contracts prior to expiration, increase service offerings, improve quality of service and maintain professional relationships with the customer base.

Community Services LLC currently provides similar services in 36 communities serving approximately 9,000 households.

The Investment

Certificateholders will purchase up to \$3,000,000 of Certificates issued by TDMM Benchmark Trust 09 which will bear interest at 10.50% per annum and amortize approximately 68% of the principal value of the Certificates over a period of 60 months. The remaining \$970,000 will mature on November 1, 2014.

A schedule of payments of debt service is set forth in Exhibit "D".

The cash flow waterfall from operating business EBITDA is a follows:

- 1st Interest on the TDMM Benchmark Trust 09 Certificates
- 2nd Principal on TDMM Benchmark Trust 09 Certificates

Certificates may be purchased in denominations of \$5,000 with a minimum purchase of \$25,000. The Trustee may, at its discretion, accept subscriptions of less than \$25,000.

EQUITY PARTICIPATION

Certificateholders will be afforded a 15% equity participation in the assets purchased by TDMM Cable Funding, LLC with the proceeds of the loan made by the Trust, under the maximum offering. Such equity participation will vest with certificateholders on October 1, 2014. To the extent that less than the maximum offering is raised, the 15% equity participation will be prorated accordingly.

Risk Factors

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully, among others, the following risk factors:

- No assurance that the pre-closing expenses borne by TDMM will be repaid should TDMM fail to close on the acquisition of Benchmark
- No assurance that the Certificates will be paid;
- No market for resale of Certificates;
- Illiquid collateral;

- Potential for Contract defaults;
- Potential conflicts of interest in connection with the acquisition of the assets to be consigned to the Trust;

Description of Trust Agreement and the Certificates

The Certificates will be issued under a Declaration of Trust by McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Trustee. The Certificates will be available for purchase in denominations of \$5,000.00 with a minimum investment of \$25,000.00. The Certificates will be registered in the name of the individual Certificateholders. See "Description of Trust Agreement and the Certificates."

The Certificates will bear interest at a per annum rate of 10.50%. Interest will accrue commencing on the Closing Date for the purchase of each Certificate and principal and interest will be payable to Certificateholders monthly on the first day of each month commencing October 1, 2009.

Uses of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the Offering will be loaned to TDMM. TDMM will acquire the operating assets and customer contracts of Benchmark LLC and pay related acquisition costs.

TDMM will pledge, as collateral for the loan, all assets and Contracts being acquired.

Income Tax Considerations

The Certificates will be treated as indebtedness of the Trust for federal income tax purposes. Each Certificateholder will generally be required to report interest income on a Certificate in accordance with such Certificateholder's method of accounting. Each prospective investor should consult with his or her own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Certificates.

RISK FACTORS

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully all of the information contained in this Memorandum and, in particular, the factors discussed below. The following summary is not intended to state in full or replace portions of this Memorandum that discuss these factors and others in greater depth. Although the risk factors are intended to be presented in order of their materiality to investors, such order may not be indicative of their relative importance to any particular investor.

Pre-Closing Expenses

TDMM will incur approximately \$600,000 in pre-closing expenses associated with the acquisition of Benchmark. To the extent that the acquisition does not occur, TDMM will be liable for repaying that amount to the Trust. There can be no assurance that TDMM will have the requisite resources to liquidate this debt.

Limitation of Transfer of Certificates

The Certificates may not be offered for resale to any person without the consent of the Trust. Prior to this offering, there has been no market for the Certificates of the Trust. Each investor will be required to represent that his purchase of the Certificates will be for investment only and not with a view towards the resale or distribution thereof. A Certificateholder will not have any right to sell, transfer, exchange or otherwise dispose of his Certificates, or to cause a security interest to be created therein, unless the Trust has received evidence satisfactory to it that such disposition or creation of a security interest is not in violation of federal or state securities laws. The Certificates have not been registered or qualified under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or applicable state securities laws and may not be sold or transferred without such registration or qualification or an exemption therefrom.

Potential for Contract Defaults

Defaults under the terms of the Contracts and/or any diminution in the discretionary purchases of optional services such a pay for view fees would result in a reduction in the cash flow available to service the Certificates offered hereby.

No Independent Counsel to Investors

Purchasers of the Certificates offered hereby will not be afforded the services of independent counsel. Disclosure of material facts and risks has been reviewed by counsel to the Placement Agent.

Lack of Financial Statements

This Memorandum does not include financial statements for the Trust. The Trust is newly formed for the limited purpose of making a loan to TDMM which will acquire the operating assets and customer contracts of Benchmark.

Conflicts of Interest

The Trustee of the Trust is McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., the Placement Agent for this offering is McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., and two of the principals of TDMM Cable Funding, LLC are Timothy M. McGinn and David L. Smith who are also principals of the Trustee and the Placement Agent. Although there is no specified formula for determining the value of the Collateral, the Trustee will advance the loan to TDMM only when TDMM represents to the Trustee that the revenue to be derived from the Collateral will allow the Trust to pay its operating expenses and discharge its obligations with respect to the Certificates.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Certificates offered hereby, after deducting the Underwriting Discount, will be \$2,760,000 (92% of gross proceeds) if the Maximum Offering for the Certificates is achieved.

The net proceeds to the Trust from the sale of the Certificates offered hereby, after deducting the Underwriting Discount, will be \$230,000 (92% of gross proceeds) if the Minimum Offering for the Certificates is achieved.

In either case, the net proceeds will be loaned to TDMM Cable Funding LLC by the Trust. TDMM Cable Funding LLC will pay the Trust principal and interest in an amount sufficient to provide for the payments of debt service set forth in Exhibit "D".

SOURCES AND USES.

The following table describes the sources and uses of funds should only the minimum offering be achieved.

Sources		Uses		
\$	250,000	Benchmark Acquisition	\$	1,950,000
	2,530,000	Legal		75,000
		Selling Commissions & Expenses		20,000
		Due Diligence		150,000
		Investment Banking		400,000
		Working Capital		130,000
	•	Printing		5,000
		Loan Origination Fee		50,000
\$	2,780,000	Total Uses	\$	2,780,000
		2,530,000	\$ 250,000 Benchmark Acquisition Legal Selling Commissions & Expenses Due Diligence Investment Banking Working Capital Printing Loan Origination Fee	2,530,000 Legal Selling Commissions & Expenses Due Diligence Investment Banking Working Capital Printing Loan Origination Fee

The McGinn, Smith Transaction Funding Corp. loan shall be a demand loan which will carry an annual interest rate of 14.0% and will incur an origination fee of \$50,000.

The following table describes the Sources and Uses of funds should the maximum offering be achieved.

Source	es		. Uses	
Offering Gross Proceeds	\$	3,000,000	Selling Commissions & Expenses	240,000
			Benchmark Acquisition	\$ 1,950,000
			Legal	75,000
			Due Diligence	150,000
			Investment Banking	400,000
			Working Capital	180,000
			Printing	 5,000
Total Sources	\$	3,000,000	Total Uses	\$ 3,000,000

THE TRUST

The Trust is a common law trust formed under the laws of the State of New York on July 10, 2009. The principal executive office of the Trust is located at c/o McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., Trustee, Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, and its telephone number is 518-449-5131. McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. is the Trustee of the Trust. The owners of all issued and outstanding common stock of the Trustee are Timothy M. McGinn (30%), David L. Smith (50%), and Thomas E. Livingston (20%); McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. is the Placement Agent for the offering.

Business of the Trust

The Trust has been formed solely for the purpose of funding a loan to TDMM Cable Funding LLC. Subsequent to the closing date, the Trust will utilize the net proceeds from the offering to provide a loan to TDMM Cable Funding LLC for the purpose of acquiring the operating assets and customer contracts of as well as paying for certain pre-closing expenses of approximately \$600,000.

Business of TDMM Cable Funding LLC

TDMM Cable Funding LLC, ("TDMM") is a New York corporation engaged in providing cable TV, internet, telephone, and security services to private communities. TDMM currently services 20 such communities and residential customers. With the integration of the assets to be acquired with the proceeds of this offering, TDMM will service some 30 communities including 3800 residential customers.

The "Triple Play" Service Industry

The "Triple Play" Service business is one in which a proprietary communications network which provides Cable TV, Internet Broadband, and Fiber Optic Telephone Service is bundled and sold to the subscriber, generally at a substantial discount to the ala carte pricing.

Community Services LLC, a Florida limited liability company, has developed and managed broadband communication systems providing video, voice, data, telephone, and security monitoring services to approximately 8,000 residential customers in planned communities throughout Florida.

With the acquisition of the Benchmark contracts by TDMM with the loan from the Trust provided hereby, Community Services LLC will operate in 38 communities, serving 9,000 residences and billing approximately \$625,000 per month.

DESCRIPTION OF TRUST AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES

On July 10, 2009, David L. Smith, as President of McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., (the "Trustee") executed the Declaration of Trust (the "Declaration") of TDMM Benchmark Trust 09 (the "Trust"), declaring that McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. was the Trustee of the Trust, establishing the Trust for the benefit of Certificateholders, and defining its purpose.

The Trust is intended to be a common law trust under the laws of the State of New York, with its principal office at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207, which is the office of the Trustee. The initial capital of the Trust was established at \$100.00, and the purpose of the Trust is to provide a loan to TDMM which will enable TDMM to acquire the operating assets and customer contracts of Benchmark LLC. Under the Declaration, the Trustee acquires virtually complete discretion in the operation of the Trust, so long as that discretion is exercised within the purpose of the Trust. The Declaration limits the liability of the Trustee in two ways. The Trustee will not be liable in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Trustee will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the corpus of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to indemnification from the funds of the Trust (except in the case of willful misconduct or gross negligence) and to reimbursement for the reasonable and necessary fees and expenses incurred in the administration of the Trust. The Trustee is entitled to indemnification and reimbursement from the corpus of the Trust before payments are made to Certificateholders.

The Declaration specifically provides that the Certificateholders shall not have any legal or equitable title to the Trust Estate, that no Certificateholder shall have a voice in the management or control of the property or affairs of the Trust, that the Trustee has no authority to require additional capital contributions from any Certificateholder, and that the Trustee is precluded from taking any action to make Certificateholders liable for the debts or obligations of the Trust.

Certificates

The Certificates will be issued under the Declaration, a copy of which is included as an exhibit to this Memorandum. The rights of the Certificateholders and the obligations of the Trustee as they relate to the Certificates will be governed by the Declaration. Reference should be made to the Declaration for its complete terms. The statements contained in this Memorandum concerning the Declaration are merely a summary thereof, do not purport to be complete, and do not modify or amend the Declaration.

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Memorandum, Certificates in the maximum amount of \$3,000,000 will be offered by the Trust. The Certificates will bear interest on the outstanding principal at a per annum rate of 10.50%. Interest and Principal on the Certificates will be paid in monthly installments on the first day of each month commencing October 1, 2009.

The Certificates will be issued and registered in the name of the purchasing Certificateholder(s). Interest on the Certificates will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Trustee.

Prepayments

The Certificates are not subject to a mandatory prepayment or redemption provision.

Registration

Each Certificate will be registered in the name of the purchaser thereof.

Limited Transferability of the Certificates

The Certificates are not freely transferable, and there is no secondary market for the Certificates and none is expected to develop. The Certificates should not be treated by Certificateholders as securities.

The Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. They may not be offered for resale in the absence of an opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Trust, that registration is not required.

Reports

Not later than January 31 of each year, the Trust will furnish to the Certificateholders statements of interest income on IRS Form 1099-INT and such tax information as shall be necessary in the preparation of such person's Federal income tax return.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Timothy M. McGinn, David L. Smith, and Thomas E. Livingston collectively own 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. is acting as the Placement Agent for this Offering and will receive selling commissions and offering expenses equal to eight percent (8%) of the gross proceeds of this Offering. The Underwriting Discount was not negotiated at arms length.

McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. will be paid a fee for acquisition negotiations, legal, and due diligence activities aggregating \$600,000. This fee will be paid by TDMM prior to the acquisition of the assets by TDMM. Additionally, Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith are the majority owners of TDMM and Mario Bustamonte, a minority owner of TDMM, is the owner of Community Services, LLC which will be providing services to all of the acquired properties. A potential conflict of interest arises as a result of these various relationships although all parties endeavor to operate at arms length.

McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. may experience a conflict of interest in performing its obligation to exercise due diligence with respect to the statements made in this Memorandum and, therefore, its due diligence review cannot be considered independent. A qualified independent underwriter has not been retained by the Trust in connection with this offering. However, McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. believes that such due diligence has, in fact, been exercised.

There has been no independent counsel retained to represent the interests of the Certificateholders.

THE TRUSTEE

The names and positions of the directors and executive officers of the Trustee are as follows:

<u>Name</u> <u>Position</u>

Timothy M. McGinn Chairman of the Board and Director

David L. Smith President and Director

Thomas E. Livingston Treasurer

The officers and directors of the Trustee will devote such time and effort to the business of the Trust as they may deem necessary and will actively be engaged in other business ventures.

The principal business occupations of the officers and directors during the past five (5) years are as follows:

Timothy M. McGinn, age 61, is the Chairman of the Board and Secretary of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. He has served as Chairman of the Board since the inception of this firm in 1980. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. McGinn served as Chairman of the Board and CEO of Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. a NASDAQ listed public company. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was with Paine, Webber, Jackson & Curtis. He has served on a number of corporate and charitable boards of directors and holds a bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Rochester Institute of Technology.

David L. Smith, age 64, is the President of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and a member of the Board of Directors. He has served in this capacity since 1980. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was with Paine Webber, Jackson & Curtis. Mr. Smith has served on a number of charitable and corporate boards of directors and holds a bachelor's degree from Hamilton College.

Thomas E. Livingston, age 51, is Sr. Vice President of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and a member of its Board of Directors. Mr. Livingston has been employed by McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. since 1986. Prior to joining McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. he was affiliated with Prudential Bache Securities.

COMPENSATION AND FEES

McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp, the Trustee of the Trust, will serve without fee but will be reimbursed for expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with the Trust by TDMM Cable Funding LLC.

SUITABILITY

Certificates will be sold only to investors who make a minimum purchase of \$25,000.00.

As described elsewhere in this Memorandum, the Certificates will generally be sold only to Accredited Investors as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; provided, however, that at the discretion of the Placement Agent and the Company, Certificates may be sold to up to 35 non-accredited investors. Included in the definition of "Accredited Investor", as defined in Rule 501, are the following:

- (a) any natural person whose individual net worth (including personal residences, furnishings and automobiles), or joint net worth with that person's spouse, at the time of purchase exceeds \$1,000,000;
- (b) any natural person who had an individual income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and who reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year; and
- (c) any entity in which all of the equity owners are Accredited Investors or which has total assets in excess of \$5,000,000.

Each investor accepted as an Accredited Investor will be required to represent that he satisfies the requirements of an Accredited Investor under Rule 501.

Among other things, each investor will be required to acknowledge and represent in the Subscription Agreement that: (i) he is purchasing the Certificates for his own account for investment and not with a view to the sale or distribution thereof; (ii) he is aware that the Certificates have not been registered for sale under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended, and that he will not transfer his Certificates in the absence of an opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Trust that the Certificates have been registered or that registration is not required under the Securities Act of 1933, as then in effect, and under applicable state securities laws, if any; (iii) he understands that this investment involves a high degree of risk; (iv) he has adequate means of providing for his current needs and foreseeable personal contingencies, has no need for liquidity in this investment; (v) all books, records and documents pertaining to this investment have been made available to him; and (vi) his overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to his net worth and his purchase of Certificates will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.

The Placement Agent and Trust reserve the right to reject any subscription in its entirety for any reason or to allocate to any investor Certificates in an aggregate principal amount less than that for which he has subscribed. In the event a subscription is rejected, the investor's subscription check for his Certificates (or the amount thereof) will be returned, and in the event of a partial rejection, a pro rata amount of his subscription check for his Certificates will be refunded.

Prospective investors may be required to complete an Investor Representation Letter relating to the suitability of the investment for them, and the Trust may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as the Trust deems appropriate.

Each prospective investor will be afforded the opportunity to obtain from the Trust prior to the consummation of the transaction contemplated herein any additional information he may request

11

necessary to verify the accuracy of the contents of this Memorandum and which the Trust possesses or can acquire without unreasonable effort or expense and to confer with, ask questions of, and receive answers from the Trust or persons authorized to act on its behalf, concerning the terms and conditions of the transaction, this memorandum and any additional information which has been requested and supplied to a prospective investor or his purchaser representative.

The purchase of Certificates may be suitable for individuals seeking an investment intended to provide income. An investment in Certificates may also be appropriate for corporations and trusts seeking investments which are structured to provide income. Nevertheless, this investment involves a number of significant risks, including no assurance that the Certificates will be paid and illiquidity. See "Risk Factors." Accordingly, the suitability of a purchase of Certificates for any particular investor will depend upon, among other things, such investor's investment objectives and such investor's ability and willingness to accept the risks of an investment in the Certificates.

The Placement Agent Agreement between the Trust and the Placement Agent requires the Placement Agent to make diligent inquiries as required by law of all prospective purchasers in order to ascertain whether a purchase of Certificates is suitable for such person and to transmit promptly to the Trust all fully completed Subscription Agreements. By tendering payment for a Certificate and by acceptance of the confirmation of purchase, an investor represents that he or it satisfies any applicable suitability standards. See "Plan of Distribution."

TERMS OF THE OFFERING

The maximum number of investors the Trust will accept is 95.

Subject to the conditions set forth in this Memorandum, Certificates in the maximum amount of \$3,000,000 (the "Maximum Offering") and the minimum amount of \$250,000 (the "Minimum Offering") will be offered by the Trust.

The Certificates will be offered through McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., the Placement Agent, on a best efforts basis over a period of four (4) months. The Placement Agent is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

All funds received by the Placement Agent from subscriptions for the Certificates will be placed in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account") maintained at Mercantile Bank, Boca Raton, Flordia (the "Escrow Agent"). During the period that an investor's funds are held in the Escrow Account he will not be considered a Certificateholder.

With respect to the Certificates, no funding from the Escrow Account will occur until the Minimum Offering is subscribed for. If subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are not received within four (4) months from the date of this Memorandum, subscriptions received with respect to the Certificates will be promptly returned in full to the investor by the Escrow Agent, unless the Offering is extended.

How to Subscribe.

The Certificates will be available for purchase in the minimum denomination of \$25,000.00 and increments of \$5,000.00. An investor who meets the qualifications set forth under "Who May Invest" and "Suitability" may subscribe for Certificates by completing, signing and delivering to the Placement Agent an executed copy of the Subscription Agreement contained in this Memorandum. All subscriptions must be accompanied by a check in the amount of the Certificate(s) purchased payable to "Mercantile Bank, Escrow Agent for TDMM Benchmark Trust 09". Upon execution of a Subscription Agreement, the investor agrees to all of the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement. Subscriptions are, however, subject to acceptance by the Trust.

12

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Trust is offering a maximum of \$3,000,000 of Certificates, and a minimum of \$250,000. The minimum investment by an investor is \$25,000.00 with increments of \$5,000.00 The Offering of Certificates will terminate on October 31, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. (the "Placement Agent"), upon request from the Trust, will consider an extension of the Offering for four (4) months, terminating on February 28, 2010. No Certificates will be sold unless subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are received and accepted within four (4) months of the date of this Memorandum, unless such time is extended. Subscriptions are subject to acceptance by the Trust. See "Suitability"; "Who May Invest".

During the course of the Offering, the subscription payments will be promptly forwarded by the Placement Agent to the Escrow Agent for deposit in the Escrow Account. For a description of the distribution of funds from the Escrow Account, see "Terms of the Offering".

The Certificates will be offered on a "best efforts" basis by the Placement Agent.

DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE

Reference is hereby made to the Declaration of Trust dated July 10, 2009, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". Other than potential liability under the Act, neither the Trustee, nor any shareholder, manager, officer, employee, affiliate or agent of the Trustee may be held to any liability in connection with the Offering or the Certificates, or in connection with the affairs of the Trust, in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Trustee will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the corpus of the Trust.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion summarizes certain material anticipated federal income tax consequences relevant to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Certificates, but does not purport to address all potential consequences. The summary is for general information only and does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to particular investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or holders who receive special treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), such as insurance companies, financial institutions, and broker-dealers. In addition, this discussion does not describe any tax consequences arising out of foreign, state or local jurisdictions.

The discussion is based upon current provisions of the Code, applicable regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial authority and administrative rulings and practice. All of the foregoing are subject to change which may be retroactive and could affect the continuing validity of this discussion. There can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") will not take a contrary view, and no ruling from the IRS has been or will be sought.

The Trust has not obtained an independent tax opinion with regard to this Offering. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal, foreign, state, local and other tax consequences of purchasing, holding and disposing of the Certificates.

Interest Income to Certificateholders

It is anticipated that the Certificates will be issued at par value and, therefore, no original issue discount will arise with respect to the Certificates. Accordingly, a Certificateholder will be required to report interest on a Certificate as income for federal income tax purposes in accordance with such holder's method of accounting.

Gain or Loss on Disposition of Certificates

In general, the holder of a Certificate will recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange, redemption or other disposition of a Certificate equal to the difference between the amount realized (except to the extent attributable to the payment of accrued interest) and the adjusted basis in his Certificate. Any gain or loss recognized will generally be a Trust gain or loss if the Certificate is held as a Trust asset and will be long-term gain or loss if the Certificate is held for more than one year.

Information Reporting

The Trust will report interest income to Certificateholders on IRS Form 1099-INT and as otherwise consistent with such treatment.

Backup Withholding

A Certificateholder may be subject to "backup withholding" at the rate of 31% (see IRC§3406(a)) with respect to interest paid on, or the proceeds of a sale, exchange or redemption of, such Certificates, unless such holder (i) is a corporation or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates this fact, or (ii) provides a taxpayer identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding, and otherwise complies with applicable exemption from backup withholding rules. Any amount withheld under these rules will be creditable against the Certificateholder's federal tax liability.

THE FOREGOING DISCUSSION OF CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES IS FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND IS NOT TAX ADVICE. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER OWN TAX ADVISER WITH RESPECT TO THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE ACQUISITION, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF THE CERTIFICATES.

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS

The discussion in this Memorandum of each Exhibit set forth below is qualified in its entirety by reference to such Exhibit.

Exhibit "A" Declaration of Trust
Exhibit "B" Subscription Agreement
Exhibit "C" Investor Representation Letter
Exhibit "D" Amortization Schedule
Exhibit "E" Escrow Agreement

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information is available upon request to the Trust. Only additional information provided by the Trust may be relied upon. Prospective investors may request such information from the Placement Agent, McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., Fifth Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

EXHIBIT "A"

DECLARATION OF TRUST

DECLARATION OF TRUST OF TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09

This Trust Agreement (the "Declaration") made as of the 10th of July, 2009 by and between McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp., a New York corporation with an address at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street - 5th Floor, Albany, New York 12207 ("Trustee"), and those persons who acquire an interest herein by the execution and performance of a subscription agreement ("Subscription Agreement") attached as Exhibit B to the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated as of July 27, 2009 ("Confidential Memorandum").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp. desires to create a trust (the "Trust") for the purpose of enabling and authorizing a loan from the Trust to TDMM Cable Funding, LLC and

WHEREAS, the Trustee is willing to accept the duties and obligations imposed hereby on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Trustee does hereby declare, that the Trustee will hold the property which it may acquire as such Trustee, together with the proceeds thereof in trust, to manage and dispose of the same for the benefit of the Certificateholders hereunder in the manner and subject to the stipulations herein contained.

ARTICLE I NAME

This Trust shall be designated and known as the "TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09", not incorporated, and under that name shall, so far as practicable, conduct all activities and execute all instruments in writing in the performance of the Trust.

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

The following words, terms and phrases used herein shall be given the meaning stated below in this Article, unless such meaning would be clearly in conflict with the purposes and spirit of this instrument.

"Certificateholder" shall mean the holder for the time being, according to the books of the Trustee, of the Certificates as evidenced by this Declaration and the Certificates issued by the Trustee.

"Certificates" shall mean the contract certificates issued by the Trustee in favor of Certificateholders to evidence the interest of the Certificateholders in the assets of the Trust.

"Permitted Investments" means a promissory note (the "Note") evidencing a loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding, LLC. In addition, to the extent not employed for the loan from the Trust to TDM Cable Funding, LLC, temporary investments may be made in (1) certificates of deposit, in (2) short term AAA rated debt obligations regularly traded on a recognized exchange in the United States, or in (3) obligations issued by the United States Treasury or other obligations backed by the "full face and credit" of the United States.

"Share" shall mean a share in the beneficial interest of the property, assets, trust fund and corpus of the Trust.

"Transaction Documents" shall mean this Declaration of Trust and the Certificates.

"Trust", "Trust Estate", and "Capital" shall mean the trust fund hereunder, consisting of the corpus of the estate; that is, all property, real, personal and mixed of every kind and description howsoever acquired and wherever situated, held under this Declaration of Trust by the Trustee.

"Trustee" shall mean the trustee herein named, and those who are or may be trustees.

ARTICLE III OFFICE OF THE TRUST

The principal office of this Trust shall be located at Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, 5th Floor, Albany, New York 12207, until changed by the Trustee. The principal office may be changed and branch offices established, maintained, changed and discontinued at such times and places as the Trustee in its discretion may determine, with notice to the Certificateholders.

ARTICLE IV CAPITAL OF THE TRUST

The initial Capital of this Trust shall be One Hundred Dollars (\$100), paid to the Trustee concurrently with execution and delivery hereof. The Capital of the Trust or any part thereof, shall be held for the use and benefit of the Trust at such places and upon such terms as the Trustee may fix. The Trustee may not require any Certificateholder to make any contribution, in addition to the initial contribution made by such Certificateholder, to increase the Capital of the Trust. The Trustee shall receive such contributions to the Capital of the Trust as may be made by Certificateholders from time to time and apply the same for the purpose stated by Article V of this Trust Agreement.

ARTICLE V PURPOSE OF THE TRUST

The purpose of the Trust is to lend the net proceeds derived from subscriptions from the Certificateholders to TDMM Cable Funding, LLC for the purpose of providing a portion of the amounts necessary to allow TDMM Cable Funding, LLC to acquire the operating assets and customer contracts of Benchmark LLC and to pay acquisition costs related thereto.

- (1) The Trustee shall, as far as convenient and practicable, take and hold the title, both legal and equitable, to all property, however acquired under the terms hereof, in the name of the Trust. All conveyances of every kind and description, at any time made to or in the name of the Trustee of the Trust shall be held to vest the title to property so conveyed in the Trustee as such under this instrument, the title "TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09" being merely intended as a convenient designation of the Trustee hereunder.
- (2) The Trustee shall administer and dispose of all properties for the benefit of Certificateholders hereunder, as represented by their Certificates.
- (3) The Trustee shall manage, control and dispose of all the Trust Estate and its business affairs, of every kind and character within the authority granted hereunder.
- (4) The Trustee shall, in such capacity, exclusively and absolutely, have full, absolute and plenary rights, authority to pledge, exchange, mortgage and convey or otherwise dispose of property of every kind, character and description, real, personal and mixed, that may be part of the Trust Estate.
- (5) The Trustee shall have, in furtherance of the purposes of the Trust, the absolute right, power and authority to institute, maintain and defend actions, suits and proceedings in any court of law or equity either in the name of said Trust or in its name as Trustee thereof; to sell, transfer, assign and convey the whole or any part of the Trust Estate, invest and reinvest the proceeds thereof at any time in Permitted Investments provided that the Trustee shall have no obligation to invest such proceeds and shall not be accountable for any losses howsoever incurred; to collect any money, and pledge the assets of the Trust as security therefor; to execute and deliver in the manner herein provided all deeds, leases, mortgages, powers of attorney and other instruments in writing which the Trustee may deem necessary and proper in the exercise of the powers conferred hereunder; and to perform or withhold any act or thing of any kind or character, which in the Trustee's judgment may be necessary, proper or expedient, in

carrying into effect the purposes of this Trust or any purposes specified in this Declaration of Trust, or in any amendments hereto, duly made and adopted.

ARTICLE VI LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE AND CERTIFICATEHOLDERS

Neither the Trustee, nor any of its officers or servants shall have any right, power or authority, under any circumstances, or in any event to act as the agent of the Certificateholders or to bind them personally or to impose any liability or obligation upon them in any way whatsoever with respect to this Trust Estate or otherwise. All persons contracting with the Trustee or its officers, agents or employees shall look only to the Trust Fund for the payment of any damage, claim, judgment or decree, or of any money that may become due or payable in any way to them whether founded upon contract or tort, and neither the Trustee nor the Certificateholders, present or future, nor any of them shall as such be personally liable therefore or on any agreement or contract made by the Trustee, or by any officers, agents or employees of the Trustee, its officers or agents, or employees in connection with the Trust Estate. No amendment shall ever be made to this Declaration of Trust, increasing or enlarging the liability of either the Trustee or the Certificateholders as herein stipulated.

ARTICLE VII LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF TRUSTEE; INDEMNIFICATION

The Trustee shall not be liable hereunder in any event or under any circumstances, for the acts or omissions of any other Trustee or of any officer, agent or employee, or any other person whatsoever, whether employed by such Trustee or not, or for any act or thing whatsoever, other than such Trustee's own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trustee in its individual capacity and as Trustee shall be indemnified by, and receive reimbursement from the Trust Estate against and from any and all liability, claim, damage or loss, suit, action, tax (including interest and penal ties), fine, penalty, cost and expense (including but not limited to legal fees and disbursements) of whatsoever kind and nature which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted at any time against the Trustee (in its individual or trust capacity) in any way relating to or arising out of the administration of the Trust Estate, or arising from any act or omission hereunder or under the Transaction Documents, except such as may arise from such Trustee's own willful misconduct or gross negligence. In addition, the Trustee shall be entitled to indemnification from the Trust Estate for any liability, obligation, loss, damage, penalty, tax, claim, action, suit, cost, expense or disbursement indemnified against pursuant to this Article VII and to secure the same the Trustee shall have a lien on the Trust Estate prior to the interest of the Certificateholders or any other person. Trustee shall file all tax returns and other governmental reports required to be filed by the Trustee in connection with the transaction contemplated hereby. Without limiting the foregoing, the Trustee shall under no circumstances be required to take any action or omit to take any action in the administration of the Trust Estate or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder unless the Trustee determines in its absolute discretion that indemnification in respect of such action or omission is available to it to its reasonable satisfaction, provided that the Trustee shall not be required to take or omit any action if the Trustee shall have been advised by its counsel that taking or omitting such action is contrary to the terms of any other agreement or instrument referred to herein or is otherwise contrary to law. The indemnities contained in this Article VII shall survive the termination of this Trust Agreement.

The Trustee shall not be entitled to receive compensation for its services from the Trust Estate. The Trustee shall not have any duty or obligation to manage, control, use, sell, dispose or otherwise deal with the Trust Estate or to otherwise refrain from taking any such action under or in connection with this Trust Agreement or the other agreements or instruments referred to herein except as expressly provided by the terms of this Trust Agreement, and no implied duties shall be read into this Trust Agreement against the Trustee. The Trustee shall not be answerable or accountable under any circumstances except for its own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Trustee shall no duty to see to the payment or discharge of any tax, assessment or other governmental charge or any lien or encumbrance of any kind owing with respect to, or assessed or levied against, any part of the Trust Estate.

The Trustee shall at all times be entitled to request and receive instructions from the Certificateholders prior to being required to take or omit to take any action hereunder, provided that except as therein specified no further instruction is required for taking of the actions provided by the second sentence of Article V hereof.

THE TRUSTEE MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE VALUE, CONDITIONS, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR USE, VALIDITY, ENFORCEABILITY OF OR TITLE TO ANY PROPERTY AT ANY TIME CONSTITUTING PART OF THE TRUST ESTATE, and makes no representation or warranty as to the validity, legality or enforceability of this Trust Agreement or any agreement or instrument referred to herein, except that the Trustee hereby represents and warrants that this Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by one of its officers, who is duly authorized to execute and deliver such document on its behalf.

The Trustee shall not incur any liability to anyone in acting upon any signature, instrument, notice, resolution, request, consent, telegram, order, certificate, report, opinion, bond, or other document or paper believed by it to be genuine and believed by it to be signed or sent by the proper party or parties. As to any fact or matter, the manner of ascertainment of which is not specifically described herein, the Trustee may for all purposes rely on a certificate signed by an officer of any Certificateholder as to such fact or matter, and such certificate shall constitute full protection to the Trustee for any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in reliance thereon. In the performance of its duties hereunder, the Trustee may act directly or through its agents or attorneys and may, at the expense of the Trust Estate, consult with counsel, accountants and other skilled persons to be selected and employed by it, and the Trustee shall not be liable for anything done, suffered or omitted by it in accordance with the advice or opinion of any such counsel, accountants or other skilled persons.

The Trustee or successor trustee may resign at any time without cause by giving at least 10 days' prior written notice to the Certificateholders, such resignation to be effective on the date specified in such notice. In such event, the Certificateholders shall appoint such new Trustee. If a successor trustee shall not have been appointed prior to the effective date of such resignation, the Trustee may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor trustee until such time, if any, as a successor trustee shall have been appointed. Any successor trustee shall execute and deliver to the predecessor trustee an instrument accepting such appointment and thereupon the predecessor trustee shall be released from its obligations hereunder and the successor trustee shall be vested with all rights, powers, duties and obligations of the Trustee hereunder, and the predecessor trustee shall transfer, deliver, and pay over, at the expense of the Trust Estate, any monies or other property then held by such predecessor trustee upon the Trust herein expressed.

All monies received hereunder by the Trustee shall constitute trust funds for the purpose of which they were paid or are held, but need not be segregated in any manner from any other monies and may be deposited and paid by the Trustee under such conditions as may be prescribed or permitted by law for trust funds.

ARTICLE VIII CERTIFICATEHOLDERS, LACK OF CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

No Certificateholder shall have any title, legal or equitable, to the Trust Estate, real or personal, held from time to time by the Trustee, or to any part thereof, or any right or voice in the management or control of the property or affairs of the Trust, each Certificateholder's interest being only such as is defined in this Declaration of Trust. No Certificateholder shall have the right to call for or demand or secure any partition or accounting during the continuance of this Trust. Its interest in this Trust shall be personal property, carrying only the right to payments pursuant to the Certificate. The Trust shall not be dissolved, nor affected by the death, insolvency or incapacity of the Certificateholder or one or more of the Trustees, nor shall such death, insolvency or incapacity entitle the legal representatives or heirs or assigns, voluntary holder, receiver or trustee to any accounting or to any action at law or in equity or otherwise, against the Certificateholders or Trustee, or against the Trust Estate, or any part thereof, but such legal representative, heir, assign, receiver, or trustee shall succeed to the rights of the deceased, insolvent, bankrupt or incapacitated Certificateholder, subject to this Declaration of Trust and any amendments hereto, and shall succeed to nothing more.

ARTICLE IX NO PARTNERSHIP

It is expressly declared that a trust, and not a partnership, is created and established by this instrument. Neither the Trustee nor any Certificateholder shall ever be deemed in any way whatsoever to be liable or responsible hereunder as partners or otherwise.

ARTICLE X CERTIFICATEHOLDERS; NO PERSONAL LIABILITY

No assessment or other personal liability or obligation shall, under any circumstances or in any event, be made or imposed upon the Certificateholders.

ARTICLE XI REFERENCE TO INSTRUMENT

The Trustee shall, as far as practicable, make reference to the Declaration in every written contract or undertaking that shall be entered into in the name of the Trustee or on behalf of, or relating to the business, affairs or property of this Trust.

ARTICLE XII RELATIONSHIP WITH THIRD PARTIES; NO INQUIRY

In no event and under no circumstances shall any one dealing with the Trustee be obligated either at law or in equity to see to the application of any funds or properties passing into the hands of the Trustee, there being no intention that purchasers of Trust property, or any other parties dealing with the Trustee, shall see that the purchase money is applied to the purposes of the Trust.

ARTICLE XIII INTEREST AND EARNINGS

The Capital of the Trust and the earnings and interest thereon shall be apportioned and distributed to the Certificateholders in accordance with this Declaration and the Certificates issued by the Trustee.

ARTICLE XIV AGREEMENT OF CERTIFICATEHOLDERS

The Certificateholders shall be held to have assented to this Declaration of Trust, and to all acts performed by Trustee within the authority granted by this Declaration.

ARTICLE XV TERM AND TERMINATION

Unless earlier terminated, as hereinafter provided, this Trust shall continue until the earlier of either (i) ten years from the date first hereinabove mentioned or (ii) the date when the Trust shall have distributed all of its Capital. The Trustee may otherwise terminate this Trust only with the unanimous written consent of the Certificateholders, provided, however, that any termination of the Trust shall not impair or have any effect whatever upon the contracts, obligations, and liabilities of said Trust Estate existing or outstanding at the time of such termination. At the expiration or upon the termination of the Trust, the Trustee shall proceed to wind up its affairs, liquidate its assets and distribute the same to the Certificateholders, without recourse or warranty of any kind, and for these purposes the then Trustee shall continue act until such duties have been fully performed. Upon completion of such duties, the Trustee shall be deemed discharged in full.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunt	to set their hands and seals as of the 10 th day of July, 2009.
	MCGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP., not in its individual capacity, except as specified herein, but solely as Trustee under this Declaration of Trust dated as of July 10, 2009.
	By: David L. Smith, President
personally appeared David L. Smith, personally known be the individual whose name is subscribed to the	the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, own to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the re on the instrument, the individuals, or the person upon behalf ent.
	Notary Public

Ехнівіт "В"

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

THE CERTIFICATES WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS AGREEMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. THEY MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR RESALE IN THE ABSENCE OF AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, SATISFACTORY TO THE TRUST, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED. IN ADDITION, THIS AGREEMENT AND THE CERTIFICATES CONTAIN SUBSTANTIAL RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY.

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09

(a New York Trust)

TO: TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09. (the "Trust"):

- 1. <u>Subscriptions</u>. I hereby subscribe for and agree to purchase the dollar amount of the Trust's Certificates (the "Certificates") as is set forth opposite my name acknowledging the minimum purchase to be Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000) and increments of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000).
- 2. <u>Payment</u>. I hereby agree to pay the Trust the purchase price for the Certificates by delivery herewith of a check in the face amount of the Certificates subscribed for payable to the order of "MERCANTILE BANK-Escrow Agent for TDMM Benchmark Trust 09".
- 3. <u>Restriction on Transfer of the Certificates</u>. I understand that any resale or transfer of the Certificates by me is subject to substantial restriction, in that:
 - (i) The Certificates have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended or applicable state securities laws. The Certificates cannot be sold or transferred by subscribers in the absence of an opinion of counsel that registration is not necessary. The Trust is not required to register the Certificates or to make any exemption from registration available.
 - (ii) My right to sell or transfer any of the Certificates will be restricted as follows: (1) restrictions against sale or transfer in violation of applicable securities law; (2) the requirement that I furnish an opinion of counsel that any proposed sale or transfer by me will not violate such laws; (3) the Trust must consent to the transfer of my Certificates; and (4) other restrictions and requirements, including such restrictions on transfer arising under state securities laws.
 - (iii) There will be no public market for the Certificates, and I may not be able to sell my Certificates. Accordingly, I must bear the economic risk of my investment for an indefinite period of time.
- 4. <u>Investment Representation</u>. I represent and warrant that I am acquiring Certificates for my own account and not on behalf of other persons, and that I am acquiring Certificates for investment purposes only and not with a view to the resale or distribution thereof; I understand that the Certificates will be offered and sold in a manner which would qualify the transaction for an exemption as a private placement under Rule 506 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Certificates may not be transferred or assigned except as provided herein.
- 5. <u>Subscription Irrevocable by Certificateholder</u>. This Subscription Agreement is not, and shall not be, revocable by me, except as provided by applicable state securities law requirements and I intend to be legally bound by this Subscription Agreement.
- 6. <u>Subscription Subject to Acceptance or Rejection by the Trust</u>. The Trust, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to accept or reject this subscription at any time on or before the Closing.

- 7. Offering of Certificates Subject to Withdrawal. If the Trust does not receive subscriptions for Certificates in the minimum amount of \$250,000.00 before the Termination Date, as such date may be extended the Offering of Certificates will be withdrawn and I understand that all my subscription documents and payments will be returned to me, with interest, less the cost of escrow, and without further obligation of the Trust.
- 8. Additional Representations and Warranties. I represent and warrant that:
 - (a) (i) I have received and have carefully read and understood the Memorandum dated July 27, 2009 (the "Memorandum") given to me by the Trust in connection with the offering of Certificates.
 - (ii) I have been furnished with all additional documents and information which I have requested.
 - (iii) I have had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Trust concerning the Trust and the offering of Certificates and to obtain any additional information necessary to verify the accuracy of the information furnished.
 - (iv) I have relied only on the foregoing information and documents in determining to make this subscription, and the decision to acquire Certificates of the Trust has been made based upon my own evaluation of the merits and risks of the Trust.
 - (v) I will not offer to sell, or resell, the Certificates except in accordance with Section 3(ii) hereof.
 - (vi) I will require any purchaser to provide the Trust with his address.
 - (b) I recognize that investment in the Certificates involves substantial risk factors, including those set forth under "Risks" in the Memorandum.
 - (c) I have adequate means of providing for my current needs and possible personal contingencies, and I have no need for liquidity in my investment in the Certificates.
 - (d) My overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to my net worth and my purchase of Certificates will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.
- 9. <u>Indemnification and Hold Harmless</u>. If I breach any agreement, representation or warranty I have made in this Subscription Agreement or any other document I have executed in connection with this offering, I agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Trust, the Trustee, or any officer or director of the Trustee and any person controlling either or any of them against any claims, actions, liability, loss, damage or expense (including attorney's fees and other costs of investigation and litigating claims) caused, directly or indirectly, by my breach.

10. <u>Subscriber Information</u> . This	Subscription and my Certif	icates shall be recorded on the Tru	ıst's books.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have execute	ed this Subscription Agreer	nent this day of	·
Print Name:	exact name in which title is	s to be held	
Printed Name	Tax ID#	Printed Name	Tax ID#
Signature: X	·	Signature X	
Address:		Amount Purchased: \$	
		Rate 10.50%	

ACCEPTED BY TDMM BENCHMARK	TRUST 09 this of, 2009.
	McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp Trustee
	By: David L. Smith, Principal

EXHIBIT "C"

INVESTOR REPRESENTATION LETTER

CONFIDENTIAL

PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE FOR INDIVIDUALS

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (A New York Trust)

The offering is being made pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"). One of the requirements of the Regulation is that the persons involved in the offering and sale of the securities must have reasonable grounds to believe:

- (i) that the Offeree has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment; and
- (ii) the undersigned is acquiring the Certificates for investment purposes only and not with a view towards resale.

The undersigned is aware that this offering will involve Certificates for which no resale market exists, thereby requiring this investment to be maintained for the stated term of each Certificate.

Your answers will, at all times, be kept strictly confidential; however, each party who signs the questionnaire hereby agrees that the Trust may present this questionnaire to such parties as may seem appropriate in order to insure that the offer and sale of the Certificates to you will not result in violation of any exemption from registration under the Act which may be relied upon by the Trust in connection with the sale of the Certificates.

Please complete this questionnaire as thoroughly as possible and sign, date and return one (1) copy to the Trust c/o McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Please print or type:			
Name:			
Home Address:			
Date of Birth:			
Social Security No.:			
Occupation:			
Business Address:			
Business Telephone:			
Home Telephone:			
Communications should be s	sent to:		
Home Address	or	Business Address	

1.	What is your approximate net worth	?
	\$50,000	¢100 000
		- \$100,000 0 - \$250,000
		0 - \$500,000
		0 - \$1,000,000
		than \$1,000,000
	Groutor	man #1,000,000
2.	Did your individual income exceed your spouse exceed \$300,000.00 in	\$200,000.00 in 2007 and 2008, or did your joint income with each of those years?
	Yes	No
3.	If the answer to #2 above is "yes", d	o you expect to reach the same income level in 2009?
	Yes	No
4.	What was your approximate gross in	ncome for calendar year 2008?
		- \$100,000
		0 - \$200,000
		0 - \$300,000
	\$300,00	
	Greater	tnan \$300,000
5.	What will your approximate gross in	ncome be for calendar year 2009?
	. \$25,000	- \$100,000
		0 - \$200,000
	\$200,00	0 - \$300,000
		0 - \$500,000
	Greater	than \$500,000
		above information is accurate and complete in all respects. anges which occur prior to sale of the Certificates.
Purc	haser	Date:
Nam	ne (printed)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Sign	ature	

CONFIDENTIAL

PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE FOR CORPORATIONS AND PARTNERSHIPS

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (A New York Trust)

The offering is being made pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"). One of the requirements of the Regulation is that the persons involved in the offering and sale of the securities must have reasonable grounds to believe either:

- (i) that the Offeree has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment; or
- (ii) that the Offeree and its Offeree Representative(s), together, have such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, that they are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment and that the Offeree is able to bear the economic risk of the investment.

The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assist TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (the "Trust") in complying with the above requirement.

Please contact McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207 (518-449-5131) if you have any questions in answering this questionnaire.

If the answer to any questions "None" or "Not Applicable", please so state.

Your answers will, at all times, be kept strictly confidential; however, each party who signs the Questionnaire hereby agrees that the Trust may present this Questionnaire to such parties as may seem appropriate in order to insure that the offer and sale of the Certificates to you will not result in violation of any exemption from registration under the Act which may be relied upon by the Trust in connection with the sale of the Certificates.

Please complete this Questionnaire as thoroughly as possible and sign, date and return one (1) copy to the Trust c/o McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc., 5th Floor, 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Please print or type: Name of Organization: Business Address: Business Telephone: Federal ID Number: 1. Was the organization formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Trust's Certificates? Yes ___ No____ 2. Does the organization possess total assets in excess of \$5,000,000? Yes No 3. Does each equity owner of the organization: A. Have a net worth, exclusive of home, furnishings, and automobiles, of at least \$1,000,000?

Yes

B. Had an individual net income in excess of \$200,000 in 2007 and 2008, or joint income with

			of \$300,000 in each of those years, and neome level in 2009.	have a reasonable
		Yes	No	
4. transfer		at the Certificate	s proposed to be offered will not be re	adily marketable or
		Yes	No	
5. need for	The organization r liquidity in this is		complete loss of its investments in the Cer	rtificates and has no
		Yes	No	
6. placeme	Stated below arents during the par		n's previous investments in similar securiti	es and other private
matters	er of Certificates to be capable of	s, I must have s evaluating the me	ganization satisfies certain criteria, in or ufficient knowledge and experience in finitis and risks of an investment in the Trust sor for the purpose of this particular transac	ancial and business or I must engage an
I hereby	represent, by init	tialing on the Rep	resentation A or Representation B line below	v, that:
Α.			erience in financial and business matters t an investment in the Certificates and will no	
			Representation A.	
B.	I have relied upo and risks of an in	on the advice of the overtiment in the o		
			Representation B.	
Name			Name	
Relation	nship	H	Relationship	
respects Certific	. I agree to not	ny information and ify the Trust pro	d belief, the above information is accurate nptly of any changes which occur prior to	and complete in all sale of the Trust's
Purchas	er:		Date:	
Print N	ame of Organizat	ion		
Ву:				
Title: _		u	_	

PURCHASER REPRESENTATIVE QUESTIONNAIRE

TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09

The information contained herein is being furnished to TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (the "Trust") in order to facilitate a determination as to whether the undersigned may act as a Purchaser Representative, as such term is used in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "Act"), in connection with the proposed offer and sale by the Trust of its Contract Certificates (hereinafter referred to as the "Certificates"). The answers below are correct, and the Trustee is entitled to rely on them in making the foregoing determination.

REPRESENTATIONS

I represent, warrant and covenant to you that:

- (a) the information contained herein is complete and accurate and may be relied upon by you in determining whether I may act as a Purchaser Representative pursuant to Regulation D in connection with offers and sales of the Certificates:
- (b) I will notify you immediately of any material change in any of such information occurring within ninety (90) days of the close of sale of the Certificates to the Purchaser;
- (c) (i) I have been designated, or will be designated, pursuant to the Purchaser Questionnaire of each Purchaser, as the Purchaser Representative or such Purchaser, in connection with evaluating the merits and risks of his prospective investment in the Certificates;
- (ii) I have disclosed or will disclose, to each Purchaser, in writing, prior to the designation referred to above, any material relationship between me or my affiliates and the Trust, which now exists or is mutually understood to be contemplated, or which has existed at any time during the previous two (2) years, and any compensation received as a result of such relationship, including any compensation received in connection the offering of Certificates herein; and
- (iii) I will deliver to each of you a counterpart of the disclosure statement referred to in (ii) above, and such other documents or information as each of you may request relating to the performance by me of my duties as a Purchaser Representative.

(Attach additional sheets if required)

Name:	
Age:	
Social Security No.:	
Names of offerees I am representing:	
	<u> </u>
Firm name:	 -
Empl. Iden. No.:	
Position:	
Nature of Duties:	

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-RFT Document 4-23. Filed 04/20/10 Page 32 of 44

Dutana a a a a a a a			
Prior occupations	or positions d	uring the past five years:	
	,		
			
		·	
description of the	types of inve		respect to investments, inclinvolved, and the number of ented matters:
General Investme	nts (specify)		
		<u></u>	
		•	
Private Placement	ts (specify)		
Other Investments	s (specify)		
The Professional estate brokerage follows:	licenses or reg	gistrations (including bar ad er-dealer or investments adv	missions, accounting certificationsy registrations) held by m
Registration	•	Year Received	Is License or Registration Still Effective?
My educational b	ackground, inc	cluding degrees obtained and	date of attendance:
	its affiliates,		ad any material relationship Trust, and no such relation

-	connection with this transaction) are as follow	
	Neither I nor any of my affiliates own benefi	cially any interest in the Trust except as follows
		e Placement Memorandum dated July 27, 200
-		
-		
		Purchaser Representative Signature
	;	Type Purchaser Representative Name
		Firm Name
		Street Address
		City and State
	:	() Telephone
	Acknowledgeme	ent of Investor(s)
sents	ated person serve as my Purchaser Repres	day of, 200, and set that I have read the foregoing and desire the entative with respect to the offering of the T
	j	Investor's Signature
	·	Investor's Signature
		Investor's Signature

Ехнівіт "D"

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

Exhibit "D"

Month	Payment D	ate	EBITDA	Begin Balance	10.50% Interest	Principal Payments	Total Debt serv	Ending Balance
1	October	2009	\$37,500	\$3,000,000	\$26,250	\$11,250	\$37,500	\$2,988,750
2	November	2009	\$37,500	\$2,988,750	\$26,152	\$11,348	\$37,500	\$2,977,402
3	December	2009	\$37,500	\$2,977,402	\$26,052	\$11,448	\$37,500	\$2,965,954
4	January	2010	\$37,500	\$2,965,954	\$25,952	\$11,548	\$37,500	\$2,954,406
5	February	2010	\$37,500	\$2,954,406	\$25,851	\$11,649	\$37,500	\$2,942,757
6	March	2010	\$37,500	\$2,942,757	\$25,749	\$11,751	\$37,500	\$2,931,006
7	April	2010	\$37,500	\$2,931,006	\$25,646	\$11,854	\$37,500	\$2,919,152
8	May	2010	\$37,500	\$2,919,152	\$25,543	\$11,957	\$37,500	\$2,907,195
9	June	2010	\$37,500	\$2,907,195	\$25,438	\$12,062	\$37,500	\$2,895,133
10 11	July August	2010 2010	\$52,500 \$53,500	\$2,895,133	\$25,332	\$27,168	\$52,500 \$52,500	\$2,867,965
12	September	2010	\$52,500 \$52,500	\$2,867,965 \$2,840,560	\$25,095 \$24,855	\$27,405 \$27,645	\$52,500 \$52,500	\$2,840,560
13	October	2010	\$53,813	\$2,812,915	\$24,633	\$27,045	\$52,500 \$53,813	\$2,812,915 \$2,783,715
14	November	2010	\$53,813	\$2,783,715	\$24,358	\$29,455	\$53,813 \$53,813	\$2,763,715
15	December	2010	\$53,813	\$2,754,260	\$24,100	\$29,713	\$53,813	\$2,724,548
16	January	2011	\$53,813	\$2,724,548	\$23,840	\$29,973	\$53,813	\$2,694,575
1 7	February	2011	\$53,813	\$2,694,575	\$23,578	\$30,235	\$53,813	\$2,664,340
18	March	2011	\$53,813	\$2,664,340	\$23,313	\$30,500	\$53,813	\$2,633,841
19	April	2011	\$53,813	\$2,633,841	\$23,046	\$30,766	\$53,813	\$2,603,074
20	May	2011	\$53,813	\$2,603,074	\$22,777	\$31,036	\$53,813	\$2,572,039
21	June	2011	\$53,813	\$2,572,039	\$22,505	\$31,307	\$53,813	\$2,540,731
22	July	2011	\$53,813	\$2,540,731	\$22,231	\$31,581	\$53,813	\$2,509,150
23	August	2011	\$53,813	\$2,509,150	\$21,955	\$31,857	\$53,813	\$2,477,293
24	September	2011	\$53,813	\$2,477,293	\$21,676	\$32,136	\$53,813	\$2,445,157
25	October	2011	\$55,158	\$2,445,157	\$21,395	\$33,763	\$55,158	\$2,411,394
26	November	2011	\$55,158	\$2,411,394	\$21,100	\$34,058	\$55,158	\$2,377,336
27	December	2011	\$55,158 \$55,458	\$2,377,336	\$20,802	\$34,356	\$55,158	\$2,342,980
28 29	January February	2012 2012	\$55,158 \$55,158	\$2,342,980	\$20,501	\$34,657	\$55,158 \$55,450	\$2,308,323
30	March	2012	\$55,158 \$55,158	\$2,308,323	\$20,198	\$34,960 \$35,366	\$55,158 \$55,458	\$2,273,363
31	April	2012	\$55,158 \$55,158	\$2,273,363 \$2,238,097	\$19,892 \$10,593	\$35,266 \$35,574	\$55,158 \$55,450	\$2,238,097
32	May	2012	\$55,158 \$55,158	\$2,202,523	\$19,583 \$19,272	\$35,574 \$35,886	\$55,158 \$55,450	\$2,202,523
33	June	2012	\$55,158	\$2,202,323	\$18,958	\$36,200	\$55,158 \$55,158	\$2,166,637
34	July	2012	\$55,158	\$2,130,437	\$18,641	\$36,200 \$36,516	\$55,158 \$55,158	\$2,130,437 \$2,093,921
35	August	2012	\$55,158	\$2,093,921	\$18,322	\$36,836	\$55,158	\$2,057,085
36	September	2012	\$55,158	\$2,057,085	\$17,999	\$37,158	\$55,158	\$2,019,926
37	October	2012	\$56,537	\$2,019,926	\$17,674	\$38,862	\$56,537	\$1,981,064
38	November	2012	\$56,537	\$1,981,064	\$17,334	\$39,202	\$56,537	\$1,941,862
39	December	2012	\$56,537	\$1,941,862	\$16,991	\$39,545	\$56,537	\$1,902,316
40	January	2013	\$56,537	\$1,902,316	\$16,645	\$39,891	\$56,537	\$1,862,425
41	February	2013	\$56,537	\$1,862,425	\$16,296	\$40,241	\$56,537	\$1,822,184
42	March	2013	\$56,537	\$1,822,184	\$15,944	\$40,593	\$56,537	\$1,781,591
43	April	2013	\$56,537	\$1,781,591	\$15,589	\$40,948	\$56,537	\$1,740,644
44 45	May	2013	\$56,537	\$1,740,644	\$15,231	\$41,306	\$56,537	\$1,699,337
45 46	June	2013	\$56,537	\$1,699,337	\$14,869	\$41,668	\$56,537	\$1,657,670
47	July August	2013 2013	\$56,537 \$56,537	\$1,657,670 \$1,645,630	\$14,505 \$14,427	\$42,032	\$56,537 \$50,537	\$1,615,638
48	September	2013	\$56,537 \$56,537	\$1,615,638 \$1,573,238	\$14,137	\$42,400 \$42,771	\$56,537	\$1,573,238
49	October	2013	\$50,950 \$57,950	\$1,573,236 \$1,530,467	\$13,766 \$13,392	\$42,771 \$44,559	\$56,537 \$57,950	\$1,530,467 \$1,485,908
50	November	2013	\$57,950 \$57,950	\$1,485,908	\$13,002	\$44,948	\$57,950 \$57,950	\$1,465,966
51	December	2013	\$57,950	\$1,440,960	\$12,608	\$45,342	\$57,950 \$57,950	\$1,395,618
52	January	2014	\$57,950	\$1,395,618	\$12,212	\$45,739	\$57,950 \$57,950	\$1,349,879
53	February	2014	\$57,950	\$1,349,879	\$11,811	\$46,139	\$57,950 \$57,950	\$1,303,741
54	March	2014	\$57,950	\$1,303,741	\$11,408	\$46,542	\$57,950 \$57,950	\$1,257,198
55	April	2014	\$57,950	\$1,257,198	\$11,000	\$46,950	\$57,950	\$1,210,249
56	May	2014	\$57,950	\$1,210,249	\$10,590	\$47,361	\$57,950	\$1,162,888
57	June	2014	\$57,950	\$1,162,888	\$10,175	\$47,775	\$57,950	\$1,115,113
58	July	2014	\$57,950	\$1,115,113	\$9,757	\$48,193	\$57,950	\$1,066,920
59	August	2014	\$57,950	\$1,066,920	\$9,336	\$48,615	\$57,950	\$1,018,306
. 60	September	2014	\$57,950	\$1,018,306	\$8,910	\$49,040	\$57,950	\$969,266
61	October	2014	\$57,950	\$969,266	\$8,481	\$969,266	\$977,747	\$0

Exhibit "D-1"

Month	Payment D)ate	EBITDA	Begin Balance	10.50% Interest	Principal Payments	Total Debt serv	Ending Balance
1	October	2009	\$313	\$25,000	\$219	\$94	\$313	\$24,906
2	November	2009	\$313	\$24,906	\$218	\$95	\$313	\$24,812
3	December	2009	\$313	\$24,812	\$217	\$95	\$313	\$24,716
4	January	2010	\$313	\$24,716	\$216	\$96	\$313	\$24,620
5	February	2010	\$313	\$24,620	\$215	\$97	\$313	\$24,523
6	March	2010	\$313	\$24,523	\$215	\$98	\$313	\$24,425
7 8	April May	2010 2010	\$313 \$313	\$24,425	\$214	\$99 \$100	\$313 \$313	\$24,326
9	June	2010	\$313 \$313	\$24,326 \$24,227	\$213 \$212	\$100 \$101	\$313 \$313	\$24,227 \$24,126
10	July	2010	\$438	\$24,126	\$211	\$226	\$438	\$23,900
11	August	2010	\$438	\$23,900	\$209	\$228	\$438	\$23,671
12	September	2010	\$438	\$23,671	\$207	\$230	\$438	\$23,441
13	October	2010	\$448	\$23,441	\$205	\$243	\$448	\$23,198
14	November	2010	\$448	\$23,198	\$203	\$245	\$448	\$22,952
15	December	2010	\$448	\$22,952	\$201	\$248	\$448	\$22,705
16	January	2011	\$448	\$22,705	\$199	\$250	\$448	\$22,455
17	February	2011	\$448	\$22,455	\$196	\$252	\$4 48	\$22,203
18	March	2011	\$448	\$22,203	\$194	\$254	\$448	\$21,949
19 2 0	April	2011	\$448	\$21,949	\$192	\$256	\$448	\$21,692
20	May June	2011 2011	\$448 \$448	\$21,692 \$21,434	\$190 \$188	\$259	\$448 \$448	\$21,434
22	July	2011	\$448	\$21,434	\$185	\$261 \$263	\$448	\$21,173 \$20,910
23	August	2011	\$448	\$20,910	\$183	\$265	\$448	\$20,910
24	September	2011	\$448	\$20,644	\$181	\$268	\$448	\$20,376
25	October	2011	\$460	\$20,376	\$178	\$281	\$460	\$20,095
26	November	2011	\$460	\$20,095	\$176	\$284	\$460	\$19,811
27	December	2011	\$460	\$19,811	\$173	\$286	\$460	\$19,525
28	January	2012	\$460	\$19,525	\$17.1	\$289	\$460	\$19,236
29	February	2012	\$460	\$19,236	\$168	\$291	\$460	\$18,945
30	March	2012	\$460	\$18,945	\$166	\$294	\$460	\$18,651
31	April	2012	\$460	\$18,651	\$163	\$296	\$460	\$18,354
32	May	2012	\$460	\$18,354	\$161	\$299	\$460	\$18,055
33	June	2012	\$460	\$18,055	\$158	\$302	\$460	\$17,754
34 35	July August	2012 2012	\$460 \$460	\$17,754 \$17,440	\$155 \$153	\$304 \$307	\$460 \$460	\$17,449
36	September	2012	\$460 \$460	\$17,449 \$17,142	\$153 \$150	\$307 \$310	\$460 \$460	\$17,142
37	October	2012	\$400 \$471	\$17,142 \$16,833	\$130 \$147	\$310 \$324	\$4 60 \$4 71	\$16,833 \$16,509
38	November	2012	\$471	\$16,509	\$144	\$327	\$471	\$16,182
39	December	2012	\$471	\$16,182	\$142	\$330	\$471	\$15,853
40	January	2013	\$471	\$15,853	\$139	\$332	\$471	\$15,520
41	February	2013	\$471	\$15,520	\$136	\$335	\$471	\$15,185
42	March	2013	\$471	\$15,185	\$133	\$338	\$471	\$14,847
43	April	2013	\$471	\$14,847	\$130	\$341	\$471	\$14,505
44 45	May	2013	\$471	\$14,505	\$127	\$344	\$471	\$14,161
45 46	June July	2013 2013	\$471 \$471	\$14,161 \$12.844	\$124 \$424	\$347	\$471 \$471	\$13,814
47	August	2013	\$471 \$471	\$13,814 \$13,464	\$121 \$140	\$350	\$471 \$474	\$13,464 \$43,440
48	September	2013	\$471 \$471	\$13,464 \$13,110	\$118 \$115	\$353 \$356	\$471 \$471	\$13,110 \$12,754
49	October	2013	\$483	\$13,110	\$113	\$371	\$471 \$483	\$12,754 \$12,383
50	November	2013	\$483	\$12,383	\$108	\$375	\$483	\$12,008
51	December	2013	\$483	\$12,008	\$105	\$378	\$483	\$11,630
52	January	2014	\$483	\$11,630	\$102	\$381	\$483	\$11,249
53	February	2014	\$483	\$11,249	\$98	\$384	\$483	\$10,865
54	March	2014	\$483	\$10,865	\$95	\$388	\$483	\$10,477
55	April	2014	\$483	\$10,477	\$92	\$391	\$483	\$10,085
56	May	2014	\$483	\$10,085	\$88	\$395	\$483	\$9,691
57	June	2014	\$483	\$9,691	\$85	\$398	\$483	\$9,293
58 50	July	2014	\$483 \$483	\$9,293	\$81	\$402	\$483	\$8,891
59 60	August September	2014	\$483 \$483	\$8,891 \$8,496	\$78	\$405 \$400	\$483	\$8,486
61	September October	2014 2014	\$483 \$483	\$8,486 \$8,077	\$74 \$71	\$409 \$9.077	\$483 \$9.149	\$8,077
O I	OCIODE!	2014	Φ403	\$8,077	\$71	\$8,077	\$8,148	\$0

Exhibit "D-2"

Month	Payment I	Date	EBITDA	Begin Balance	10.50% Interest	Principal Payments	Total Debt serv	Ending Balance
1	October	2000	#4 DEO	\$400.000	#075	****	A4.050	
2	November	2009 2009	\$1,250 \$1,250	\$100,000 \$99,625	\$875 \$872	\$375 \$378	\$1,250 \$1,250	\$99,625 \$99,247
3	December	2009	\$1,250	\$99,247	\$868		\$1,250	\$98,865
4	January	2010	\$1,250	\$98,865	\$865	\$385	\$1,250	\$98,480
5	February	2010	\$1,250	\$98,480	\$862	\$388	\$1,250	\$98,092
6	March	2010	\$1,250	\$98,092	\$858	\$392	\$1,250	\$97,700
7 8	April May	2010	\$1,250 \$1,250	\$97,700	\$855	\$395	\$1,250	\$97,305
9	June	2010 2010	\$1,250 \$1,250	\$97,305 \$96,906	\$851 \$848	\$399 \$402	\$1,250 \$1,250	\$96,906
10	July	2010	\$1,750	\$96,504	\$844	\$ 4 02 \$906	\$1,250 \$1,750	\$96,504 \$95,599
11	August	2010	\$1,750	\$95,599	\$836	\$914	\$1,750	\$94,685
12	September	2010	\$1,750	\$94,685	\$828	\$922	\$1,750	\$93,764
13	October	2010	\$1,794	\$93,764	\$820	\$973	\$1,794	\$92,791
14 15	November	2010	\$1,794 \$1,704	\$92,791	\$812	\$982	\$1,794	\$91,809
16	December January	2010 2011	\$1,794 \$1,794	\$91,809	\$803	\$990	\$1,794 \$4.704	\$90,818
17	February	2011	\$1,794 \$1,794	\$90,818 \$89,819	\$795 \$786	\$999 \$1,008	\$1,794 \$1,794	\$89,819 \$88,811
18	March	2011	\$1,794	\$88,811	\$777	\$1,000	\$1,794	\$87,795
19	April	2011	\$1,794	\$87,795	\$768	\$1,026	\$1,794	\$86,769
20	May	2011	\$1,794	\$86,769	\$759	\$1,035	\$1,794	\$85,735
21	June	2011	\$1,794	\$85,735	\$750	\$1,044	\$1,794	\$84,691
22	July	2011	\$1,794	\$84,691	\$741	\$1,053	\$1,794	\$83,638
23 24	August September	2011 2011	\$1,794 \$1,794	\$83,638	\$732 \$732	\$1,062	\$1,794	\$82,576
25	October	2011	\$1,79 4 \$1,839	\$82,576 \$81,505	\$723 \$713	\$1,071 \$1,125	\$1,794 \$1,830	\$81,505
26	November	2011	\$1,839	\$80,380	\$703	\$1,125 \$1,135	\$1,839 \$1,839	\$80,380
27	December	2011	\$1,839	\$79,245	\$693	\$1,135 \$1,145	\$1,839 \$1,839	\$79,245 \$78,099
28	January	2012	\$1,839	\$78,099	\$683	\$1,155	\$1,839	\$76,944
29	February	2012	\$1,839	\$76,944	\$673	\$1,165	\$1,839	\$75,779
30	March	2012	\$1,839	\$75,779	\$663	\$1,176	\$1,839	\$74,603
31	April .	2012	\$1,839	\$74,603	\$653	\$1,186	\$1,839	\$73,417
32	May	2012	\$1,839	\$73,417	\$642	\$1,196	\$1,839	\$72,221
33 34	June July	2012 2012	\$1,839 \$1,830	\$72,221	\$632	\$1,207	\$1,839	\$71,015
35	August	2012	\$1,839 \$1,839	\$71,015 \$69,797	\$621 \$611	\$1,217 \$1,228	\$1,839 \$1,830	\$69,797
36	September	2012	\$1,839	\$68,569	\$600	\$1,239	\$1,839 \$1,839	\$68,569 \$67,331
37	October	2012	\$1,885	\$67,331	\$589	\$1,295	\$1,885	\$66,035
38	November	2012	\$1,885	\$66,035	\$578	\$1,307	\$1,885	\$64,729
39	December	2012	\$1,885	\$64,729	\$566	\$1,318	\$1,885	\$63,411
40	January	2013	\$1,885	\$63,411	\$555	\$1,330	\$1,885	\$62,081
41 42	February March	2013 2013	\$1,885 \$1,885	\$62,081 \$60,730	\$543	\$1,341 \$4,350	\$1,885	\$60,739
43	April	2013	\$1,885	\$60,739 \$59,386	\$531 \$520	\$1,353 \$1,365	\$1,885 \$1,885	\$59,386
44	May	2013	\$1,885	\$58,021	\$508	\$1,377	\$1,885 \$1,885	\$58,021 \$56,645
45	June	2013	\$1,885	\$56,645	\$ 496	\$1,389	\$1,885	\$55,256
46	July	2013	\$1,885	\$55,256	\$483	\$1,401	\$1,885	\$53,855
47	August	2013	\$1,885	\$53,855	\$471	\$1,413	\$1,885	\$52,441
48	September	2013	\$1,885	\$52,441	\$459	\$1,426	\$1,885	\$51,016
49 50	October November	2013 2013	\$1,932 \$1,932	\$51,016 \$40,530	\$446 \$433	\$1,485	\$1,932	\$49,530
51	December	2013	\$1,932 \$1,932	\$49,530 \$48,032	\$433 \$420	\$1,498	\$1,932 \$4,032	\$48,032
52	January	2014	\$1,932	\$46,521	\$420 \$407	\$1,511 \$1,525	\$1,932 \$1,932	\$46,521 \$44,996
53	February	2014	\$1,932	\$44,996	\$394	\$1,538	\$1,932	\$43,458
54	March	2014	\$1,932	\$43,458	\$380	\$1,551	\$1,932	\$41,907
55	April .	2014	\$1,932	\$41,907	\$367	\$1,565	\$1,932	\$40,342
56	May	2014	\$1,932	\$40,342	\$353	\$1,579	\$1,932	\$38,763
57 58	June	2014	\$1,932 \$1,032	\$38,763	\$339	\$1,592	\$1,932	\$37,170
5 6	July August	2014 2014	\$1,932 \$1,932	\$37,170 \$35,564	\$325 \$311	\$1,606 \$1,600	\$1,932	\$35,564
60	September	2014	\$1,932 \$1,932	\$35,564 \$33,944	\$311 \$297	\$1,620 \$1,635	\$1,932 \$1,932	\$33,944
61	October	2014	\$1,932	\$32,309	\$283	\$32,309	\$32,592	\$32,309 \$0
	-		,	+,000	7200	. 402,000	\$ 02,002	ΨΟ

EXHIBIT "E"

ESCROW AGREEMENT

ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of July 24, 2009 by and among Mercantile Bank ("Escrow Agent"), MCGINN, SMITH & CO. INC. (the "Underwriter") and TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 (the "Trust").

RECITALS

The Trust proposes to offer for sale to investors (the "Offering") through one or more registered broker-dealers \$3,000,000 of Contract Certificates (the "Securities") in the minimum denomination of \$25,000.00, and increments of \$5,000.00, (the "Proceeds").

The Underwriter intends to sell the Securities as the Trust's agent on a best efforts all-or-none maximum/minimum basis in a private offering, with a minimum amount of \$250,000 (the "Minimum") and a maximum amount of \$3,000,000 (the "Maximum").

The Trust and the Underwriter desire to establish an escrow account into which funds received from subscribers will be deposited pending completion of the escrow period. The Escrow Agent agrees to serve as Escrow Agent in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

AGREEMENT

Now therefore, in consideration of the foregoing, the covenants and conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, it is hereby agreed as follows:

- 1. <u>Appointment of Escrow Agent</u>. The Trust hereby appoints the Escrow Agent as escrow agent in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, and the Escrow Agent hereby accepts such appointment.
- 2. <u>Selected Dealer</u>. The term "Selected Dealer" as used herein shall include the Underwriter and other counderwriters and/or other selected dealers as part of the selling group. All Selected Dealers shall be bound by this Agreement. However, for purposes of communications the Escrow Agent will only accept those signed by an authorized representative of the Underwriter.
- 3. <u>Establishment of Escrow Account.</u> On or prior to the date of the commencement of the Offering, the parties shall establish an interest bearing escrow account with the Escrow Agent, which escrow account shall be entitled TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09, Escrow Account (the "Escrow Account"). The Selected Dealer will instruct subscribers to make checks for subscriptions payable to the order of Mercantile Bank, Escrow Agent for TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09. Any checks received that are made payable to a party other than the Escrow Agent shall be returned to the Selected Dealer who submitted the check.
- 4. <u>Escrow Period</u>. The Escrow Period shall begin with the commencement of the Offering and shall terminate upon the earlier to occur of the following dates:
 - a. The date upon which the Escrow Agent confirms that it has received in the Escrow Account gross proceeds of \$250,000 in deposited funds (the "Minimum"); or
 - b. The expiration of three (3) months from the date of commencement of the Offering (unless extended as permitted in the offering document for an additional four (4) months by mutual written agreement between the Trust and the Underwriter with a copy of such extension to the Escrow Agent); or
 - c. The date upon which a determination is made by the Trust and the Underwriter to terminate the offering prior to the sale of the Minimum.

The Trust is aware and understands that during the Escrow Period it is not entitled to any funds received into escrow and no amounts deposited in the Escrow Account shall become the property of the Trust or any other entity, or be subject to the debts of the Trust or any other entity.

- 5. <u>Deposits Into the Escrow Account</u>. The Selected Dealer agrees that it shall promptly deliver all monies received from subscribers for the payment of the Securities to the Escrow Agent for deposit to the Escrow Account together with a written account of each sale, which account shall set forth, among other things, the subscriber's name and address, social security number, the number of securities purchased, the amount paid therefor, and whether the consideration received was in the form of a check, draft or money order (checks, drafts, money orders or similar financial instruments are referred to herein as "Checks"). All monies so deposited in the Escrow Account are hereinafter referred to as the "Escrow Amount".
- 6. <u>Disbursement From the Escrow Account.</u> In the event the Escrow Agent does not receive deposits totaling \$250,000 Minimum prior to the termination of the Escrow Period, the Escrow Agent shall refund to each subscriber the amount actually received from the subscriber plus whatever income has been earned on such amount, and the Escrow Agent shall notify the Trust and the Selected Dealer of its distribution of the funds. In the event the Escrow Agent has not yet collected funds, as defined below, the Escrow Agent may, in its sole discretion, wait until such funds have been collected before it disburses funds to the subscriber whose funds are uncollected. The money returned to each subscriber shall be free and clear of any and all claims of the Trust or any of its creditors.

In the event the Escrow Agent does receive the Minimum prior to termination of the Escrow Period then the Escrow Amount plus the income earned on the Escrow Amount will be distributed to the Trust, but in no event will the Escrow Amount and income earned be released to the Trust until such amount is received by the Escrow Agent in collected funds, as defined below. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "collected funds" shall mean all funds received by the Escrow Agent which have cleared normal banking channels and are in the form of cash.

7. <u>Collection Procedure</u>. The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized to forward each Check for collection and, upon collection of the proceeds of the Check, deposit the collected proceeds in the Escrow Account. As an alternative, the Escrow Agent may telephone the bank on which the Check is drawn to confirm that the Check has been paid.

Any Check returned unpaid to the Escrow Agent shall be returned to the Selected Dealer that submitted the Check. In such cases, the Escrow Agent will promptly notify the Trust of such return.

If the Trust rejects any subscription for which the Escrow Agent has already collected funds, the Escrow Agent shall promptly issue a refund Check to the rejected subscriber. If the Trustee rejects any subscription for which the Escrow Agent has not yet collected funds but has submitted the subscriber's Check for collection, the Escrow Agent shall promptly issue a Check in the amount of the subscriber's Check to the rejected subscriber after the Escrow Agent has cleared such funds. If the Escrow Agent has not yet submitted a rejected subscriber's Check for collection, the Escrow Agent shall promptly remit the subscriber's Check directly to the subscriber.

- 8. <u>Investment of Escrow Amount</u>. The Escrow Agent may invest the Escrow Amount only in such accounts or investments as the Trust may specify by written notice. The Trust may only specify investments in:
 - (1) interest bearing bank savings accounts,
 - (2) bank money-market accounts,
 - (3) short-term certificates of deposit issued by a bank, or
 - (4) short-term securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

The Trust will provide Escrow Agent with its taxpayer identification number for the reporting to the Internal Revenue Service for any income earned on the investments.

9. <u>Duties of the Escrow Agent</u>. The Escrow Agent shall have no duties or responsibilities other than those expressly set forth herein. The Escrow Agent shall have no duty to enforce any obligation of any person to make any payment or delivery, or to direct or enforce any obligation of any person to perform any other act. The Escrow Agent shall be under no liability to anyone by reason of any failure on the part of any party hereto or any maker, endorser or other signatory of any document or any other person to perform such person's obligations under any such document. Except for this Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Agent shall not be obligated to recognize any agreement between any or all of the persons referred to herein, notwithstanding its knowledge thereof.

The Escrow Agent shall not be bound by any notice or demand, or any waiver, modification, termination or recession of this Escrow Agreement or any of the terms hereof, unless evidenced by a writing delivered to the Escrow Agent signed by the proper party or parties and, if the duties or rights of the Escrow Agent are affected, unless Escrow Agent shall give its prior written consent thereof.

The Escrow Agent shall not be under any duty to give the property held hereunder any greater degree of care than it gives its own similar property.

The Escrow Agent may act in reliance upon any instrument or signature believed to be genuine and may assume that any person purporting to give any writing, notice, advice or instruction in connection with the provisions hereof has been duly authorized to do so.

The Escrow Agent may act relative hereto upon advice of counsel in reference to any matter connected herewith, and shall not be liable for any mistake of fact or error of judgment, or for any acts or omissions of any kind unless caused by its willful misconduct, fraud or gross negligence.

This Escrow Agreement sets forth exclusively the duties of the Escrow Agent with respect to any and all matters pertinent hereto and no implied duties or obligations shall be read into this Escrow Agreement against the Escrow Agent, in general or with particular reference to any other agreement between any of the parties hereto, even though reference thereto may be made herein or whether or not it has knowledge thereof.

The Escrow Agent makes no representation as to the validity, value, genuineness or the negotiability or collectibility of any document or instrument held by or delivered to it or by it.

The Escrow Agent shall not be called upon to advise any party as to the wisdom in selling or retaining any document or instrument deposited hereunder.

The Escrow Agent does not have and will not have any interest in the Escrow Deposit but is serving only as escrow holder and having only possession thereof.

The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any loss that may be incurred by reason of any investment of any monies that it holds hereunder which investment is authorized by this Escrow Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 8 hereof.

To the extent that the Escrow Agent becomes liable for the payment of taxes, including withholding taxes, in respect of income derived from the investment of funds held hereunder, the Trust will pay such taxes. In the event the Trust fails to pay such taxes in a timely manner, the Escrow Agent may pay such taxes and the Escrow Agent shall be indemnified by the Trust and the Underwriter and held harmless against any liability for taxes and for any penalties or interest in respect of taxes, on such investment income or payments in the manner provided below.

The Escrow Agent shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Trust and the Underwriter from and against any and all costs, expenses, including reasonable counsel fees and disbursements, or loss suffered by the Escrow Agent in connection with (i) any claim or demand, which, in any way, directly or indirectly, arises out of or relates to this Escrow Agreement, the services of the Escrow Agent hereunder or any income earned from investment of such monies, except, that if the Escrow Agent shall be found guilty of willful misconduct, fraud or gross negligence in connection with the performance of its services under this Escrow Agreement, then, in that event, the Escrow Agent shall bear all such losses, claims, damages and expenses attributable to such misconduct, fraud or gross negligence; or (ii) any action by the Escrow Agent to collect its fees and/or expenses incurred in the performance of its duties as Escrow Agent. Promptly after the receipt by the Escrow Agent of notice of any demand or claim or the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding, the Escrow Agent shall, if a claim in respect thereof is to be made against the Trust, notify the Trust thereof in writing; but the failure by the Escrow Agent to give such notice shall not relieve the Trust from any liability which the Trust may have to be the Escrow Agent hereunder. For the purposes hereof, the term "costs, expenses or loss" shall include all amounts paid or payable to satisfy any claim, demand or liability, or in settlement of any claim, demand, action, suit or proceeding settled with the express written consent of the parties hereto, and all costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, counsel fees and disbursements, paid or incurred in investigating or defending against any such claim, demand, action, suit or proceeding.

10. Request for Documents and Instruments. From time to time on and after the date hereof, the Trust shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Escrow Agent such further documents and instruments and shall do and cause to be done such further acts as the Escrow Agent shall reasonably request (it being understood that the Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to make any such request) to carry out more effectively the provisions and purposes of the Escrow Agreement, to evidence compliance herewith or to assure itself that it is protected in acting hereunder.

3

- 11. Resignation of Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent may resign at any time and be discharged from its duties as escrow agent hereunder upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the Trust. As soon as practicable after its resignation, the Escrow Agent shall promptly turn over to a successor escrow agent appointed by the Trust all monies and property held hereunder upon presentation of a document appointing the new escrow agent and its acceptance thereof. If no new escrow agent is so appointed with the thirty (30) day period following such notice of resignation, the Escrow Agent may deposit the aforesaid monies and property with the Clerk of the Supreme Court, County of Albany, State of New York.
- 12. <u>Compensation of Escrow Agent</u>. The Trust shall pay the Escrow Agent a fee for its escrow services in an amount of \$250.00 per year or any portion thereof with one year's commission being payable in advance on the execution of the agreement and the Trust shall reimburse Escrow Agent for any and all costs and expenses associated with acting as Escrow Agent. However, no such fee, reimbursement for costs, expenses or loss indemnification for any damages incurred by the Escrow Agent, or any monies whatsoever shall be paid out of or chargeable to the funds on deposit in the Escrow Account.
- 13. <u>Assignment of Rights and Obligations</u>. The Escrow Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder of the parties hereto may be assigned by those parties only to a successor to the relevant party's entire business. This Escrow Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each party's respective successors and permitted assigns. No other person shall acquire or have any rights under, or by virtue of, this Escrow Agreement.
- 14. <u>Governing Law</u>. This Escrow Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.
- 15. <u>Survival</u>. The representations and warranties contained in this Escrow Agreement shall survive the execution and delivery hereof.
- 16. <u>Headings</u>. The headings in this Escrow Agreement are for the purposes of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect any of the terms hereof.
- 17. <u>Authorized Representative</u>. Timothy M. McGinn, Chairman is hereby designated as the authorized representative of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc.
- 18. <u>Notices</u>. All notices or other communications shall be in writing and shall be considered to have been duly given if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:
 - (a) If to McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc.: 99 Pine Street
 Albany, New York 12207
 Attn: David L. Smith, President

With a copy to:
McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc.
99 Pine Street
Albany, New York 12207

- (b) If to TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09
 McGinn, Smith Capital Holdings Corp.
 99 Pine Street
 Albany, New York 12207
 Attn: Timothy M. McGinn, Chairman
- (c) If to Escrow Agent:
 Mercantile Bank
 21845 Powerline Rd.
 Boca Raton Fl. 33433
 Attn:

or at such other addresses or to the attention of such other office, as either party shall have designated in writing to the other.

19. Amendment and Waiver to be in Writing. This Agreement may be amended, modified, superseded or

canceled and any of the terms, covenants, representations, warranties or conditions hereof may be waived only by a written instrument executed by all of the parties, or in the case of a waiver, by the party waiving compliance. The failure of any party at any time or times to require performance of any provision hereof shall in no manner affect the right at a later time to enforce same.

- 20. <u>Severability</u>. In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement or in any other instrument referred to herein, shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement or any other such instrument.
- 21. <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Agreement constitutes the full and complete understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, between the parties, with respect to the subject matter hereof.

MERCANTILE BANK

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this agreement as of the day first above written.

By:
MCGINN, SMITH & CO. INC.
By: Timothy M. McGinn, Chairman
TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 By: MCGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.
By:

\$3,000,000 MAXIMUM **\$250,000 MINIMUM**

TDMM Benchmark Trust 09

CONTRACT CERTIFICATES 10.50%

DUE NOVEMBER 1, 2014

PRIVATE PLACEMENT **MEMORANDUM**

McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. ALBANY, NEW YORK

JULY 27, 2009

No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this Memorandum and if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities to which it relates. This Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy such securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. Neither the delivery of this Memorandum nor any sale hereunder shall, under circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Trust since the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to its date. However, in the event of any material change, this Memorandum will be amended, supplemented or updated accordingly.

Table of Contents:

	<u>Page</u>
Who May Invest	3
Summary of the Offering	4
Equity Participation	5
Risk Factors	6
Use of Proceeds	7
The Trust	8
Description of Trust Agreement and	8
the Certificates	
Conflicts of Interest	10
The Trustee	10
Compensation and Fees	11
Suitability	11
Terms of the Offering	12
Plan of Distribution	13
Income Tax Considerations	13
Table of Contents of Exhibits	14
Additional Information	14

CONFIDENTIAL PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM

\$400,000

12% Notes Due May 31, 2010

CRUISE CHARTER VENTURES, LLC

MAXIMUM OFFERING \$400,000 MINIMUM OFFERING \$100,000

CRUISE CHARTER VENTURES, LLC (the "Company") is hereby offering \$400,000 of Notes entitled to interest at the rate of 12%, per annum (the "Notes"). Interest on the Notes is payable upon maturity. See "Description of the Notes".

The Notes will be issued and registered in the names of the purchasing Noteholders. Interests in the Notes will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected through, records maintained by the Company. See "Description of the Notes".

Price of Notes 100%

See "Risk Factors" for a discussion of certain risks that should be considered by prospective purchasers of the Notes offered hereby.

THIS MEMORANDUM HAS NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

The Offering of Notes will terminate on November 30, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date. Interest will be earned on funds held by Cruise Charter Ventures, LLC ("CCV" or the "Company") commencing three days after the funds are deposited with the Company until the earlier of the termination of this Offering or the investment of such funds in Notes. During the period that an investor's funds are held by the Company such investor will not be a Noteholder of the Company. An investor's funds will not be held by the Company for more than two months before being invested in the Notes. See "Terms of the Offering".

The Company will furnish to investors certain reports, financial statements and tax information. See "Reports".

WHO MAY INVEST

The Notes will be offered only to accredited investors ("Accredited Investors") as that term is defined under Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act). With certain exceptions (primarily with respect to institutional investors) an Accredited Investor is an individual who (i) has a net worth (along and together with the Investor's spouse) in excess of \$1,000,000 or (ii) has had gross income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the past two years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year. Corporations, partnerships and other entities will be considered Accredited Investors if each of its beneficial owners individually qualify as Accredited Investors, or if such entity has total assets in excess of \$5,000,000. Prospective investors to be admitted as Accredited Investors will be required to represent that they satisfy the requirements of an Accredited Investor. See "Suitability".

The Notes offered hereby are suitable only for those investors whose business and investment experience makes them capable of evaluating the merits and risks of their prospective investment in the Notes, who can afford to bear the economic risk of their investment for an indefinite period of time and have no need for liquidity in this investment. Each investor will be required to represent in a Subscription Agreement that such investor is acquiring the Notes for such investor's own account as principal for investment, and not with a view to resale or distribution, and that such investor is aware that (a) such investor's transfer rights are restricted; and (b) that the Notes have not been registered under the Act, and therefore, cannot be resold unless they are so registered or unless exemption from registration is available with respect to such transaction. (See "Suitability"). Since there can be no assurance that there will be sufficient income available to pay the Notes, investment in the Notes is suited for persons who have substantial income from other sources. See "Risk Factors".

The Company may require prospective investors to complete a questionnaire relating to the suitability of the investment for them, and may make or cause to be made such further inquiry as it deems appropriate. The Company will have the sole discretion regarding sale of the Notes to any prospective investor. The Company reserves the right to reject any subscription for any reason and to allocate to any investor a smaller amount of Notes, or fractions thereof, than that for which such investor has subscribed. See "Suitability".

Income Tax Considerations

The Notes will be treated as indebtedness of the Company for federal income tax purposes. Each Noteholder will generally be required to report interest income on a Note in accordance with such Noteholder's method of accounting. Each prospective investor should consult with his or her own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the Notes.

RISK FACTORS

In evaluating this Offering, prospective investors should consider carefully all of the information contained in this Memorandum and, in particular, the factors discussed below. The following summary is not intended to state in full or replace portions of this Memorandum that discuss these factors and others in greater depth. Although the risk factors are intended to be presented in order of their materiality to investors, such order may not be indicative of their relative importance to any particular investor.

Limitation of Transfer of Notes

The Notes may not be offered for resale to any person without the consent of the Company. Prior to this offering there has been no market for the Notes of the Company. Each investor will be required to represent that such investor's purchase of the Notes will be for investment only and not with a view towards the resale or distribution thereof. A Noteholder will not have any right to sell, transfer, exchange or otherwise dispose of such Noteholder's Notes, or to cause a security interest to be created therein, unless the Company has received evidence satisfactory to it that such disposition or creation of a security interest is not in violation of federal or state securities laws. The Notes have not been registered or qualified under the Act or applicable state securities laws and may not be sold or transferred without such registration or qualification or an exemption therefrom.

Potential for Payment Defaults

Default by CCV on its obligations to the Noteholders could cause significant loss of principal.

No Monthly Amortization Schedule

There will be no amortization of the principal arising out of the cash flow generated from the sale of berths. It is anticipated that the Notes will be fully liquidated on May 31, 2010.

No Independent Counsel to Investors

Purchasers of the Notes offered hereby will not be afforded the services of independent counsel. Disclosure of material facts and risks has been reviewed by counsel to the Company.

Dependence Upon Management

CCV operates in the trade as YOLO Cruises ("YOLO"). YOLO believes it was the first to charter an entire ship for a "Lifestyle Cruise". YOLO's President, Marlene Brustle, was singularly responsible for filling 1,788 berths on the Legend cruise which was YOLO's first "Lifestyle Cruise". That cruise launched in April, 2009. To the extent that Ms. Brustle is unavailable to direct YOLO's marketing and sales activities, the current slate of cruises would be materially adversely effected.

Lack of Financial Statements

This Memorandum does not include financial statements for the Company.

Financial Loss for Inaugural Cruise

CCV launched its' first "Lifestyle" cruise in April, 2009. Ship occupancy was 84.6%, with prices cut from initially advertised prices. The charter was procured from Carnival at a charter rate of \$149.00 per day per passenger. The EBITDA loss for the period from February 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009 was \$870,000. Although the charters contemplated for 2010 are at an average cost of \$84.00 per passenger per day, there can be no assurance that sufficient cabins can be sold at prices that will be sufficient to liquidate the Notes.

financed by this offering is a 3 day cruise on the Carnival M/V "Imagination" departing October 29, 2010 from Miami.

Under the agreement with Carnival Cruise Lines, a division of Carnival Corporation, a Panamanian corporation, the payment requirements for CCV to charter the M/V "Imagination" are as follows:

August 15, 2009	\$100,000
October 1, 2009	100,000
November 15, 2009	100,000
December 31, 2009	100,000
February 15, 2010	113,206
Total	\$513,206

In addition to the above costs, CCV has agreed to pay Carnival an attrition fee should passenger count fall below certain levels. See page 18 of the Carnival Agreement (Exhibit "C").

Corporate Information

Cruise Charter Ventures LLC was organized as a Florida limited liability company in December, 2007. The address for CCV is 99 Pine Street, Albany, New York 12207.

Prepayments

The Notes are not subject to a mandatory prepayment or redemption provision.

Registration

Each Note will be registered in the name of the purchaser thereof.

Limited Transferability of the Notes

The Notes are not freely transferable, and there is no secondary market for the Notes and none is expected to develop. The Notes should not be treated by Noteholders as marketable securities.

The Notes have not been registered under the Act. They may not be offered for resale in the absence of an opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Company, that registration is not required.

Reports

Not later than January 31 of each year, the Company will furnish to the Noteholders statements of interest income on IRS Form 1099-INT and such tax information as shall be necessary in the preparation of such person's Federal income tax return.

SUITABILITY

Notes will be sold only to investors who make a minimum purchase of \$50,000.00.

As described elsewhere in this Memorandum, the Notes will be sold only to Accredited Investors as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Act. Included in the definition of "Accredited Investor", as defined in Rule 501, are the following:

- (a) any natural person whose individual net worth (including personal residences, furnishings and automobiles), or joint net worth with that person's spouse, at the time of purchase exceeds \$1,000,000;
- (b) any natural person who had an individual income in excess of \$200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years and who reasonably expects gross income at the same level in the current year; and

All funds received by the Company from subscriptions for the Notes will be held until such time as the minimum offering is subscribed for. If subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are not received within two (2) months from the date of this Memorandum, subscriptions received with respect to the Notes will be promptly returned in full to the investor by the Company, unless the Offering is extended.

How to Subscribe.

The Notes will be available for purchase in the minimum denomination of \$50,000.00 and increments of \$25,000.00. An investor who meets the qualifications set forth under "Who May Invest" and "Suitability" may subscribe for Notes by completing, signing and delivering to the Company an executed copy of the Subscription Agreement contained in this Memorandum. All subscriptions must be accompanied by a check in the amount of the Note(s) purchased payable to "Cruise Charter Ventures LLC". Upon execution of a Subscription Agreement, the investor agrees to all of the terms and conditions contained in such Agreement. Subscriptions are, however, subject to acceptance by the Company.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Company is offering a maximum of \$400,000 of Notes, and a minimum of \$100,000. The minimum investment by an investor is \$50,000.00 with increments of \$25,000.00. The Offering of Notes will terminate on November 30, 2009, unless all are sold prior to that date or such date is extended. No Notes will be sold unless subscriptions for the Minimum Offering are received and accepted November 30, 2009 unless such date is extended. Subscriptions are subject to acceptance by the Company. See "Suitability"; "Who May Invest".

The Notes will be offered on a "best efforts" basis by the Company.

DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY

Other than potential liability under the Act, neither the Company, nor any shareholder, manager, officer, employee, affiliate or agent of the Company may be held to any liability in connection with the Offering or the Notes, or in connection with the affairs of the Company, in the absence of willful misconduct or gross negligence. Further, the Company will not be liable, in any event, to pay sums of money beyond the proceeds of this offering then remaining under the control of the Company.

INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion summarizes certain material anticipated federal income tax consequences relevant to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Notes, but does not purport to address all potential consequences. The summary is for general information only and does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to particular investors in light of their personal investment circumstances or holders who receive special treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), such as insurance companies, financial institutions, and broker-dealers. In addition, this discussion does not describe any tax consequences arising out of foreign, state or local jurisdictions.

The discussion is based upon current provisions of the Code, applicable regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial authority and administrative rulings and practice. All of the foregoing is subject to change which may be retroactive and could affect the continuing validity of this discussion. There can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") will not take a contrary view, and no ruling from the IRS has been or will be sought.

EXHIBIT "A"

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

withdrawn and I understand that all my subscription documents and payments will be returned to me, with interest, less the cost of escrow, and without further obligation of the Company.

- 8. Additional Representations and Warranties. I represent and warrant that:
 - (a) (i) I have received and have carefully read and understood the Private Placement Memorandum dated September 25, 2009 (the "Memorandum") given to me by the Company in connection with the offering of Notes.
 - (ii) I have been furnished with all additional documents and information which I have requested.
 - (iii) I have had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Company concerning the Company and the offering of Notes and to obtain any additional information necessary to verify the accuracy of the information furnished.
 - (iv) I have relied only on the foregoing information and documents in determining to make this subscription, and the decision to acquire Notes of the Company has been made based upon my own evaluation of the merits and risks of the Company.
 - (v) I will not offer to sell, or resell, the Notes except in accordance with Section 3(ii) hereof.
 - (vi) I will require any purchaser to provide the Company with his address.
 - (b) I recognize that investment in the Notes involves substantial risk factors, including those set forth under "Risks" in the Memorandum.
 - (c) I have adequate means of providing for my current needs and possible personal contingencies, and I have no need for liquidity in my investment in the Notes.
 - (d) My overall commitment to investments which are not readily marketable is not disproportionate to my net worth and my purchase of Notes will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive.
- 9. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. If I breach any agreement, representation or warranty I have made in this Subscription Agreement or any other document I have executed in connection with this offering, I agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and any officer or director of the Company and any person controlling either or any of them against any claims, actions, liability, loss, damage or expense (including attorney's fees and other costs of investigation and litigating claims) caused, directly or indirectly, by my breach.

10. Subscriber Information. Thi	is Subscription and my No	tes shall be recorded on the Compar	ıy's books.
In Witness Whereof, I have execu	uted this Subscription Agre	ement this day of	·
Prin	t exact name in which title	e is to be held	
Printed Name	Tax ID#	Printed Name	Tax ID#
Signature: X		Signature X	
Address:		A A.D. 1	
		Amount Purchased: \$	

Ехнівіт "В"

INVESTOR REPRESENTATION LETTER

1.	What is your approximate net worth?		
	\$50,000 -	\$100,000	
	\$100,000	- \$250,000	
	\$250,000	- \$500,000	
	\$500,000 -	- \$1,000,000	
	Greater that	an \$1,000,000	
2.	Did your individual income exceed \$2 your spouse exceed \$300,000.00 in each	200,000.00 in 2007 and 2008, or did your joint incoch of those years?	ome with
	Yes	No	
3.	If the answer to #2 above is "yes", do y	you expect to reach the same income level in 2009?	
	Yes	No	
4.	What was your approximate gross inco	ome for calendar year 2008?	
	\$25,000 - \$	5100,000	
	\$100,000 -	\$200,000	
	\$200,000 -		
	\$300,000 -		
	Greater tha	n \$500,000	
5.	What will your approximate gross inco	me be for calendar year 2009?	
	\$25,000 - \$		
	\$100,000 -		
	\$200,000 -	\$300,000	
	\$300,000 - Greater than		
	Oreater ma	3 \$300,000	
To th	e best of my information and belief the abo	ove information is accurate and complete in all respe	
I agre	e to notify the Company promptly of any c	hanges which occur prior to sale of the Notes.	ects.
Purch	naser	Date:	
Name	(printed)		
Signa	ture		

	B. Had an individual net income in excess of \$200,000 in 2007 and 2008, or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of \$300,000 in each of those years, and have a reasonable						
•	expectation of reaching the same income le	evel in 2009?					
	Yes	No					
4.	I am aware that the Notes proposed to be o Yes	ffered will not be readily marketable or transferable. No					
5. liquidit	The organization can afford the complete I y in this investment.	oss of its investments in the Notes and has no need for					
	Yes	No					
6. placem	ents during the past five years:	ous investments in similar securities and other private					
be capa	ser of Notes, I must have sufficient knowled	n satisfies certain criteria, in order to qualify as a ge and experience in financial and business matters to an investment in the Company or I must engage an e purpose of this particular transaction.					
I hereby	represent, by initialing on the Representation	n A or Representation B line below, that:					
A.	I have such knowledge and experience in evaluating the merits and risks of an involvence representative.	financial and business matters that I am capable of estment in the Notes and will not require a Purchase					
		Representation A					
B.	I have relied upon the advice of the following and risks of an investment in the Notes:	ng Purchaser Representative(s) in evaluating the merits					
		Representation B.					
Name	·	Name					
Relations	ship	Relationship					
respects Compan	To the best of my information and belief, I agree to notify the Company promptly's Notes.	the above information is accurate and complete in all y of any changes which occur prior to sale of the					
Purchase	er:	Date:					
Print Na	me of Organization						
Ву:							

	sitions during the past five years:	•
	•	
description of the type:	experience in advising clients with s of investments, the dollar amounts have in financial, business and tax ori	involved, and the number o
General Investments (sp	pecify)	
	: ,	•
Private Placements (spe	ecify)	
•		
	•••	
Other Investments (spec	• •	
The Professional licens brokerage licenses, brol	es or registrations (including bar adn cer-dealer or investments advisory re	gistrations) held by me are as Is License or
Registration	Year Received	Registration Still Effective?
My educational backgro	ound, including degrees obtained and	date of attendance:
Company or any of its	of my affiliates now have or have hare filiates, are not affiliates or the Core, except as follows:	ad any material relationship company, and no such relation
contemplated in the futu		
contemplated in the futu		

EXHIBIT "C"

CHARTER AGREEMENT

- 6. The services of a Cruise Director in planning entertainment and social activities on board the VESSEL.
- 7. Professional entertainment and orchestra according to normal VESSEL's scheduling.
- 8. Use of all facilities of the VESSEL which shall include swimming pools, movies, deck sports equipment, but not including golf or other concessionaire provided activities or services.

ADDITIONAL CHARTER HIRE PROVISIONS: OWNER will also provide the following:

1. Up to four (4) cabins will be provided at no charge, except for miscellaneous taxes, fees, gratuities, fuel supplement and non-commission fares, to be used by CHARTERER for the purpose of site inspection and/or planning in advance of the VOYAGE.

<u>SPECIAL CHARTER HIRE PROVISIONS</u>: Notwithstanding any additional or inconsistent terms of this Agreement, the parties expressly agree as follows:

- 1. Neither OWNER nor CHARTERER shall issue any publicity or press releases, or make any other public statement, identifying the other party or the VESSEL without the prior written consent of the other party in each instance.
- The CHARTERER agrees, that should it arrange or provide any shore excursions for its passengers, that all such shore excursions will be purchased solely through OWNER.
- The CHARTERER shall not permit any press, radio or television correspondent or photographer or camera crew to board the VESSEL in any circumstances without the written consent of OWNER, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- CHARTERER, for its own account, shall have the right to obtain additional insurance coverage with respect to the VOYAGE or any other related liability under this Agreement.
- Any consent required or desired under this Agreement will not be unreasonably withheld by any party, who will each carry out their respective obligations in good faith at all times.
- 6. "6. CHARTERER agrees that it shall not: (i) allow minors under the age of 21 on the VOYAGE; or (iii) permit its passengers to engage in nudity or sexual activities in public rooms, restrooms or other public spaces on the VESSEL. The VESSEL's staff shall be permitted to remove any passengers engaging in such activities from such public room or space.
- 7. 7. CHARTERER shall not permit, nor permit its employees, representatives or passengers, to make physical contact (other than incidental contact) with ship staff, concessionaire staff or any other onboard personnel. Nor shall CHARTERER, its employees, representatives or passengers invite ship staff, concessionaire staff or any other onboard personnel to participate in, or allow their voluntary participation in any CHARTER activities."

Today W

AGREEMENT BASIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. Agreement to Charter. Subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, OWNER agrees to and shall let, and CHARTERER agrees to and shall hire, the VESSEL, for one voyage extending for the period from the DEPARTURE DATE to the RETURN DATE, said voyage to commence at the PORT OF EMBARKATION, terminate at the PORT OF DEBARKATION and include the SCHEDULED ITINERARY (the "VOYAGE"). Nothing herein stated is to be construed as a demise of the VESSEL to CHARTERER or as an authorization for CHARTERER to access or use any area of the VESSEL that is customarily not open to passengers. OWNER is to remain responsible for the navigation of the VESSEL, crew and all other matters as when trading for its own account, subject, however, to the terms and conditions hereafter provided.
- 2. Designation of OPERATOR. If an OPERATOR is specified on the Cover Page, then OPERATOR shall act on behalf of OWNER for such aspects of this Agreement, as OWNER shall determine, without however relieving OWNER of its obligations with respect thereto. If an OPERATOR is not specified on the Cover Page, then there shall be no OPERATOR and all references herein to OPERATOR shall be deemed to refer to OWNER. Any communications, payments or deliveries required to be made to OWNER hereunder shall be made directly to OPERATOR on behalf of OWNER at 3655 NW 87th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33178 or at such other address as OWNER shall notify CHARTERER. All rights and limitations on liability granted to OWNER under this Agreement shall also extend to OPERATOR. OPERATOR is duly authorized to act on OWNER's behalf on all matters relating to this Agreement and CHARTERER may rely upon OPERATOR's authority to bind OWNER, unless and until OWNER gives GHARTERER written notice of specific limitations on the scope of OPERATOR's authority.
- 3. Obligations of OWNER. OWNER shall tender the VESSEL for performance hereunder on the DEPARTURE DATE, seaworthy, clean and equipped with all accessories appropriate thereto for the performance of the VOYAGE in accordance with the standards of other cruises normally performed by OWNER with the VESSEL. CHARTERER has examined, or has been afforded the opportunity to examine, the VESSEL and finds it acceptable. For the duration of the VOYAGE and subject to the provisions of this Agreement, OWNER shall provide all maintenance for passengers while aboard the VESSEL, including food and customary entertainment. OWNER shall also pay all port fees, pilotage and other expenses whatsoever pertaining to the running of the VESSEL, except as otherwise provided herein.

4. Charter Hire.

A. In consideration for the chartering of the VESSEL for the VOYAGE, CHARTERER shall pay the CHARTER HIRE, and other amounts set forth in Schedule B to OWNER. CHARTER HIRE does not include air transportation costs, gratuities or cruise related government taxes and fees. The CHARTER HIRE is not subject to reduction in the event that there shall be less than the INCLUDED NUMBER OF PASSENGERS. The payment schedule for CHARTER HIRE is specified in Schedule B. In addition to any other remedies available to OWNER as a consequence of a failure of CHARTERER to timely pay the CHARTER HIRE, CHARTERER shall, on demand, pay OWNER a late fee in respect of any overdue installment of CHARTER HIRE, such fee to be in the amount of 5% of the overdue installment. Subject to Section 4(C) below, ADDITIONAL CHARGES and SUPPLEMENTAL CHARGES, if applicable, are due as set forth in Schedule B.

73/69 W

- F. GRATUITIES are provided for in Schedule B: (i) such amount shall be paid by CHARTERER to OWNER as set forth in Schedule B for distribution by OWNER to VESSEL crewmembers in lieu of direct tipping by passengers; (ii) under any circumstances in which OWNER is required to refund CHARTER HIRE under Section 6 below, it shall also refund the paid GRATUITIES; and (iii) under any circumstance in which CHARTERER is required to pay the CHARTER HIRE under Section 9 below, it shall also pay the GRATUITIES.
- G. OWNER agrees to maintain liability insurance covering their legal liability to passengers, crew and third parties in the amounts typically maintained by OWNER for the rest of its fleet. To the extent CHARTERER is to provide any employees, entertainment and/or equipment on the VESSEL (other than travel escorts), CHARTERER agrees to obtain and maintain at its own expense insurance in the amount of U.S. \$1,000,000.00 to defend and cover its liability, if any, for claims of passengers or other third parties arising out of or in connection with CHARTERER's or its employees operations, actions or equipment (other than travel escorts and their actions as such) (a "CHARTERER Claim"). Such insurance shall be in form, with carriers and on terms satisfactory to OWNER, shall name OWNER as an additional insured and shall waive subrogation against OWNER and the VESSEL. CHARTERER shall provide a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage within thirty (30) days from the date hereof.
- H. CHARTERER shall cause to be issued to OWNER an irrevocable bank standby letter of credit, if applicable, payable against OWNER's sight draft, in the amount specified on the Cover Page, having an expiration date not earlier than the DEPARTURE DATE, and otherwise to be satisfactory to OWNER as to form, substance and issuer. The issuer of the letter of credit must be a bank licensed-under-United-States federal or state-law, or a United-States branch of a foreign bank, in either case with a short-term credit rating equal to or better than A-1 (Standard & Poors) or P-1 (Moody's).

5. Cabin Assignments; Cruise Contract; Embarkation/Debarkation.

- A. CHARTERER shall furnish the list of passengers, together with cabin assignments, to OWNER at least sixty (60) days prior to departure. CHARTERER further agrees to comply with such procedural requirements as OWNER may reasonably require in order to facilitate the documentation process.
- B. CHARTERER acknowledges that OWNER may reassign cabins as determined necessary or desirable by the Vessel's Safety Department, in its sole discretion. CHARTERER may request discretionary cabin reassignments pursuant to OWNER's procedures on a space available basis.
- C. Prior to departure, OWNER shall enable each of CHARTERER's passengers to access their Standard Ticket Contract of Passage via OWNER's web site in the electronic form then being generally issued by OWNER to VESSEL passengers (the "Cruise Contract"). CHARTERER shall be responsible for providing the Cruise Contract to any passengers that do not have, or are not able to, access the Internet. The Cruise Contract, and not this Agreement, defines the entire legal relationship between OWNER, OPERATOR and passengers, it being agreed that passengers shall not be deemed parties to or third party beneficiaries of this Agreement, except that:





curtailment of transportation, shortage of energy or any other emergency or unforeseeable cause beyond the parties' control and without the fault or negligence of the party so affected, making it inadvisable, illegal, commercially impracticable or impossible to perform their obligations under this Agreement.

- C. OWNER shall have liberty to comply with orders or directions as to arrival, departures, routes, ports of call, stoppages, discharge, destination or otherwise, given by the government of any nation, or by any person acting or purporting to act with authority of such government or on behalf of the United Nations, or by the VESSEL's underwriters or persons acting on their behalf. In case of actual or threatened war, warlike operations or hostilities, the VESSEL, either before or after proceeding to or toward the PORT OF DEBARKATION, may, as OWNER may deem prudent, proceed from or to any port or ports notwithstanding any such risks, or may for the purpose of avoiding any such risks, delay sailing from any port or ports once or more often as convenient and/or wait at any such port or ports and/or cancel the VOYAGE and/or make such changes in the SCHEDULED ITINERARY as OWNER reasonably deems necessary or advisable. Also, in case of actual or threatened war, warlike operations or hostilities, the VESSEL may sail with or without lights, omit observance of practices, rules and regulations as to navigation, cargo or otherwise applicable in time of peace, and sail armed or unarmed and with or without convoy.
- D. If at any stage of the VOYAGE the Master considers that the VESSEL should not, for any valid reason whatsoever, proceed in the ordinary course, OWNER shall have the liberty to change the SCHEDULED ITINERARY and/or cancel the VOYAGE. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as being in derogation of the OWNER'S and the Master's discretion, right and obligation to provide and take action for the safety of the VESSEL passengers, officers, crew and other personnel aboard.
- E. CHARTERER shall be responsible for the arrival of passengers and their belongings at each port sufficiently in advance of scheduled departure so as to enable timely boarding and loading. In the event of any late arrival of passengers or their belongings at any port, CHARTERER may request a delay in departure. OWNER shall be required to acquiesce to any such request if and only if CHARTERER agrees, prior to the scheduled departure time, to permit such changes in the SCHEDULED ITINERARY as are necessary to compensate for time lost as a result of said delay and further to compensate OWNER for additional costs incurred by OWNER as a consequence of such delay, including, but not limited to, stevedores, crew, fuel, food, and piloting expenses. CHARTERER agrees to pay OWNER for such additional expenses within fifteen (15) days of receipt of an involce therefor from OWNER.
- F. If the VOYAGE is cancelled by OWNER prior to commencement of the VOYAGE other than as a consequence of a CHARTERER Event of Default, OWNER shall return any portion of the CHARTER HIRE and other amounts theretofore received by OWNER plus the CHARTER HIRE SECURITY (if any), which shall constitute the total amount due CHARTERER as a consequence of such cancellation. If, for any reason whatsoever other than OWNER negligence or willful fault, the VOYAGE is cancelled by OWNER after commencement of the VOYAGE, CHARTERER shall be entitled, as its exclusive remedy, to liquidated damages in the amount of the CHARTER HIRE and other amounts paid to OWNER, less: (i) a reasonable allowance for transportation and services provided by OWNER (determined on a pro rata basis taking into account the portion of the VOYAGE performed prior to cancellation relative to the duration of the SCHEDULED ITINERARY), and (ii) GRATUITIES and TAXES incurred by OWNER prior to cancellation. If, as the result of OWNER negligence or willful fault, OWNER cancels the VOYAGE after commencement of the VOYAGE, CHARTERER shall be entitled, as



- M. CHARTERER acknowledges that federal law prohibits OWNER from transporting passengers or merchandise between ports in the United States pursuant to 46 U.S.C. 289 (the "Coastwise Trade Law"). Accordingly, CHARTERER shall, and shall cause its officers, employees, OPERATOR's and guests, who board the VESSEL pursuant to the terms herein, to comply with the Coastwise Trade Law and shall advise such passengers that they may not disembark the VESSEL, or remove any merchandise from the VESSEL, at any port in the United States, its districts, territories or possessions, other than at the port of debarkation. Should, for any reason, any such passenger violate the Coastwise Trade Laws, CHARTERER shall indemnify, defend and hold OWNER and the VESSEL, harmless from any and all damages, liabilities, fines, charges, suits or claims (including reasonable attorneys fees) arising from such violation.
- Shore Excursions: Extent of Transportation. OWNER undertakes transportation of the passengers and their property between ports of call only to the VESSEL's dock, or in ports where she does not dock, to an appropriate dock by way of shuttle service on tender or craft between the VESSEL at anchor and the dock facility. All other transportation, shore excursions, victualing, amusement, entertainment, accommodations and other services on shore are not performed by OWNER, but are performed by independent contractors, and are performed at the risk of CHARTERER and the passengers and subject to the terms or arrangements made by or on behalf of CHARTERER or passengers with the independent contractor furnishing such services, and money received in respect thereof by OWNER, its OPERATOR's or employees is received only as the passengers' OPERATOR, to pay the same over to such independent contractor. OWNER shall not be liable for repayment of such money, except to the extent that OWNER may retain the same or receive refund of it. If arrangements for any such shore services are made through OWNER, it is understood and agreed that OWNER is acting solely inthe capacity of OPERATOR for the companies and persons providing such services, that said companies and persons are independent contractors and that such services are provided subject to the terms appearing in the tickets, vouchers or notices of such companies and persons or otherwise imposed by such companies and persons.

8. <u>LIMITATION ON OWNER LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION.</u>

- A. OWNER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR INJURY, DEATH OR DELAY OF THE PASSENGERS OR FOR LOSS, DAMAGE OR DELAY OF OR TO THEIR BAGGAGE OR OTHER PROPERTY, WHERESOEVER OCCURRING AND WHETHER ON BOARD THE VESSEL OR ON BOARD ANY OTHER VESSEL OR CONVEYANCE, NOR SHALL OWNER BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE NON-PERFORMANCE OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 8(A) ONLY APPLY TO INJURY, DEATH, DELAY, LOSS, DAMAGE AND NON-PERFORMANCES THAT ARE DUE TO A CAUSE BEYOND OWNER'S CONTROL.
- B. OWNER HEREBY ADVISES CHARTERER THAT THE CRUISE CONTRACTS WILL CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING LANGUAGE, OR LANGUAGE SIMILAR THERETO, RELATING TO THE TIME DURING WHICH PASSENGERS ARE ENTITLED TO BRING ACTIONS AGAINST OWNER AND THE VESSEL AS TO CERTAIN MATTERS DESCRIBED THEREIN:

Carnival shall not be liable for any claims whatsoever for personal injury, illness or death of the guest, unless full particulars in writing are given to Carnival within 185 days after the date of the injury, event, illness or death giving rise to the claim. Suit to recover on any such claim shall not be maintainable unless filed





liability, including claims, demands, losses, costs, damages and expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees) arising from any claims of passengers or other third parties, arising out of or in connection with (a) OWNER's or its employees operations, actions or equipment, (b) the VESSEL (or any alternate VESSEL provided hereunder) or the VOYAGE, (c) CHARTERER's use of the Marks (as permitted in this Agreement), or (d) a material breach by OWNER of this Agreement, other than, to the extent such claim or cause of action is attributable to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of CHARTERER. CHARTERER shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend OWNER and its affiliates, and their respective directors, officers and OPERATOR's, from and against any and all liability, including claims, demands, losses, costs, damages and expenses (including reasonable attorneys fees) arising from any claims of passengers or other third parties, arising out of or in connection with (a) CHARTERER's or its employees operations, actions or equipment, (b) CHARTERER's use of the trademarks, logos, trade names and copyrights of any third party other than OWNER, or (c) a material breach by CHARTERER of this Agreement, other than to the extent such claim or cause of action is attributable to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of OWNER. This section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

CHARTERER Event of Default.

or

A. Each of the following shall constitute a CHARTERER event of default ("CHARTERER Event of Default") under this Agreement:

- (i) CHARTERER shall fail to timely pay any installment of CHARTER HIRE, or any other amount due OWNER under this Agreement, and such failure shall be continuing five (5) business days after written-notice of such failure is given by OWNER to CHARTERER, or
 - (ii) CHARTERER shall fail to timely deliver the CHARTER HIRE SECURITY;
- (iii) CHARTERER shall otherwise fail to comply with any other of its obligations under this Agreement and such failure shall be continuing fifteen (15) business days after written notice of such failure is given by OWNER to CHARTERER; or
- (iv) CHARTERER shall notify OWNER that it is canceling the charter provided for in this Agreement or otherwise takes actions which clearly demonstrate a decision on CHARTERER's part to cancel the charter.
- B. Upon the occurrence of any CHARTERER Event of Default, or at any time thereafter if the CHARTERER Event of Default shall be continuing, OWNER shall be entitled, but not obligated, to exercise any or all of the following rights:
- (i) by written notice to CHARTERER, declare the entire unpaid CHARTER HIRE, or any other amount due OWNER under this Agreement, to be immediately due and payable, whereupon such CHARTER HIRE, or any other amount due OWNER under this Agreement, shall become and be immediately due and payable; and/or
- (ii) by appropriate notice to the issuer of the CHARTER HIRE SECURITY (if any), realize upon the CHARTER HIRE SECURITY to the extent necessary to receive all amounts which are then due and payable (including amounts which are then due and payable as a result of a declaration under Section 9(B)(i) above). Amounts received by OWNER as a





- A. <u>Time of Access</u>: On the DEPARTURE DATE, OWNER will permit CHARTERER to load equipment and board staff as soon as the VESSEL has been cleared by U.S. Customs and Immigrations except that such may not interfere with the offloading of passengers (and their belongings) from the preceding voyage or with the storing of the VESSEL by OWNER for the VOYAGE. Rules and conditions mandated by U.S. Government change frequently and CHARTERER understands that final decision is conditional upon U.S. Customs/Immigration approval, based upon current guidelines at the time of sailing. CHARTERER must vacate the VESSEL, including Special Items, by 10:30 a.m. on the RETURN DATE. OWNER will specify actual passenger embarkation and debarkation times.
- B. <u>Marketing Space/Promotional Material</u>: All promotional and advertising materials for the VOYAGE shall be submitted by CHARTERER for OWNER's approval prior to publication, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. All promotional and advertising materials utilized by CHARTERER in connection with the VOYAGE shall make specific reference to the VESSEL's Registry, such reference to be in the following form: "VESSEL's Registry: Panama".
- Confidentiality: Each party shall keep strictly confidential the terms of this Agreement and any non-public, proprietary or confidential information relating to the business or customers of the other party either supplied by such other party or learned by the first mentioned party in carrying out this Agreement ("Confidential Information"), except that the first party may disclose the Confidential Information to its employees and agents who have a need to know such Confidential Information for the purpose of this Agreement and may use such Confidential Information only for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement. The confidentiality provisions shall not apply to (i) information that a party is required to disclose by law (in which case it will provide prompt written notice to the other party so the latter may seek a protective order or waive compliance with these confidentiality provisions), (ii) if the other party consents to the disclosure, (iii) information that is or becomes public through no breach of the confidentiality provisions, (iv) information that was available to a party on a non-confidential basis prior to its disclosure, (v) information that is independently developed by a party without any breach of this Agreement and (vi) information received from a third party that is not, to the best knowledge of a party, in breach of any confidentiality obligation. The confidentiality provisions apply to a party's employees and agents and each party shall ensure that such employees or agents comply with the confidentiality obligations hereunder, and agrees that it shall be liable for any breaches of these confidentiality terms of its employees and agents. Either party's failure to comply with these confidentiality provisions shall be considered a breach of this Agreement and may result in immediate termination of the Agreement. The nonbreaching party shall be entitled to equitable relief (including injunctive relief and specific performance) in addition to all other remedies available to it at law or in equity. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.
- D. Entire Agreement: Amendments: Waivers: Headings and Governing Law: This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be changed orally, nor may any provision or right be waived, modified, enlarged, amended or varied in any manner, nor may it be abrogated or discharged, except in each case by a written instrument signed by a duly authorized officer of the party to be charged therewith. The failure of any party to insist upon strict compliance or performance with any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or the abrogation of such provisions, or any other provision, nor shall it constitute a waiver of compliance or performance in any other instance. No course of dealing between the parties shall operate as a waiver of any right of the parties, and no delay on the part of any party in exercising any right hereunder





CRUISE CHARTER VENTURES CARNIVAL IMAGINATION – OCTOBER 29, 2010 SCHEDULE A – SCHEDULED ITINERARY

DAY	DATE	PORT	ARRIVE	DEPART
Friday Saturday Sunday	October 29, 2010 October 30, 2010 October 31, 2010	Miami Nassau	10:00 AM	4:00 PM 7:30 AM
Monday	November 1, 2010	Fun Day at Sea Miami	8:AM	

ALL ARRIVAL AND DEPARTURE TIMES ARE APPROXIMATE.

INITIALED:

(FOR OPERATOR)

(FOR CHARTERER)

Additional Passengers. In the event the CHARTERER's passenger count is greater than the INCLUDED NUMBER OF PASSENGERS as specified in Cover Page of the Agreement, additional passenger rates are U.S. \$110.00 per person. Gratuities, and government taxes and fees are additional per person as set forth above. The number of additional passengers permitted is subject to the VESSEL's maximum passenger capacity listed in its current Coast Guard Certificate, which is 2600. CHARTERER shall pay all sums due to OWNER for such additional passenger accommodations no later than 45 days prior to DEPARTURE DATE.

Passenger Attrition: In the event the CHARTERER's final passenger count is less than 1831 passengers, then CHARTERER shall pay to OWNER the following supplemental charges no later than 30 days prior to the DEPARTURE DATE:

- 1. A supplemental charge of \$58,000.00 if the ship sails with 1830 to 1550 guests on board.
- 2. A supplemental charge of \$122,500.00 if the ship sails with 1549 to 1000 guests on board.
- 3. A supplemental charge of \$171,000.00 if the ship sails with less than 1000

guests on board

<u>Fuel Supplement Adjustments.</u> The CHARTER HIRE includes the current fuel supplement rate of \$-0- per person, per day for all passengers up to the INCLUDED NUMBER OF PASSENGERS and all "Additional Passengers," if any, at \$-0- per person per day. In the event that OPERATOR effects an increase of the fuel supplement rate charged to passengers on regularly scheduled cruises prior to the DEPARTURE DATE, then such increase shall not apply to any of CHARTERER's passengers booked as of the date of such increase.

Upon notification of an increase in the fuel supplement rate, CHARTERER will have three (3) business days to submit names of all passengers to be protected at the current fuel supplement rate. Any passengers booked after the effective date of a fuel supplement increase will be subject to the incremental increase between the current fuel supplement rate and the new fuel supplement rate.

In the event OPERATOR discontinues or lowers its fuel supplement rate to passengers on regularly scheduled cruises, there will be no adjustment in the CHARTER HIRE. Payment for any applicable increase is due and payable no later than 30 days prior to the DEPARTURE DATE

Increase in TAXES. The CHARTER HIRE and other amounts payable by CHARTERER to OWNER under this Agreement do not include provision for any income taxes, gross receipts taxes, branch profits taxes, withholding taxes, capital taxes, stamp taxes, luxury or consumption taxes, gross receipts taxes, gross tonnage taxes, sales taxes, value added taxes ("VAT"), goods and services taxes or similar taxes or levies on any sum payable by CHARTERER pursuant to this Agreement imposed by any applicable jurisdiction or any political subdivision thereof.

TOM ISHER ON

CRUISE CHARTER VENTURES CARNIVAL IMAGINATION – OCTOBER 29, 2010 SCHEDULE C – STANDARD TICKET CONTRACT OF PASSAGE

http://www.carnival.com/CMS/Static_Templates/ticket_contract.aspx

(FOR CARNIVAL)

(FOR CHARTERER)

H-VALLIL GOIC ruise Charter Ventures/Cruise Charter Ventures CASH Charter Agreement the 107909 revidence